N.orfh West
Leicestershire

Diistrict Council

Scan the code above or visit www.nwleics.gov.uk/meetings
for a full copy of the agenda.

Meeting COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Time/Day/Date 6.30 pm on Thursday, 28 September 2023
Location Forest Room, Stenson House, London Road, Coalville, LE67 3FN
Officer to contact Democratic Services (01530 454530)
AGENDA
Iltem Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2, DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Under the Code of Conduct members are reminded that in declaring interests
you should make clear the nature of that interest and whether it is a disclosable
pecuniary interest, registerable interest or other interest.

3. PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION

To receive questions from members of the public under rule no.10 of the
Council Procedure Rules. The procedure rule provides that members of the
public may ask any question on any matter in relation to which the Council has
powers or duties which affect the District, provided that three clear days’ notice
in writing has been given to the Head of Legal and Support Services.

4. MINUTES
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2023 3-6

5. THE EFFECTIVENESS OF OUR LEISURE CENTRES IN DELIVERING
HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Report of the Head of Community Services 7 - 158
6. AN UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S WORK ON ENFORCING STANDARDS IN

THE PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR AND AN UPDATE ON TACKLING FUEL

POVERTY IN THE PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR

Report of the Head of Community Services 159 - 164

Council Offices, Coalville, Leicestershire, LE67 3FJ | 01530 454545 | Fax 01530 454506
DX 23662 Coalville | Minicom 01530 454542 | Website www.nwleics.gov.uk


http://www.nwleics.gov.uk/meetings

7. HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY TO APPROVE THE COUNCIL'S NEW FIVE
YEAR HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY

Report of the Strategic Director of Communities 165-194

8. REVIEW OF HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY TO ACCEPT ANY
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY AS A
RESULT OF A REVIEW AND CONSULTATION

Report of the Strategic Director of Communities 195 - 246
9. ITEMS FOR INCLUSION IN THE FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME

To consider any items to be included in the work programme. The plan of 247 - 262
forthcoming Cabinet decisions and the current work programme are attached
for information.

Circulation:

Councillor T Eynon (Chair)

Councillor M Blair-Park (Deputy Chair)
Councillor M Ball

Councillor M French

Councillor K Horn

Councillor S Lambeth

Councillor P Lees

Councillor A Morley

Councillor E Parle

Councillor L Windram



Agenda Item 4.

MINUTES of a meeting of the COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in the Room 101, Old
Council Offices, Whitwick Road, Coalville, LE67 3FJ on THURSDAY, 13 JULY 2023

Present: Councillor T Eynon (Chair)

Councillors M Blair-Park, M French, K Horn, S Lambeth, A Morley, E Parle, 3 G Simmons
(Substitute for Councillor P Lees) and L Windram

In Attendance: Councillors D Cooper and J Legrys
Portfolio Holders: Councillors M B Wyatt
Officers: Mr J Arnold, Ms K Hiller, Mr J Knight, Mr P Sanders and Mrs R Wallace
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Councillors M Ball and P Lees.
2, DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no interests declared.
3. PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION
There were no questions received.
4. MINUTES
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 5 April 2023.
It was moved by Councillor J Simmons, seconded by Councillor T Eynon and
RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 April 2023 be approved as an accurate record of
proceedings.

5. ITEMS FOR INCLUSION IN THE FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the inclusion of any items on the work programme.

The Strategic Director of Place set out what the Work Programming group had discussed
on 6 July 2023.

In response to a question, the Strategic Director explained the role of the work
programming group and the scope to shape the work programme moving forwards.

The work programme was noted.
6. RURAL ENGLAND PROSPERITY FUND

The Economic Development and Regeneration Manager presented the report to
Members.

In response to a question about what happens to any unspent money, and who was
administering it, the Economic Development and Regeneration Manager advised that his

3 Chairman’s initials




team was administering the fund and that they expected that the grant would likely be
oversubscribed. If, and this was rare, it did look like the money would not get spent, there
would be a push to further communicate with the public the existence of the grant.

In response to a question about how grants would be monitored, the Economic
Development and Regeneration Manager advised that his team monitored and kept in
touch with businesses. He also emphasised the importance of publicising successful
applicants to showcase what we can achieve to support businesses and use as cases to
use in further funding application.

It was agreed that a report on the results of the grant would be brought before the
committee in due course.

The Chair thanked members for their comments.
HERMITAGE RECREATION GROUND ECOPARK

The Head of Community Services presented the report and the Leisure Services Team
Manager spoke to the proposed design as was circulated in colour at the meeting.

In response to a question about the materials used and what proportion were to be
recycled, the Head of Community Services advised that this would be considered in the
procurement process. He added that lots of walkways would be grassed, to reflect the
national forest theme.

In response to a member inquiry about the project’s funding, the Head of Community
Services advised that approximately £300,000 would be from external funding sources to
undertake the work; day to day maintenance would come from existing budgets.

In response to a question about the consultation process, the Head of Community
Services advised members on how feedback was processed, the occasional challenges of
doing so, and how the project would be publicised moving forwards.

In response to a question about cycling trails, the Head of Community Services advised
that there would be hard footpaths and grassed trails — both open too both pedestrians
and cyclists.

In response to a question about wheelchair accessibility, the Head of Community Services
advised that the plans improved on what accessibility currently existed.

In response to a question about the feasibility and prudence of relying on volunteers, the
Head of Community Services advised that Earthwatch would develop a group of
volunteers and that the Council would take over if this method of maintenance stopped
being effective.

The Chair thanked Members for their comments which would be presented to Cabinet
when they considered the report on 25 July.

PROPOSALS FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A SCRUTINY COMMISSION

The Strategic Director of Place presented the report to Members and noted the comments
of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee on 11 July 2023.

A discussion was had on the general operation of the current Work Programming Group
and the consensus was that it was working well. Several Members felt that the
establishment of a Scrutiny Commission was a good way forward for the scrutiny function,

4 Chairman’s initials




however it was felt that due to the current unstable political environment, the timeframe
should be adjusted slightly so that the commission be appointed to and be operational
from Annual Council in May 2024 rather than November 2023. This suggestion was not
supported by all Members of the Committee and a thorough discussion was had.

Regarding the proposed terms of reference for the Scrutiny Commission, it was suggested
that the composition be 5 Members as detailed but with an additional member from the
largest political opposition group to be appointed as Chair.

The Infrastructure Portfolio Holder was invited to address the Committee and utilising his
experience of Scrutiny at the County Council, he spoke in support of the establishment of
the Scrutiny Commission.

Following further discussion on the comments made in relation to the terms of reference
and the implementation timeframe, it was moved by Councillor A Morley, seconded by
Councillor Lambeth and

RECOMMENDED THAT:

a) The Scrutiny Commission be operational from the Civic Year 24/25 and be appointed
to at Annual Council in May 2024.

b) The Scrutiny Commission to comprise five Councillors in political balance to include
the Chairs of both Scrutiny Committees, plus a sixth councillor from the largest
political opposition group to act as Chair.

9. SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT

The Strategic Director of Place presented the report to Members.

A Member noted that the Leicestershire County Council annual report was much more

public facing and friendly, and perhaps this demonstrated to the organisation a way to

improve the report moving forwards. Officers noted the feedback.

Although Members agreed it was useful to see the work undertaken by the Committees, it

was felt that more detail and a sharper focus on outcomes to demonstrate to the public

the hard work of the Committees would be beneficial, particularly with the Task and Finish

Groups.

The Chair thanked members for their comments.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm

The Chairman closed the meeting at 7.40 pm

5 Chairman’s initials




This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - THURSDAY, 28
SEPTEMBER 2023

Agenda Item 5.

s
%
@

O;:
Nort

orth West
Leicestershire

Title of Report THE EFFECTIVENESS OF OUR LEISURE CENTRES IN
DELIVERING HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Presented by Paul Sanders

Head of Community Services

Background Papers None Public Report: Yes, apart
from Appendix D which is
confidential

Financial Implications The financial implications are set out in Section 4 of the

report and Appendix D.

2023/24.

There is an estimated cost for utility benchmarking of
£62,721 for 2022/23 and an estimated cost of £65,000 for

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications None

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate None
Implications

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes

Reason Agenda Item To update members on the performance of the leisure
Submitted to Scrutiny partnership with Everyone Active for the period May 2022 to
Committee April 2023

Recommendations THAT COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE NOTES

AND COMMENTS ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE
LEISURE PARTNERSHIP WITH EVERYONE ACTIVE
FOR THE PERIOD MAY 2022 TO APRIL 2023.

BACKGROUND

11

The leisure partnership commenced on 1 May 2019 when Everyone Active (EA) was

appointed as the Council’s partner to manage the leisure centres in Whitwick and Ashby,
currently Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre (WCLC) and Ashby Leisure Centre and

Lido (ALCL).

1.2

As part of the performance management of the leisure centres, an annual report is

presented to Community Scrutiny Committee outlining performance for the previous



year, alongside the impacts and outcomes some of the services delivered have had on
improving the health and wellbeing of residents.

1.3  Members will receive a presentation from Council and Everyone Active officers. Attached
at Appendix A is a copy of Everyone Active’s Annual Services Report which gives more
details on service provision during the period 1 May 2022 until 30 April 2023 in addition
to the report detail below.

2. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

2.1 There are a number of key performance indicators used to monitor performance of the
leisure centres. These include:

Levels of Participation

2.1  Participation targets are set out in the contract and were initially based on historical
usage at Hermitage and Hood Park Leisure Centres. However, these have been
reviewed and revised due to the impact of the Covid pandemic.

2.2  Below is an overview of participation against targets for year four of the contract;

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Predicted 220,857 257,254 240,546 294,613 1,013,270
Actual 304,991 304,543 275,132 325,829 1,210,495
Variance 84,134 47,289 34,586 31,216 197,225
2.3 The table below highlights the monthly usage at each site against target:
Centre May lune July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr Totals
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2023 2023 2023 2023

ALC & Lido 30,552 32,886 37,309 36,766 35,556 40,256 40,128 30,167 43,432 44,882 45,138 38,296 455,368

Actual 36,653 36,177 38,068 38,740 34,161 33,264 33,248 22,276 36,087 33,482 38,119 32,667 412,882

Difference +6,101 +3,261 +758 +1,974 -1,385 - 6,992 - 6,880 -7,891 -7,345 -11,400 -7,019 -5,629 -42,486

WECLC 39,360 39,744 41,006 47,573 46,080 51,023 47480 36,658 42,681 52,908 55,789 57,600 557,902

Actual 69,606 61,435 63,052 70,021 62,622 65,735 66,316 45,921 71,284 68,681 78,436 74,444 797,493
Difference +30,246 +21,691 +12,046 +12,448 +16,542 +14,712 +18,836 +9,263 +28,603 +15,773 +22,647 +16,874 239,591
Total 69,512 72,630 78,315 84,339 81,636 91,279 87,608 66,825 26,113 97,790 | 100927 | 95,896 1,013,270
Actual 106,258 | 97612 | 101,120 | 108,761 | 96,783 98,999 99,564 68,197 | 107,371 | 102,163 | 116,555 | 107,111 1,210,435
Difference +36,347 +24,982 +22,805 24,422 +15,147 +7,720 +11,956 +1,372 +21,258 +4,373 +15,628 +11,215 197,225
2.4 Whilst participation levels have exceeded expectation at WCLC, this is in part due to a
migration of users from ALCL which has meant participation there was below target.
However, across both sites, the participation targets were exceeded by 197,225.
2.5 The table below gives an overview of targeted participation at both sites:



2.6

2.7

2.8

Participation rates by targeted groups have exceeded targets, and this can be attributed

Targeted

Target May 22 —
April 23

Actual May 22 —
April 23

Variance (+/-)

Under 5’s

48,405

67,031

Age5-10

211,120

223,994

Age 11- 16

82,115

93,532

Club Activ8 Schools

40

40

Club Acitv8 Card Holder
Usage

36%

23.1%

Over 60's

58,842

60,570

Accessible Users

1,872

2,540

Club Engagement

56

78

Community Activities

73

75

Events & Competitions

122

104

** An investigation is currently being undertaken by Everyone Active’s Head Office team as it is

believed that the data is potentially incorrect

to the following factors:

An increase in swimming lesson capacity following the opening of WCLC
An 83% uplift in attendances to Active Antz play sessions
The popularity of the Virtual Fitness Class programme with users aged 60+
A further extension of the Enrych partnership programme, to include social

activities for people with disabilities, as well as opportunities for being physically
active

¢ The addition of 23 community-based clubs to the programme, including SK8 (Roller
skating), Castle Basketball, Sturges Football and MA Kickboxing.

The number of events across the sites has reduced.This is predominantly as a result of
two factors. Firstly, the unsuitability of WCLC to host certain events and the reduced
size of the sports hall at ALCL has led to a number of cancellations and, secondly, a
number of event requests being declined so as to ensure continued community use by
regular users of the sites.

Membership Levels

The table below shows the increase in fitness members across each site:

May 2022

April 2023

Increase

WCLC

3,514

3,933

419

ALCL

1,532

1,672

140

Total

5,046

5,605

559 (10%)

29

The table below shows the increase in swimming lesson members across both sites:

May 2022

April 2023

Increase

WCLC

1,825

2,154

329

ALCL

1,490

1,378

(112)

Total

3,315

3,532

217(6.5%)




2.10

2.11

Utility Consumption

EA is committed to supporting the Council to achieve its net ambitions through the
reduction of utility consumption and carbon emissions. Interventions funded by EA and
delivered throughout the year to effect reductions include:

e The installation of a new Building Management System (BMS) which has

reduced energy usage by 20%

e Continuous daily monitoring of the BMS system as well as daily energy
monitoring
The replacement of two lido pool pumps with lower energy units
The replacement of internal lighting with LED lamps
The reduction of pool temperatures by 0.5C
The installation of lighting timers on the Ashby 3G Football Hub
Encouraging customers to use green forms of active travel

The tables below show the utility consumption at each site in 2022/23 (year four of the
contract) as compared to 2021/22 (year three). Whilst year four is baseline data for
WCLC, it highlights the following for ALCL;

e Areduction of 199,375 kwh of gas used, or 9%
e Areduction of 70,569 kwh of electricity used, or 29.5%

Partnership Year 4

Whitwick & Coalville

Ashby LC

Total

Gas (kwh)

2,108,651 kwh

2,030,354 kwh

4,139,005 kwh

Electricity (kwh)

377,216 kwh

167,156 kwh

544,372 kwh

Total (kwh)

2,485,867 kwh

2,197,510 kwh

4,683,377 kwh

Partnership Year 3

Hermitage / W&C

Ashby LC

Total

Gas (kwh)

1,376,553 kwh

2,229,729 kwh

3,606,282 kwh

Electricity (kwh)

400,510 kwh

237,725 kwh

638,235 kwh

Total (kwh)

1,777,063 kwh

2,467,454 kwh

4,244,517 kwh

3.1

3.2

OUTCOMES

The contract initiated the appointment of an Active Communities Manager which is
integral to ensuring delivery of outcomes. Although employed by EA, a large proportion
of their time is spent working as part of the NWL Health and Wellbeing team to ensure
there is a joined up and synergised approach to delivering outcomes and supporting
delivery of the NWL Health and Wellbeing Strategy and targeted groups within the Sport
and Physical Activity Commissioning Plan. This work is underpinned by delivery of the
EA Community Wellbeing Action Plan, and the 2022/23 version of this can be found at
Appendix B. The Action Plan includes a number of outcomes, some of which are
captured below, as well as case studies which show the impact the partnership has had
on the lives of various individuals.

Improving Health and Wellbeing and Reducing Health Inequalities

Examples of this include:

10



3.3

3.4

A social value return of £149,448 for NWL residents on improved physical and
mental health. This is calculated based on the health care cost savings for eight
identified health outcomes (depression, dementia, back pain, hip fractures, type
2 diabetes, colon cancer, breast cancer, and CHD/stroke) based on the reduced
risk and prevented cases combined with the reduced GP Vvisits and
psychotherapy usage for physically active people

A social value return of £493,733 for NWL residents on improved subjective
wellbeing. This refers to the increase in life satisfaction. It is calculated by
multiplying the value of increased wellbeing derived from a participant’s
engagement in sport by the number of people taking part

35 previously inactive NWL residents are now achieving 150 minutes of
moderate physical activity per week following attendance on a twelve-week
Exercise Referral Course

48 previously inactive NWL residents are now achieving two sessions of
resistance training per week following attendance on a twelve-week Exercise
Referral Course

70% of attendees of the twelve-week Exercise Referral Course stated that their
health was either somewhat better or much better than prior to the course

75% of attendees of the twelve-week Exercise Referral Course stated they
agreed or strongly agreed that they have improved or stabilised their health
condition since starting the programme

78% of attendees of the twelve-week Exercise Referral Course stated that they
were either likely or very likely to continue being active after the programme

16 previously inactive NWL residents are now achieving 150 minutes of
moderate physical activity per week following attendance on a
Cardiopulmonary Course

17 previously inactive NWL residents are now achieving two sessions of
resistance training per week following attendance on a Cardiopulmonary
Course

17 attendees of the Cardiopulmonary Course stated they were very likely to
continue with physical activity

Attendees at the Enrych session have stated ‘Football has built up my confidence
and | feel lots better’, ‘meeting new people is brilliant and | feel more fit’

A previously inactive resident who was obese and now plays Pickle Ball four
times per week having lost four stone

Case studies attached to Appendix B which evidence the impact the partnership
has had on their lives include Pickle Ball, the Exercise Referral Scheme, the
Cardiopulmonary scheme and Inclusive Play Sessions

The interventions and initiatives being delivered by the partnership extend beyond health
outcomes:

Providing Local Economic Benefit

Examples of this include:

The appointment of 48 new members of leisure centre staff who live within the
district

73 members of leisure centre staff who have secured professional
gualifications

Four attendees of the Work Live Leicestershire initiative targeting improved
physical, mental, and emotional wellbeing undertook work placements at the
leisure centres, one of whom went on to gain full-time employment

The delivery of national events that draw audiences from wider afield than
North West Leicestershire. It is anticipated the events programme delivered

11



between May 2022 and April 2023 brought the following economic benefit to
North West Leicestershire through participants using local taxi firms, hotels,

pubs, and eateries.

Attendee Type | Number of Attendees Local Spend Value Per Head (£) Value (£)
Local 19,619 £18-19 £356,870
Non-Local 8,815 £39-59 £348,986
Total 28,434 N/A £705,856

e As highlighted in the table below, a total value of £218,284 in ongoing discounted
or free usage arrangements with local community partners, a 52% uplift on the
previous year’s £144,054;

Description Number Unit Value (£) Total Value (£)
Children In The 29,147 3-30 96,185
Community (CA8)
Primary School
Children In The 14,575 4-90 71,418
Community (CA8)
Secondary School
Children In The 5,058 8-20 41,475
Community (CA8)
Upper School
Talented Athletes 11 299-90 3,299
Complimentary Annual
Membership
Adult & Child 45 4-85 218
Complimentary Swim
Pass
Disabled User 22 4-85 107
Complimentary Passes
Work Live Leicestershire 42 8-15 342
Complimentary Passes
Various Requests 107 8-15 872
Complimentary Passes
NWLDC Employee 21 8-00 168
Membership Discount
NWLDC Event & Local 5 400-00 3,900
Team Sponsorship
School Sports Partnership 6 50-00 300
(SSP) Events
Total £218,284

Supporting Safe and Inclusive Neighbourhoods
3.5 Examples of this include:

e A social value return of £225,552 for NWL residents on improved social and
community development. This represents the reduction in crime rates for young
males and the social capital based on improved networks, trust, and reciprocity

e The rolling out of Making Every Contact Count (MECC) training to EA staff,
following the Active Communities Manager becoming an accredited tutor

e Working in partnership with the Youth Justice System, seven children and young
people identified as likely to participate in anti-social behaviour have been
engaged in using the leisure centres

12



3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

e A case study attached to Appendix B highlights the impact the Youth Justice
System partnership work has had on transforming the life of a twelve-year old
child

Educating, protecting and providing opportunities for young people

Examples of this include:

e A social value return of £9,265 for NWL residents on improved individual
development. This refers to the improvement in educational attainment and
higher starting salaries gained through participating in sport at university

e The appointment of 29 new members of leisure centre staff aged under 19

e Supporting delivery of the Leicester Tigers RFC Employability Programme at
Stephenson’s College which resulted in eight students obtain a Sports Leaders
Award, two of whom went on to have work placements utilising their qualifications
in the leisure centres

e Two apprenticeships delivered, both of whom are now employed in the leisure
centres

e One work experience placement delivered who is now employed in the leisure
centres.

Providing high quality services

Examples of this include:
e ALCL secured a ‘Very Good’ Quest assessment banding
e WCLC was shortlisted in the 2022 annual UK Fitness Awards in the ‘Best
Newcomer’ category.

A copy of the 2023/24 EA Community Wellbeing Action Plan can be found at Appendix
C.

FINANCIAL PEFORMANCE

The contract with EA stipulates that a management fee will be paid annually. Details of
this can be found in Appendix D.

In addition to the management fee, there are two further factors within the leisure
contract which impact on the Council’s financial position. These are surplus share and
utility benchmarking.

Surplus Share

As part of the contract, EA has projected their income and expenditure for each site on
an annual basis. Any surplus above the financial projections, based on a rolling three-
year average, results in a profit share between EA and the Council. Details of this can
also be found in Appendix D.

Utility Benchmarking

The current leisure contract with EA includes a utility benchmarking clause which allows
either party to call for a utility benchmarking exercise if energy prices increase or
decrease by amounts greater than inflation.

This is a standard clause within the sector recommended by Sport England as best
practice through their procurement methodology template for leisure contracts. This

13



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

approach was an integral aspect of the Council’s decision making at Cabinet in 2017
and 2018 to appoint a leisure partner.

Utility benchmarking is included in leisure contracts to ensure that councils only pay for
the actual utility costs and leisure partners don’t price in risk factors for increased utilities
as part of their submission bids which may never occur and, therefore, the council ends
up paying for inflated utility costs. In addition, it only relates to increased prices and EA
take the risk on increased consumption.

As a result of the significant increases in energy costs, EA has triggered the utility
benchmarking during the financial year 2022/23. Officers have at this stage predicted a
likely exposure of £62,721. In addition, there is an anticipated cost of £65,000 for utility
benchmarking in 2023/24.

Any surplus share generated in 2022/23 or 2023/24 will be used to offset the costs of
utility benchmarking. From 2023/24, any additional costs above and beyond the amount
of the surplus share generated will be covered from the management fee, meaning the
income as highlighted in Appendix D may be reduced.

In order to help mitigate against the impact of rising utility costs, EA has taken a number
of actions as highlighted in section 2.10. In addition, in partnership with EA, the Council
will be submitting a bid to the recently announced Sport England Swimming Pool
Support Fund (Capital) for solar panels at both WCLC and ALCL to complement the
existing panels already in situ at WCLC. The application process for the fund opens on
4 October and closes on 17 October.

Policies and other considerations, as appropriate

Council Priorities: Insert relevant Council Priorities:

- Supporting Coalville to be a more vibrant,
family-friendly town

- Support for businesses and helping people into
local jobs

- Our communities are safe, healthy and
connected

Policy Considerations:

Supporting delivery of the NWL Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and the Zero Carbon Project

Safeguarding:

None

Equalities/Diversity:

None

Customer Impact:

Ensuring customers have access to high quality
and affordable leisure facilities

Economic and Social Impact:

As highlighted within the report

Environment, Climate Change and
Zero Carbon:

As highlighted within the report.

Consultation/Community
Engagement:

None

14




Risks:

Utility benchmarking costs may be higher than
estimated but this will be monitored and reported
as part of the financial performance management
monitoring on a periodic basis.

Officer Contact

Paul Sanders
Head of Community Services
paul.sanders@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

15



mailto:paul.sanders@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LEISURE SERVICE PARTNERSHIP .
3 everyone
ACTIVE

Nort WWest
Leicestershire  YEAR 4 - MAY 2022 - APRIL 202

strict Counc

Whitwick & Coalville LC and Ashby LC & Lido

e

i
]

‘
7 ! %)
/A g 13 i e
A Tl :’ a
7 ! ey
L

/4-,4- G- urﬂ’ﬁ 7k\,,;-\ {

- A1) H




é
CONTENTS

1. Scope Of Report And Definitions 3
2. Services Specification Performance Requirement Reference 3
3. Participation .

e 3.1Swimming

e 3.2 Gym and Group Exercise Classes (Other)

e 3.3 Sports and Activities 6

e 3.4 Events

e 3.5 Overall Participation

e 3.6 Partnerships Year 5 |
4. Authority Priorities / Outcomes

e 4.1 Improving Health and Wellbeing and Reducing Health Inequalities

e 4.2 Social Values i

e 4.3 Providing Local Economic Benefit 12 -

e 4.4 Supporting Safe & Inclusive Neighborhoods | -

e 4.5 Educating, Protecting, and Providing Opportunities For Young People |

e 4.6 Providing High Quality Services | >

e 4.7 Sustainability and Environmental Improvement 2
5. Programme and Events 19 2
6. Community Wellbeing Action Plan & Targeted Groups C

e 6.1Under5’s >

e 6.2Age5-10 [

e 6.3Agell-16 w

e 6.4 Club Activ8 Schools Participation & Usage 22 m

e 6.50ver 60’s X

e 6.6 Accessible Users <

e 6.7 Club Engagement a

e 6.8 Community Activities m

e 6.9 Events & Competitions w
7. Customer Engagement o)

e 7.1 Marketing 27 m

e 7.2 Community Engagement x
8. Service B

e 8.1 Customer Feedback, Including Satisfaction Ratings and Complaints O

e 8.2 Maintenance Of Buildings, Plant, and Equipment o)

e 83 Equ.ment Inventory 33 g

e 8.4 Cleaning >

e 8.5 Service Improvement

e 8.6 Service Interruptions 2

e 8.7 Free Activities and Community Contributions I('I"I’
9. Quality Assurance

e 9.1 Internal Audits A

e 9.2 External Audits & Inspections 39 I %

e 9.3 Quest Accreditation O
10. Health & Safety

e 10.1 Major Incident Reports o EI

e 10.2 Accident Analysis

e 10.3 Statutory Inspections
11. Environmental

e 11.1 1SO14001 43

e 11.2 DEC

e 11.3 Energy Consumption
12. Financial 16

e 12.1 Operational Income and Expenditure |
13. Annual Reporting Schedule 46 "
14. Appendices - a7 —

e 14.1 Social Values /14.2 EA & NWLDC Community Wellbeing Plan I

18 :.;‘.3: /.
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



1. Scope of Report and Definitions

The Annual Services Report collates two main report functions in one concise document.

e Summary of Monthly Performance Requirements
e Analysis Of The Annual Performance Requirements

This Annual Services Report also meets the reporting need of the Authority’s Outcomes strategic
Objective 1 — Improve the Health and Wellbeing of Residents, as detailed in 1.5 of the Services
Specification. In addition to that it contributes to the ethos of other objectives, such as providing local
economic benefit, supporting safe and inclusive neighborhoods, providing opportunities for young
people, providing high quality services, and being environmentally aware and proactive.

The Annual Reporting Schedule is shown in Section 13. Copies of these reports sit within EA’s L-Drive.
In addition to that NWLDC set up a shared drive in 2022, in which these documents are stored and
collectively accessed.

The Performance Monitoring Report is a document submitted monthly, detailing outcomes against the
respective headings identified in the Monthly Performance Requirements, including the measurement
of delivery to that point, and any failures to meet the performance standards as set out in the Services

Specification.

2. Services Specification Performance Requirement Reference

The table below references the Services Specification performance requirement.

Services Specification Services Specification Services Annual Services
Performance Requirements Performance Reporting | Specification Report Reference
Programme of Use Part 1C & D — Availability | 1.22.11 & 1.22.31 | Programme and Events
Equipment Part 1D — Availability 1.24 Service
Maintenance of Building Plant Part 1C - Monthly 1.16 Service
Equipment
Cleaning Part 1C— Monthly 1,11 Service
Environment Management Part 1C— Monthly 1.12 Environment
Customer Complaints and Feedback | Part 1C— Monthly 1.13 Service
NWL Physical Activity, Health & Sports'DeveIopment &
Economic Support Outcomes Part 1C — Monthly 1.19a Reducing Health
Framework. inequalities
Annual Marketing Plan Part 1C— Monthly 1.19.17 Customer
Major Incident Reporting Part 1C— Monthly 1.19.c Health and Safety
Lighting Report Part 1D- Annual 1.31 Health and Safety
Fire Certificate Part 1D — Annual 1.23.7 Health and Safety
Electrical Certificates Part 1C - Annual 1.16.7 Health and Safety
Operational Expenditure and Income | Part 1C— Monthly 1.19.63 Financial
Performance Monitoring Report Part 1C— Monthly 1.19.63 Scope of Report
Annual Services Report Part 1C - Annual 1.19.65 Scope of Report
Annual Outcomes Report Part 1B — Annual 1.5 Authority Priorities /
Outcomes
Quest Accreditation Part 1D — Annual 1.6 Quality Assurance
Qarticipation Targets Part 1D — Monthly 1.7 Participation

3 19 :;‘5: /.
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council




45% swim __a

Participation Growth

1,210,435
User Visits

47% Usage
Growth

Ashby Lido - /‘ 61% Fitness Gym 166% Virtual Class
94 Years Young & Class Growth Usage Growth .—J’l :

-
ll Social value%..

Generated - 878,003 |

Most Successful Holiday :

23% Sport & .
Activity Scheme (EA East Region)

Activity Growt

A

PARTNERSHIP YEAR 4 HEADLINE NEWS
o B
Active Awards 2023 National Fitness Awards 2022
”~ » // 7 /

P, "

—_—

.
s
/ / U

- A V s
78 Weekly 73 Colleagues Secure 48 New District i" -
Activity Partners Professional Quallflcatlons Based Employees
.. 7 Q\' ,l./

| rd - ’ | 7
' ) ! 4
ALy

97% LED Lighting Quest Excellence - ALC & Lido 705,856 - Economic
@ ALC & Lido ¥ Environmental Module ¥ Value Generated ¢

o e
North West everyone
Lelcestershlre ACTIVE

District Council




38% Increase - Under ALC & Lido - Quest

3 25 Community Wellbeing
Outcomes Delivered |

5’s Participation u ‘Very Good’ Banding

66 Events 40 Schools Registered to CA8 ~ °* 23 New Clubs &
Held Highest Since Scheme Started (2005) Sports Activities 1{

W&CLC - BREEAM 36% Increase - Accessible Ashby 3G Football
Excellent Rating\g— User Participation | Hub Opened X,

PARTNERSHIP YEAR 4 HEADLINE NEWS

ALC & Lido - 4.1/5.0 W&C LC - 4.3/5.0
Google Reviews Google Reviews
68,701 EA Card 'ﬁr 6.42 Complaints Per
Holders within NWL| 10,000 Visits —eusst—

0.98 Accidents Per
10,000 Visits

: ®
Nort ] eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



B o

3. Participation

The period May 2022 — April 2023 represented the fourth
year of the council’s partnership with Everyone Active,
following the decision to outsource its leisure centre
service from May 2019.

The year commenced eleven weeks after the opening of
the £23 million Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre, and
on the back of a short period of both unprecedented, and
to a degree unexpected usage growth when aligned to
Everyone Active’s tender submission of 2018.

During the period 14th February 2022 (day the new centre opened) and 30th April 2022, average
weekly usage levels increased by 250%, with fitness memberships rising from 1,472 to 3,514, and swim
lesson pupils from 1,442 to 1,825; However, whilst these figures were understandably celebrated and
deemed highly encouraging, they included a degree of swim pupil customer migration from Ashby
Leisure Centre & Lido that has subsequently continued.

The success of the new centre continued well into Partnership Year 4, and within certain facility areas

continues to do so; However due to a combination of facility capacity limitations and increased local

competition particularly within swim lesson delivery, the following Participation sub sections and

associated tables capture a clear plateauing of growth. /

everyone
ACTIVE



3.1 Swimming

Participation for Swimming and Swimming Lessons combined was
529,476 compared to 365,023 in 2021/22. A 45% year on year
increase.

These figures can be attributed to four main factors, with the former
being the main contributor; -

=8

E < AP~ o

> Increased capacity, and improved quality of facilities within the new Whitwick & Coalville
Leisure Centre.

» Associated impact on Swim Lesson pupil numbers.

> Improved programming, including the re-introduction of children and family fun-based
sessions.

» Customers continuing to positively engage with pre-bookable sessions, in the knowledge that
each comes with a maximum number cap.

In terms of the first of these, the former Hermitage Leisure Centre had a six-lane pool and small
‘Trough’ (as it was affectionately known) that acted as a balance tank but was used by adults with
small children and for entry level swim lessons. Compared to this the new centre’s main pool consists
of eight lanes, supported by a dedicated learner pool with moveable floor that can also be used for
fitness classes.

An increased pool footprint meant that we were able to offer more swim class provision within the
same time slots, which allied to greatly improved changing and support facilities appealed to the swim
lesson market. This resulted in pupil numbers at the new centre rising from 1,825 to 2,154 over the
course of Partnership Year 4, however Ashby’s decreased from 1,490 to 1,378. Likewise, this increased
capacity allowed us to introduce additional programme slots to casual and lane swimming, as well as
fun-based family and child sessions.

Whilst its impact has diminished over time, one of the positive impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic on
pool related activity was the introduction of pre-bookable swimming, which was continued beyond the
lifting of restrictions. Customer feedback consistently echoed a message of support for pre-bookable
swimming for all the indoor pools and Lido at Ashby, with users able to see on-line that sessions were
limited in terms of numbers (although this had always been in place) and that they could guarantee
themselves a place within them as opposed to leaving things to chance.

This had proved to be particularly popular with users of the Lido and led to an immediate cessation of
the historic long-term issue of restless and occasionally volatile queues of users, sometimes denied the
opportunity to use the facility due to unexpected or high demand. It also allowed the staff team to
better plan rotas and resource levels.

Cold Water Swimming sessions had been trialed at Ashby Lido in September 2021, representing the
first time that this had taken place since heating was introduced to the facility. The sessions were
implemented as part of the collaborative partnership with the Ashby Lido User Group, and on the back
of meeting the agreed target of ‘cost neutral delivery’, they returned in May 2022. Due to a major re-
lining project, Cold Water Swimming will be moved from May to September 2023.

The Lido enjoys its 94th birthday this year and remains the last standing public lido facility within the
East Midlands. In recognition of this, an historic timeline feature has been implemented on pool side in
advance of the 2023 Lido season. Within it, it captures the facilities rich and proud history since its
opening in 1929 in image and narrative format.

; 23 :.:.'5: /o
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council




S
3.2 Gym and Group Exercise Classes (Other) (2022/23 - 488,108 vs 2021/22 -302,569) \

Participation in the fitness gym and exercise classes across the two sites was 488,108 for the
Partnership Year, compared to 302,569 in 2020/21. A 61% rise.

In line with swimming, this was predominantly attributable to
the impact of the new centre, which had a seen a 139% rise in
fitness members between its opening and the start of
Partnership Year 4. The centre started the year with 3,514
members and finished with 3,933, a growth of 12% over the
year, with membership at Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido
increasing by 9% from 1,532 to 1,672.

Each centre lost 33% of its fithness members because of the Covid-19 pandemic, which was in keeping
with the wider corporate picture seen across the 220 centres that Everyone Active managed
nationally at the time. As a result of this, cross site membership pricing was reduced initially in 2021
from £46-00 to £24-99 in July 2021, before increasing to £34-99 in October 2021 in order to help
facilitate a recovery exercise of this magnitude.

Membership costs within NWL had been amongst some of the highest within Everyone Active’s East
Region of 70 facilities, given the pricing levels that had been inherited from NWLDC (£39-99 per
month at April 2019); However, given that the centres lost 33% of their members due to the Covid-19
pandemic, prices were dropped to just £24-99 in July 2021 when life began to return to a form of
normal. Pricing was subsequently increased to £34-99 in October 2021 and £37-99 in January 2023,
with a view to a return to the previous level in September 2023. Given the £1.2 million refurbishment
of Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido in 2019/20 and replacement of the former Hermitage Leisure Centre
with the new £23 million Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre, membership pricing remains

gi competitive.

Fitness Class participation forms 488,108 fitness usages advised, with 190,363 fitness class visits
recorded in 2022/23 compared to 139,053 in 2021/22, a 37% increase. Whilst much of this is -
attributable to the increase in members, the uptake of virtual classes has continued to prove a

success. These are becoming increasingly prevalent within the wider leisure industry and are provided

to support the instructor led fitness class programme and allow users that are reticent to undertake

instructor led classes with the opportunity to try them at a length of time and pace to suit. This often
subsequently leads to a migration into instructor led classes.

Unfortunately, accurate measurement of Virtual class attendance is difficult, since many of those
attending simply migrate to or from the fitness gym following their work out, however 18,572 visits
were recorded, representing a 166% increase of pre-booked recorded attendance between
Partnership Year 3 and 4.

3 24 s

{ ]
N.orf West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Counc



“l ~ L,
‘_ S\
‘s‘ p .

3.3 Sports and Activities (2022/23 - 164,417 vs 2021/22 -133,993)

Sports and Activities realised a combined usage of 164,417 compared to 133,933 in Partnership Year 3,
representing a 23% increase.

This was down to five contributary factors, namely having a full years’ worth of benefit from a 25%
increased sports hall footprint at the new centre compared to the former Hermitage, the introduction
of what have subsequently proved to be highly successful ‘in-house’ delivered activity sessions, the
addition of equally successful partner activities, the securing of a high profile block booking, and
hosting the most successful Holiday Activity scheme within Everyone Active’s East Region (South) area.

As a rule of thumb, sports hall utilisation within leisure centre’s nationally is 40 -50%, due to limited
day time demand, however whilst Ashby’s Partnership Year 4 usage was 49%, Whitwick & Coalville’s
was 67%. This was particularly impressive given that the sports hall is of eight court design against the
standard four or six usually found. This was delivered on the back of some excellent work by our Active
Communities Manager, who led on the implementation of in-house delivered gymnastics and
trampoline weekly courses through which over 160 youngsters attend each week, and the securing of
the NWL Volleyball League who use the centre as its base for all league fixtures with 200 players
attending each week.

In addition to that an average 25 users per week attend the inclusive user sessions that we deliver in
partnership with Enrych to provide opportunities for adults with disabilities or long-term health issues.
Our Holiday Activity programme are delivered through a further partner in TayPlay, and regularly
attract between 20-45 daily usages at Ashby and 50—70 at Whitwick, easily the best attended within
the 23 leisure centres that make up Everyone Active’s East Region (South).

3.4 Events (2022/23 - 28,434 vs 2021/22 - 22,286)

Events realised a cross site usage of 28,434 compared to 22,286 in Partnership Year 3, representing a
28% increase.

Both the former Hermitage Leisure Centre and Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido enjoyed a long and proud
tradition of hosting a diverse programme of events, ranging from local and regional fayres and boxing
shows to internationally acclaimed occasions such as Armageddon Darts and the Larpcon Festival.

In Partnership Year 1, the centre’s realised 34,990 event visits as a part of this success, however the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic meant that in Partnership Year 2 that figure dropped to zero with no
events taking place.

At the start of Partnership Year 3 several restrictions were still in place, however over the course of 31
events, 22,286 usage visits were subsequently realised, representing a 64% return on previous pre-
Covid numbers.

Due to the design of the sports hall at the new Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre, which has a sprung
floor and no tiered seating, the facilitating of previously hosted large scale spectator events such as
Armageddon Darts and One Nation Boxing at the venue are impractical. As such, tiered seating was
moved from the former Hermitage Leisure Centre to Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido, with a view to
migrating as many events as possible to the latter, including medium sized spectator events such as
Megaslam Wrestling and Motiv8 Boxing; however, there was an acceptance that the continued hosting
of major spectator events was no longer possible.

With that in mind a 75% return to Partnership Year 1 usage levels was seen as success, with the
eventual 81% being achieved through the securing of new non-spectator events such as guilds and
fayres, and additional bookings from the likes of Megaslam and Motiv8.

9 25 ,':“;:

{ ]
N_orf West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Counci



h

3.5 Overall Participation

Overall participation for the period May 2022 — April 2023 was 1,210,435 compared to 823,871 for the

same period the previous year. A 47% increase. It was broken down as follows:
Table 3.5.1 — 2022/23 Participation

May 22 June 22 July 22 Aug 22 Sept 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 Total
Activity 8395 5,133 4,527 5,519 4,641 5,648 6,067 4,165 6,671 5,902 6,577 5,869 69,114
Gym 27,096 | 23,134 | 22618 | 24,659 | 21,385 | 23,210 | 24,584 | 18,509 | 29,282 | 26,565 | 29,513 | 27,190 | 297,745
Sports 7864 7,023 6,489 6,393 7,950 8,073 8,403 7,265 8,746 8,695 9,905 8,497 95,303
Swim 44827 | 45,187 | 51,353 | 55070 | 43,696 | 43,221 | 40,104 | 26,880 | 42,649 | 43,747 | 45851 | 46,891 | 529,476
Other 15977 | 15785 | 15683 | 16.020 | 16,057 | 16972 [ 17,101 | 9,588 | 17,048 | 16,259 | 17,809 | 16,064 | 190,363
Events 2100 1,350 450 1,100 3,054 1,875 3,305 1,730 2,975 995 6,900 2,600 28,434
Total 106,259 | 97,612 | 101,120 | 108,761 | 96,783 | 98,999 | 99,564 | 68,137 | 107,371 | 102,163 | 116,555 | 107,111 | 1,210,435
Table 3.5.2 — 2021/22 Participation
May 21 June 21 July 21 Aug 21 Sept 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 Total
Activity 134 199 22 829 1,013 1,160 1,543 1,504 1,886 1,947 3,958 7,872 | 22,067
Gym 12,829 | 13,692 | 11,503 | 10,607 | 10,261 9,309 9,792 6,969 | 11,501 | 16,685 | 26,146 | 24,221 | 163,516
Sports 5,253 5,220 5,870 6,407 7,851 | 10,823 | 12,006 9,525 | 12,230 | 11,516 | 15,943 9,282 | 111,926
Swim 20,993 | 23,261 | 28,338 | 30438 | 25759 | 26,168 | 25,159 | 17,257 | 27,699 | 41521 | 46,978 | 51,453 | 365,023
Other 10,502 | 10,419 | 11,026 | 11,408 | 12,106 | 12,556 | 12,661 7,645 | 12,226 9,768 | 14,498 | 14,238 | 139,053
Events 1,500 400 816 900 600 2,350 3,900 1,575 1,500 1,470 4,350 2,925 | 22,286
Total 51,211 | 53,191 | 57,575 | 60,589 | 57,590 | 62,366 | 65061 | 44,475 | 67,042 | 82,907 | 111,873 | 109,991 | 823,871
Predicted usage targets for Partnership Year 4 were requested by NWLDC in January 2023, meaning
that they were set prior to both the opening of the new Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre, and the
period (14/02/23 — 30/04/23) in which early usage patterns and the impact on Ashby Leisure Centre &
Lido could be assessed. As such, accuracy was always going to be quite challenging. Subsequently
usage of 1,210,435 was realised against predicted usage of 1,013,270, representing a 19% positive
difference.
Centre May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr Totals
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2023 2023 2023 2023
ALC & Lido 30,552 32,886 37,309 36,766 35,556 40,256 40,128 30,167 43,432 44,882 45,138 38,296 455,368
Actual 36,653 36,177 38,068 38,740 34,161 33,264 33,248 22,276 36,087 33,482 38,119 32,667 412,882
Difference +6,101 +3,291 +759 +1,974 -1,395 - 6,992 - 6,880 -7,891 -7,345 -11,400 -7,019 -5,629 -42,486
W&CLC 39,360 39,744 41,006 47,573 46,080 51,023 47,480 36,658 42,681 52,908 55,789 57,600 557,902
Actual 69,606 61,435 63,052 70,021 62,622 65,735 66,316 45,921 71,284 68,681 78,436 74,444 797,493
Difference +30,246 +21,691 +22,046 +22,448 +16,542 +14,712 +18,836 +9,263 +28,603 +15,773 +22,647 +16,874 239,591
Total 69,912 72,630 78,315 84,339 81,636 91,279 87,608 66,825 86,113 97,790 100,927 95,896 1,013,270
Actual 106,259 97,612 101,120 108,761 96,783 98,999 99,564 68,197 107,371 102,163 116,555 107,111 1,210,435
Difference +36,347 +24,982 +22,805 24,422 +15,147 +7,720 +11,956 +1,372 +21,258 +4,373 +15,628 +11,215 197,225
3.6 Next Year - Partnership Year 5
Due to a combination of investment in Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido, the impact of Covid-19, and the
opening of the new Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre, Partnership Year 5 will represent the first year
in which comparative year on year data can be applied. Strictly speaking that isn’t true, as the final
element of the new centre, namely the Trim Trail is due to be implemented, however this was delayed
due to an intent by both NWLDC and Everyone Active to see the trail included within the eagerly
anticipated Eco Park that is due to be implemented within the Hermitage Recreation Ground footprint.
10 26 /.

ACTIVE




Table 3.6.1 :- Partnership Dynamics Years 1-5

I MUIC |

Partnership Year Dates Dynamics/Issues

1 2019/20 Contract started in May 2020 + Ashby LC & Lido refurbishment +
Centres closed due to Covid-19

2 2020/21 Ongoing closure + Subsequent closures + Reduced programme and
usage

3 2021/22 Ongoing closure + Restrictions in place + Hermitage LC closes +
Whitwick &Coalville LC opens

4 2022/23 First full years base data secured

5 2023/24 First year of comparative year on year data can be applied

Partnership Year 5 will come with both challenges and exciting opportunities and developments.

The new Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre promised much, however, it’s fair to say that the degree
of its early successes has surprised both Everyone Active and NWLDC. Having increased from 1,472 at
Hermitage Leisure Centre to 3,933, fitness membership has plateaued, however those relinquishing
their memberships are in the main not critical of the centre or its programme, but more of the size of
the fitness gym.

Within the industry it is recognised that the ideal member to station (item of fitness equipment) ceiling
ratio is 1:30, however at the end of Partnership Year 4 that figure was 1:36. Whilst the numbers are
impressive, health monthly sales levels are being matched by leavers. With that in mind, Everyone
Active are currently looking at potential options to address the issue, which will be shared with NWLDC
for consideration.

Local swim lesson competition remains a real issue for the centres. Where a typical centre might
expect to see one local competitor (in many cases none, or with a sister centre representing the
closest competitor), however within NWL we have four. Of those, three are relatively large in terms of
pupils and market share and are developing both pool space and pupil numbers. The impact of this can
be seen within our own centre’s pupil numbers, where we had 3,532 on 01/05/23 and 3,569 on
12/09/22.

Swim Lesson prices within Everyone Active’s North West Leicestershire contract remain the lowest in
the East Region (South), so simply lowering prices isn’t a ready made option, especially in light of the
significant rise in utility costs. Discussion on how best address this concern are ongoing at the time of
writing this report.

Sports Hall utilisation levels at Ashby are at the top end of national average parameters, whilst
Whitwick & Coalville’s utilisation sits nearly 20% higher than that. Whilst we continue to work with
partners as well as identifying potential additional in-house activities, the realities are that improving
on what is already a strong position will be challenging. It’s no coincidence that at the time of writing,
Whitwick & Coalville has been shortlisted for the 2023 UK Active, Best Newcomer Award, on the back
of the growth of its activity programme across the past year.

As stated earlier, the Eco Par/Trim Trail is an exciting multi-partner biodiversity project that will
hopefully be realised in Partnership Year 5, with Everyone Active having a key role to play within it.

In addition to that we have ambitious plans to develop the Climbing Wall programme at Whitwick &
Coalville and potentially extend the Lido programme at Ashby to offer cold water swimming and other
activities either side of the main summer element. The Contract Manager has also recently become a
Director of the Ashby BID (Business Improvement District) with a view to ensuring that the leisure
centre and Lido are considered at the forefront of event programming and initiatives.

11 27 :.'o';-

3 ®
N.orf West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Counc



4. Authority Priorities / Outcomes

The outcomes achieved and highlighted in this Annual Services
Report, contribute to the ethos and achievement of the strategic
objectives highlighted by the Council as detailed in the Authority
Outcomes section — 1.5 of the Services Specification.

There are five authority outcomes; - Providing local economic
benefit, supporting safe and inclusive neighbourhoods, educating
protecting and providing opportunities for young people, providing
high quality services, and sustainability and environmental
improvements.

NWLDC and Everyone Active agreed to incorporate all these (other than sustainability and
environmental improvements) into the collaboratively produced Community Wellbeing Action Plan
2022/23 (CWAP) that is attached to this report. Within the CWAP report the outcomes are listed within
a table, with each having a key reference (A,B,C,D,E). These were then referenced within the 31 CWAP
targets, with year end and quarterly updates provided.

Sustainability and Environmental Improvement outcomes are covered in the separate Energy
Engagement Plan — Document 6 Annual Reporting Compliance

This CWAP demonstrates that through working in partnership with the Council, the investment and
delivery of high-quality activities is making a significant and valuable contribution to the community, as
well achieving the authority’s corporate goals.

Improving the Health and Wellbeing of residents is obviously the main function, goal, and achievement
for the leisure services provision. Much of this can be measured by quantitative statistics as highlighted
by the participation statistics in this report; however, the outcomes achieved also contribute to other
Authority Priority objectives, which are more qualitative.

4.1: Improving Health and Wellbeing and Reducing Health Inequalltles

In essence every activity-based visit to the centres (or to our satellite
programmes) contributes to improving the health and wellbeing of
local residents, with usage data relating to those activities provided
elsewhere within the report totaling 1,210,435.

Within that, several the programmes and activities that we offer, either in a standalone capacity or
delivered in conjunction with the council, contribute towards the addressing of health-related
inequalities such as age, financial resource, and accessibility to facilities etc.

Within this we continue to work with partners such as the NWL Health & Wellbeing
Team, Community Focus, Work Live Leicestershire, Enrych, Home Start, Youth
Justice, and the Children & Families Centre, collectively aiming to tackle areas of
priority including health inequalities within the district.

12

{ ]
North West ever\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.everyoneactive.com/content-hub/fitness/what-is-yoga/&psig=AOvVaw30qmSWYv4etQHGBlU9p6mr&ust=1592931225749000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCOjR3LDxleoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAK

4.2: Social Value
At the end of Partnership Year 3, Everyone Active entered a partnership

with 4Global a multi-national company that have helped clients solve '
inactivity problems, through the creation of one of the world’s most

extensive sport and activity software and data platforms. Their '
technology and know-how have made them a trusted and valued ",
partners to some of the world’s most prominent organisations, cities,

and governments, with Everyone Active seeing the benefits of securing information from their Data
Hub platform for both them and their partners such as NWLDC.

oS

An initial Social Value report was produced in June 2022, which captured Social Value for the period
June 21- May 22 measured against similar data for the period June 19 — May 20 (the period June 20 —
May 21 being severely interrupted because of the Covid-19 pandemic). This has subsequently been
followed by the issue of a report that aligns to standard reporting year models for the period April 22 —
March 23. It provides comparative data aligned to the previous year and is attached within the
appendices.

The report is broken into four subsections, which collectively provide a total Social Value (£).

Physical & Mental Health (£149,448) - Calculated based on the health care cost savings for eight
s identified health outcomes (including depression, dementia, back pain etc) based on the reduced risk

‘ and prevented cases combined with the reduced GP visits & psychotherapy usage for physically active
e people.
B
= Subjective Wellbeing (£493,733) - Refers to the increase in life satisfaction. It is calculated by
: multiplying the value of increased wellbeing derived from a participant’s engagement in sport by the
number of unique people taking part
— Individual Development (£9,265) - Refers to the improvement in educational attainment and higher
—rt starting salaries gained through participating in sport at university.

Social & Community Development (£225,552) - Represents the reduction in crime rates for young
males and the social capital based on improved networks, trust, and reciprocity.

The 2022/23 report advised a social value total within the NWL partnership of £878,003. This
= represented the highest total across the eight contracts within Everyone Active’s East Region (South),
— with the £644,506 aligned to Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre being the highest of the 25 sites that
| sit within it. Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre also enjoyed the highest year on year growth (93%),
. however this should be tempered due to the centre only opening in mid-February 2022.

Whilst the 4Global Social Value reports remain somewhat in their infancy, they are already recognised
as the industry social value measurement tool, being championed by Sport England and further
developed within Moving Communities as a standardised online survey designed for local authorities
and leisure operators to understand their local communities and support engagement. 4Global are
currently developing SVC3 in partnership with Sheffield Hallam University.

13 29 :.;oé: /o
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council




4.3: Providing Local Economic Benefit
Everyone Active have been actively championed for their
work in this area, within both the Ashby Leisure Centre &
Lido and Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre QUEST
assessments. The reports issued on the bac of each have
highlighted strength in the hosting and promotion of a
large and diverse internal and external partner delivered
activity programme, employment opportunities provided
to local residents, the impact of a nationally recognised
event programme, and the use of local suppliers and service providers.

Within our activity programme we have 78 partnership delivered weekly activity sessions running
across the two centres, including a portfolio of 16 in-house sessions. In total, 21 new activities were
added to the programme in Partnership Year 4, which included Pickleball, Clubs Complete Tots Craft,
Head over Heels Gymnastics, Hockey England Coaching, FA Inclusive Football and Enrych Fit Steps.

During Partnership Year 4 we added a total of 48 new district-based colleagues to our team, whilst
training 73 of our colleagues in professional qualifications. Additionally, 33 of our colleagues have been
trained in new roles within our centres.

This year we have employed 48 new staff members, 29 falling within the under 19 age bracket.

The Partnership Year 1 report captured £ 804,814 of economic value, either secured or brought into
the district because of the leisure centre events programme. This was based on industry advised data
at the time pointing to an average £16 per head spent within the local economy by NWL based
residents per event, and a £35 per head spend by non-district-based event attendees. Due to the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on our event programme, this figure reduced to zero in Partnership
Year 2.

The slow return of confidence allied to the staged lifting of restrictions led to the return of events to
our centres in Partnership Year 3, which resulted in 22,286 event visits. Of these 71% were locally
based, with 29% residing outside of the district. With inflation taking the spend per head of district and
non-district event attendees to £17 and £37 respectively, a total of £508,122 of economic value
secured or brought into the district as a result of events held within our centres.

Partnership Year 4 saw the number of event visits rise to 28,434, with the industry advised spend per
head rising to £39-59 for non-residents and £18-19 for non-residents. With a 31% / 69% split, a total of
£705,856 economic value was secured or brought into the district as a result of events held within our
centres. A year-on-year increase of £197,734.

Table 4.3.1 — Event Aligned NWL Economic Benefit - Partnership Year 4

Attendee Type Number of Attendees Local Spend Value Per Head (£) Value (£)
Local 19,619 £18-19 £356,870
Non-Local 8,815 £39-59 £348,986
Total 28,434 N/A £705,856
s g - s
14 30 ::O:: /o
NorthWest | everyone

Leicestershire

District Council



https://www.b-buddies.com/biking-buddies-courses

4.4 Supporting Safe and Inclusive Neighborhoods

One of our key colleague developmental focuses for Partnership Year 4 was to have a trained Making
Every Contact Count (MECC) approach trainer. Since subsequently becoming an accredited tutor for
the course, our Active Communities Manager (ACM) has been part of the Leicestershire County Council
network for development of MECC. Additionally, the accreditation has allowed our ACM to deliver
sessions for NWLDC staff to help diversify their conversational skills, consequently helping to support
all residents. On the back of this, our ACM is currently in the planning stages of helping to roll this
training out with teams of colleagues across the two centres, as well as regionally for Everyone Active.

During Partnership Year 4, Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre hosted a collaborative school event to
help teach children basic and essential skills. The event was attended by eight schools and 120 children
who amongst other things were taught basic communication skills, the understanding of inclusive
needs, and basic first aid. The event proved to be such a success that it will now become an annual

- addition to our ever-growing portfolio of diverse events.

In partnership with Enrych, NWLDC, and Active Together, Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre hosted a
Health & Wellbeing event focusing on safe and inclusive provisions within the district, helping to raise
understanding and profile for inclusive needs. The event featured 26 stall holders and included a
programme of activities in which over 100 attendees participated.

- Menphys, a charitable organising who aim to support Children and Young People with Disabilities to - -
have equal choices and opportunities, saw their inclusive provision sessions became an increasingly
popular feature within the two centres over the course of Partnership Year 4, with an additional -

> session added to at Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre towards the end of it. - 4)

) In addition to that we entered a partnership with Choices for Life, a locally based organisation who aim

3 to provide an active community in which people feel safe, valued, and supported, through the -
. provision of wellbeing and healthy life choice opportunities. As part of that their users attend our -

g centres for pool and sports hall-based activities.
-

~

4

.

-

A further addition to our programme during Partnership Year 4 was Walking Football at Ashby Leisure B .
Centre & Lido, on the back of the activity being highlighted as a need by local residents within our
annual open day, as well as through our 50+ User Group.

A further key target within our 22/23 Community Wellbeing Plan was engagement with the Youth

Justice System (YJS), or a similar organisation to assist in the reduction of crime. We subsequently set

up a partnership which provides centres usage opportunities to children and young people on YIS

projects, to allow centre use as an intervention to re-offending as well has boosting physical, mental,

and emotional wellbeing. We currently have seven people accessing the scheme on a weekly basis and ‘
are looking at capturing case studies to evidence the benefits gained. '

i » — ——
T m—

&~
.
-~ > >
-

V'

A

-

W
4",

—
oo /

NorthWest | everyone

Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



Partnership Year 4 saw our Active Communities Manager (ACM) play an
integral part in assisting Active Together (organisation focused on
making physical activity and sport more accessible and part of our
everyday lives across Leicestershire, Leicester, and Rutland) help
promote and educate Children & Young Persons (CYP) regarding the g
opportunities within leisure, particularly those offered or delivered by Everyone Actlve As part of thls
he was invited to Sports Park - Loughborough, to be interviewed in relation to the inclusion of
promotions and educational material within the Active Partnerships website. This information is also
being sent to schools, colleges, and universities to help promote the leisure industry as an employment
sector of choice.

To further promote employment opportunities within the leisure industry, our ACM has developed our
already highly acclaimed work placement pathway with various local educational partners. This has
been facilitated amendments to our core work placement programme modules, as well as through
attending mock interviews with students aligned to these education providers to help provide them
with invaluable self-promotion skills and experience. We have also been a key stake holder in the SMB
Group’s (Brooksby, Melton & Stephenson, Colaville) Employers Skills Forum. This forum includes other
professions such as the police, emergency services, sports clubs, and other professional entities, who
engage with the college to help with work placements, events, and employment.

One of our core local objectives is for our centres is to be seen as an integral partner in creating
opportunities for young people. To help achieve this we facilitated more young people’s events than
previous in Partnership Year 4, such as School, School Sports Partnership (SSP) and Health & Wellbeing
events. As part of this we were integral to several additional projects aimed a providing opportunity for
young people. The REACH programme ran by Leicestershire County Council (LCC) assists children who
are highlighted by school as at risk of exclusion, and in conjunction with them we have set up a
partnership which provides centre use as an intervention to help engage the students back into
education and provide positive experiences.

In addition to this we have worked closely with the Leicester Tigers RFC Employability Programme at
Stephenson’s College. As part of that our ACM ran a 6 week Sports Leader Award course which saw
eight students complete their qualification and all subsequently move on to work placements, two of
which were within our centres.

EA’s ACM has been a key partner during the planning stages for The People Zone, situated in Whitwick
and Thringstone. This project aims to help access funds to help build a legacy project within those
areas, focusing on ‘getting everyone moving,” and is also partnered by Active Together, NWLDC, and
local community groups and sports clubs.

{ ]
North West everyf)ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



4, 6 Prowdlng High Quality Services
> Everyone Active and NWLDC look to provide affordable services
through a combination of industry, regional, and local
* benchmarking. This has been made easier through Everyone
— Active managing most council owned leisure facilities within
Leicestershire.

Allied to, and key to this, is the role that external benchmarking
and strong levels of customer satisfaction play within the measuring of high-quality service, with
Everyone Active able to demonstrate both robust and frequent monitoring and positive outcomes.

In terms of external benchmarking, Everyone Active are current holders of several national industry
related awards such as Swim England’s ‘Operator of the Year’, whilst Whitwick & Coalville Leisure
Centre was shortlisted in the 2022 annual UK Fitness Awards, ‘Best Newcomer’ category. At more
localised level, the positive QUEST assessment outcomes (See Section 9) seen at both sites point to
high quality service provision.

Customer satisfaction and feedback is measured through a number of platforms, which include the
following; -

Single Customer View (SCV) customer feedback portal.
Social Media accounts

School service questionnaires

Bespoke surveys for Swim Lessons, Parties, Holiday Camps,
After School Sports Clubs, Adult Activities, Health Programs
and Sport Courses

Swim Passport portal.

Bespoke surveys are captured within the centre’s Business Plan, with a prime example of positive
outcome captured within the Swim Lesson Annual Survey undertaken at each site captured in section
8.1.

17 33 :.03-

North West ever)()ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.youtube.com/watch?v%3DQH7sd-5hiWU&psig=AOvVaw2__CIlDP47PdxIUstf8bDS&ust=1592933256377000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCKCXhPn4leoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

We contribute to the green agenda by committing to nationally recognised best
practice programmes such as Environmental ISO14001 management standards. This
includes implementing proactive Environmental Action Plans focused on reducing
energy and water consumption, as well as promoting green travel to staff and

. customers, and encouraging increased waste re-cycling.

=
&
-

I/

&

5

&

= / Partnership Year 4 saw the evolution of a comprehensive updated Environmental
Action Plan (Annual Reporting Schedule - Document 6) providing details and desired outcomes relating
to projects aimed at reducing utility consumption. Within this it captured that in 2022/23 we managed
to save 38% v budgeted usage on electricity and 32% vs budgeted usage on gas at Ashby LC & Lido,
while at Whitwick & Coalville we saved 25% electricity, however, Gas utilisation was 4% over budget.

The action plan also included lighting resource being progressed towards a full portfolio of LED fittings
and at the end of Partnership Year 4 this had migrated to an impressive 97% at Ashby and 100% at
W&CLC. The start of year desired implementation of a new Outdoor Pool cover at Ashby Leisure Centre
& Lido was delivered, resulting in each of the pools across the two centres having these in situ.

QUEST is the Sport England recommended Continuous Improvement Tool for leisure facilities and
sports development teams, designed to measure how effective organisations are at providing
customer service. The assessment at Hermitage LC in Partnership Year 1, had seen the assessor
comment that Environmental action planning was the “best that he could remember seeing”. In
addition to that the subsequent QUEST Prime modules that the centres were measured on in
Partnership Year 2, saw both sites assessed on environmental management, with the assessors both
commenting positively on the level and quality of environmental commitment and the way in which
customers were informed of, and actively engaged in achieving its objectives.

Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido completed the latest cycle of QUEST assessment in Partnership Year 4 and
the Environmental element of the report once again scored ‘Excellent’ and drawing similar positive
comment. This is the highest banding achievable under the Quest scoring model. As a result, the last
four assessments delivered across our centres have all been scored ‘Excellent’ in this category.

Collectively these externally delivered assessments evidence a sustained commitment to
environmentally associated best practice.

Section 11 of the report provides performance and outcome detail relating to Sustainability and
Environmental Improvements.

Y

18 34 .':‘3:

NorthWwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://foursquare.com/v/bristol-south-swimming-pool/4b058842f964a520e4ba22e3/photos&psig=AOvVaw1tlFEmlRsbSLQu3BiLsWIr&ust=1592933127449000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCMjgwLv4leoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

I

N NN 77

5. Programmes and Events

As covered within Section 4 .2 of the report, under NWLDC the centres enjoyed a strong reputation
for the diversity and scope of both its activity and event programmes, which has been continued
under Everyone Active despite the cancellation of the entire event programme in Partnership Year 2
due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. With Covid-19 regulations still in place for the first half
of Partnership Year 3, programme recovery along with the addition of new events proved
challenging, however by the end of the year 82% of previous hires had been retained going into
Partnership Year 4, despite increased competition from other local and regional events venues.

With the new Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre deemed unconducive to bar aligned events such
as darts and boxing, these were naturally lost to these competitors; However, they were replaced
with more pool based gala events. In total 66 events were held across the two centres during
Partnership Year 4.

Concerted efforts continue to be made to migrate existing events across to Ashby Leisure Centre &
Lido, whilst we continue to endeavour to convince prospective new event hirers to the venue as
opposed to Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre. Both have met with a degree of success with events
listed in red type falling into that category

. Table 5.1 —Events Held @ Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre — Partnership Year 4

Date Event
01/05/2022 Welsh Corgi Dog Show
14/05/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
15/05/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
22/05/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
26/05/2022 Collaborative Vocal Performance
09/06/2022 NWLDC - Open Consultation Evening
12/06/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
- 19/06/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
20/06/2022 Holy Cross Sports Day
21/06/2022 Health and Wellbeing Day &
23/07/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala Featuring Olympic Legends
03/09/2022 Ace Gift Fair \
— 04/09/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala X
4 14/09/2022 School Partnership Ambassadors Day
24/09/2022 Ibstock Band Competition
25/09/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
30/09/2022 Mega Slam Wrestling
02/10/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
09/10/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
12/10/2022 Castle Rock School Event
23/10/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
26/10/2022 Castle Rock School Event
04+05/11/2022 Larpcon Market
06/11/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
24/11/2022 NWL Sports Awards
26/11/2022 Coalville Swimming Gala
18/12/2022 Derby County Community Trust Activity Day
14/01/2023 Coalville Swimming Gala
28/01/2022 Guildhall Antiques Fayre
19 35 :30:: /.
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



N

\ s B s

Date Event
28/01/2023 Leicestershire County Swimming Gala
29/01/2023 Leicestershire County Swimming Gala
11/02/2023 Derek Meakin Badminton Competition

03-05/03/2023

Larpcon Event

04/03/2023 Coalville Swimming Gala
06/03/2023 Leicestershire County Council Roadshow
07/03/2023 NWL School Gala
08/03/2023 Collaborative Schools Event
12/03/2023 Coalville Swimming Gala
19/03/2023 Dark Star Volleyball Tournament
24/02/2023 NWSSP Celebration Day
26/03/2023 Coalville Swimming Gala
25/03/2023 Coalville Swimming Gala

Ashby Table 5.2 — Events Held @ Ashby Leisure Centre - Partnership Year 4

Date Event
18/04/2022 LR Antiques Fayre
30/04/2022 National Band Competition
21/05/2022 Ashby Rotary Club =- The Big Clean Up
02/06/2022 LR Antiques Fayre
07/08/2022 Aldread Dance Competition
11/08/2022 Pop Up Play Centre
18/08/2022 Pop Up Play Centre
29/08/2022 Ace Antiques Fayre
03/09/2022 Motiv8 Boxing
11/09/2022 Mum 2 Mum Market
13/11/2022 Samoyed Dog Show
20/11/2022 Hunt, Point Dog Show
03/12/2022 Motiv8 Boxing Event
10/12/2022 Ace Gift Fayre
13/12/2022 Ashby Day Nursery Xmas Fete
01/01/2023 AceAntiques Fayre
14/01/2023 Baby & Toddler Market
29/01/2023 Midland Chihuahua Show
18/03/2023 Baby & Toddler Market
24/03/2023 Mega Slam Wrestling
25/03/2023 National Band Competition
03/03/2023 Ashby 20 Road Race
10/4/2023 Ace Antiques Fayre
22/4/2023 Motiv8 Boxing Event

20

N

36 <8

N.or’;.Wes_t
Leicestershire

District Council

everyone




\

(1UPTEVATTERTTARR AR

Unfortunately, due to a combination of the limitations of Ashby, having a near 70% sports hall
utilisation occupancy at Whitwick, and a need to protect those hirers, we have also had to turn away
several additional or new events as a result.

Table 5.3 - Events Requests Declined In Order to Protect Existing Hirers — Partnership Year 4

Th Reason —
4 Event —
Seeking 3 x additional dates, however no availability @ either -
Ace Gift Fairs centre r
Seeking 2 x additional dates, however no availability @ either
Guildhall Antiques Fairs centre

Yours to Mine Car Boot
British Midland Gymnastics

Ashby too small. No availability at W&CLC

Show Ashby too small. No availability at W&CLC

Mixed Martial Arts

Competition Ashby too small. No availability at W&CLC
Karate Tournament Ashby too small. No availability at W&CLC

m—— Ladies National Shopping
Event Ashby too small. No availability at W&CLC

Carl Greaves Showcase —
Boxing Ashby too small. No availability at W&CLC

Amateur Championship

Boxing Ashby too small. No availability at W&CLC

) "
NorthWwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



6. Community Wellbeing Action Plan (including Outcomes Framework) & Targeted Groups

Due to the dynamics and nature of the Authority Outcomes within the NWL Partnership, a collective
decision was taken in 2020 to incorporate all of these (except the final one relating to Sustainability &
Environmental Improvement) into one all-encompassing collaboratively produced ‘Community
Wellbeing Plan’.

The overarching aim of the plan is to deliver against the Authority Outcomes, whilst in partnership
with NWLDC, to deliver programmes to support the health and wellbeing of residents through physical
activity, movement, and sport, capturing actions that support the NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy,
and the NWL Sport & Physical Activity Commissioning Plan.

The document was worked up over the course of Partnership Year 3 and was jointly signed off to
commence at the start of Partnership Year 4. Quarterly updates on each of the targeted outcomes
were then subsequently captured. The document sits as an appendix to the Annual Service Report and
captures the delivery of 25 of the 31 desired outcomes.

Aligned to the ‘Community Wellbeing Strategy’, monthly Performance Monitoring Reviews (PMR’s)
capture delivery, development, success, and challenges in relation to collectively agreed 10 targeted
groups. Data relating to this is captured at the rear of these documents in a dedicated Key
Performance Indicator (KPI) section. A Partnership Year 4 overview of this is captured within Table 6.1
with associated individual narrative provided within sections 6.1 — 6.9.

Table 6.1 -Targeted Groups Overview - Partnership Year 4

Targeted

Target May 22 —
April 23

Actual May 22 —
April 23

Under 5’s

48,405

67,031

Age5-10

211,120

223,994

Age 11- 16

82,115

93,532

Club Activ8 Schools

40

40

Usage

Club Acitv8 Card Holder

Over 60’s

Accessible Users

Club Engagement

56

78

Community Activities

73

75

Events & Competitions

122

104

Variance (+/-)

** An investigation is currently being undertaken by Everyone Active’s Head Office team as it is
believed that the data is potentially incorrect

22 38 o 7
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



6.1 Under5’s (+38% Against Target)

This age group has continued to deliver strong growth on the back of
previously reported success in Year 3.

One of the main contributory factors has been the increased learner pool
capacity at Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre (W&CLC) compared to its =
predecessor Hermitage Leisure Centre. Additionally, a highly successful social media marketmg
campaign delivered towards the end of 2022 led to a 83% uplift in attendances to our Active Antz play
sessions that run twice a week at W&CLC with the majority of the attendees falling into this age
category.

Our Tots Gym sessions continue to grow, currently averaging 15 attendees per week, whilst internally
and externally delivered children’s parties facilitated through Tayplay have grown year on year by
21%, despite the limitations of availability slots due to the demands on sports hall usage. Additionally,
our Clubs Complete Crafts and Dream Academy have also seen increased user numbers within this age

group.

6.2 Age 5-10 (+6% Against Target)

This age group continues to trend as being the most participated age group
within the centres.

The NWL Everyone Active contract is internally championed as being the
strongest within the East Region (South) consisting of 21 leisure centres for
it’s children’s holiday activity programme, delivered through our appointed
partner, Tayplay. In addition to that we continue to enjoy strong attendance numbers to our
badminton, gymnastics, trampoline, clip and climb, and pool inflatable sessions.

Unfortunately, a somewhat stagnant swim lesson scheme as a result of higher-than-average levels of
local competition have prevented further growth within this age group.

6.3 Age 11-16 (+14% Against Target)

This age group also benefitted from the continued growth of several
new activities that were introduced to the centre programmes toward
the latter part of Partnership Year 3, such as gymnastics, trampoline,
and clip and climb. In addition to that Whitwick & Coalville Leisure
Centre also saw school swim bookings increase from three to seven
schools.

Club feeder sessions linked to both the North West Leicestershire Volleyball Club and North West
Leicestershire Netball League have also provided good levels of usage within this age banding along
with direct organic growth into the respective activities. In addition to this several new sessions
introduced in Partnership Year 4 including;- SK8 (Roller skating) and Castel Basketball have attracted
11-16 year old users.

7

23 39 :.03' /.
North West everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.everyoneactive.com/content-hub/gym/gym-active/&psig=AOvVaw0IyPYU_uN8-k-y9CP_d8IS&ust=1592933684503000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCKigm8X6leoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

6.4 Club Activ8 Schools & Usage (-12.9% Against Target)

An investigation is currently being undertaken by Everyone Active’s

Head Office team as it is believed that the data is potentially incorrect o [} u
ev 7 n
he back of signifi il additi he sch h eryone
on the back of significant pupil additions to the scheme over the ACTIVE Activ8 o
revious year.
previousy in
wi -
That said, there is an acceptance that a 36% utilisation target was on Ww'e"e’wneacnve,com

reflection somewhat ambitious, given a figure of 20.10% in

Partnership Year 3 because of gradual recovery from the impact of the Covid-19

pandemic. In addition to that, it is also accepted that it can take time for newly signed up pupils to
fully integrate themselves into the benefits of the scheme.

Everyone Active’s Active Communities Manager is to be congratulated for attracting a further five \
schools to the scheme during Partnership Year 4, thereby taking the total number to 40. This \
represents the highest number in the schemes 18-year history, and an equally impressive 48% growth |
since the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic (that had seen several schools exit the scheme) on the

leisure centres diminished.

The greatest success was arguably the addition of 200 pupils from Stephenson’s College to the g
scheme, on the back of the college having been a long-term addition target due to its immediate ,

location to Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre. .4

24 40 P 3

3 ®
N_orf West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



™~

..

- e

.

Al_“-"

6.5 Over 60’s (+3% Against Target)

Our activity portfolio boasts a strong provision of activities s

either targeted towards, or attractive to this age group, which  ZElsEs
117

include Ladies Leisure, 50+ (most attendees being aged 60+) J’j e

and No Strings Badminton and Paddleball.

Additionally, our increasingly popular Virtual Fitness Class
programme has proved to be particularly attractive to this age
group, many of whom prefer to be able to undertake class-
based activity in smaller numbers of similar aged attendees.
Daytime casual swimming has also proved popular with this age group, with increased levels of pool-
based participation noted. -

have seen an increase in participants from this area, potentially highlighting a preference of class
activities for this age group. Bridge continues to be a strong contributing factor to these overall
numbers as well as our general swimming.

‘..\’;'. -
e

T

6.6 Accessible Users (+36% Against Target)

'\&.‘

»

NWL has a proportionately high level of people with inclusive needs, with much of the
, N success within this targeted user group attributable to our continually developing
=" partnership with Enrych, a district-based organisation who seek to provide adults living
with a disability or long-term health condition with support to enable them to live
independently. The partnership now sees weekly sports activity, fitness class, pool, and
- = gym based sessions taking place.

-

b o

M

-~ T -

s

(7
In addition to that, partnerships with Menphys (providing choices and opportunities for disabled "é |
children and young people), Forest Way (special needs school) and Elite Tuition (non-mainstream 14
educational provider) have also contributed to strong performance within this area. ~

6.7 Club Engagement (+39% Against Target)

Club Engagement within our centres continued to increase at pace, on the
back of previous successes in relation to this target group seen in both
Partnership Years 2 and 3. This has been attributable to recently improved
facilities and space options, targeted promotion and marketing, and a strong
historic reputation for our collaborative approach to club engagement.

In total we added 23 new sessions to our programme during Partnership
Year 4, which included SK8 (Roller skating), Castle Basketball, Sturges
Football and MA Kickboxing.

. RS A% B R YA
: ."\v.'“ 5 "f ::‘./l, ‘ ‘ s, X f ‘\" :
. — “wiX AT/, R R
25 41 L e
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/files/documents/download_your_copy_of_the_event_hire_brochure/booklet_2012.pdf&psig=AOvVaw3wAI-T3zEaStU67xuh9LF_&ust=1592933544107000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCKir07z7leoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE
https://www.google.co.uk/search?q=leicester+city+football+disibility+north+west+leics&tbm=isch&ved=2ahukewi9hdob-pxqahwn1-akhz4ad1wq2-ccegqiabaa&oq=leicester+city+football+disibility+north+west+leics&gs_lcp=cgnpbwcqazoecaaqqzofcaaqsqm6aggaogyiabaieb5qszufwnlvbwc08avoaxaaeacaaecbiah5fjibbjuxljaumzgbakabaaobc2d3cy13axotaw1n&sclient=img&ei=kovwxr3rbqevgweetbzgbq&bih=963&biw=1920&hl=en-gb#imgrc=amnqos3i8f68xm

6.8 Community Activities (+3% Against Target)

The level of success within this target area had to all intents reached something of a ceiling due to our
Active Communities Manager’s work capacity; However, we have continued to facilitate growth
through the delivery of community events within our centres, such as the Collaborative Schools Choir
event, and through our Sales Team becoming integral partners within several community activities.

Delivery at Health & Wellbeing and Schools Sport Partnership (SSP) events continues, along with
delivery within school assemblies with career /mock interview days having recently been added as a
bolt on to those.

6.9 Events & Competitions (-15 Against Target)

As covered elsewhere within the report, we have secured extended partnerships

with several of our historic event partners, migrating many of these to Ashby

Leisure Centre & Lido, as well as attracting new events to Ashby; However, the

unsuitability of Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre in terms of certain hosting

types of events, Ashby’s venue space not being big enough, and higher than

average levels of sports hall utilisation within the same facility, have contributed
0 to our falling short of Partnership Year 4 target.

This doesn’t mean that interest in our venues has decreased; However, as can be seen in Table 5.3 we
have had to turn away 12 events due to the above. Had those bookings been secured then we would
have been only 5%, as opposed to 15% short of target.

Having migrated the tiered seating from the former Hermitage Leisure Centre to Ashby, we continue
to retain and develop our spectator aligned events; However, there is an acceptance that event and
competition delivery is no longer at the forefront of our delivery, or reputation within the local,
regional, and national event scene.

26 42 ::..;-

3 ®
NorthWwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



7. Customer Engagement
l 7.1 Marketing

N | The objective of the marketing plan (Annual Reporting Schedule -

Document 15) is twofold in terms of its overall principal. Firstly, it

aims to communicate with our existing and new members using the

‘Activity Ladder’ model to encourage the inactive to become active

and the already active to be multi active. Secondly it aims to support

‘ both the council and our other partners (i.e., event promoters) in the
delivery of either joint initiatives or those that we host.

The marketing plan is split into two parts: the corporate marketing strategy and the local marketing
plan and calendar. The corporate strategy provides direction and a robust reporting structure that is
used analytically, informing us of future direction. The marketing calendar outlines the campaigns we
use throughout the year. These campaigns have a strong corporate message, but with local variations
to suit the market in each area. In Partnership Year 4 the campaign schedule comprised of:

N Corporate Marketing Strategy Content
¢ 6 fitness related campaigns

¢ 4 swimming lesson campaigns

¢ 16 sport, club, and activity campaigns
¢ 4 retail campaigns

Local Marketing Plan & Calendar Content
¢ Scheduling of fitness and swimming lesson campaigns
¢ Exercise referral and health intervention schemes
¢ Club and activity campaigns
¢ Retail campaigns
e Club Activ8 scheme
¢ Environmental awareness and green transport campaigns
' ¢ International, national, regional, and local events
e Charity Campaigns (Macmillan; May — July 2022, Dementia UK; August 22 — April 23)
¢ Local community events

The marketing team (head office, external partners and the site lead) collectively produce creative
l content to promote these areas of the programme through videos, photos, competitions, and quirky
social interactions involving both staff and customers to add a personal community touch.

Throughout the year we advertise our leisure services at local community events through promotional
outreach. In Partnership Year 4 these included events such as the Coalville Emergency Services Hub
Open Day (May 2022) and Ashby Sport & Club Engagement Fun Day (June 2022)

Through our dedicated Everyone Active Public Relations Lead, we promote positive changes and
success stories. In Partnership Year 4 these included the Brown Girl Can’t Swim Campaign (September
2022), shortlisting of Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre for the UK National Fitness Awards (October
2022), Opening of the new Ashby 3G Football Hub at Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido (November 2022),
and Whitwick One Year On (February 2023).

~~
..

{ ]
N_orf West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



[ 7.2 Community Engagement

We monitor participation habits so that we can tailor our engagement
with the community according to their own personal circumstances,
= P giving them bespoke messages relevant to the activity they personally
one everyone . . :
: ACTIVE undertake. We do this by asking our customers to use an Everyone Active
card (issued free).

every

As of the end of April 2023, there were 104,666 card holders in the
community. Of that number 68,701 (66%) live within the district
boundary, with 14,998 (22%) having used our facilities within the past 12
months.

The steady and ongoing increase in the total number of card holders is a
very good barometer of how affective our communication and
engagement strategy has been and is a good indicator of the increased penetration of the local
market. In alignment with the Community Wellbeing Strategy, the focus going forwards will be around
increasing usage among the existing card holders as opposed to increasing the number of card
holders.

28 44

everyone

ACTIVE



SWIM LESSON SURVEY 22/23

/C

YOUR VIEWS MATTER ©r e

In August 2022 we undertook a comprehensive survey with the parents of our

swim lesson scheme pupils at Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre, covering 14 LiHow hkeIY are.you i 2. Howhigh would y01:1 refe
areas of our delivery. The aim of this survey was three-fold. We sought to identify recom.mend swmmmg NS Sakie the standard of teaching at
an overall feel for the programme and our delivery of it, highlight areas where with everyone active? the leisure centre?
parents believe we are performing above expectation and identify areas where 2% 1% 1%

they felt improvements could be made.

. 6% 2 8%
A total of 324 parents took part in the survey, which means that the feedback . L
received is reflective of general parent views. Figures in brackets represent the

2021 scores where the same question was asked. Feedback has been considered,

with our intended plan of action provided. We will undertake an identical survey ir 28% b
August 2023 in order to measure our direction of travel. (2021 -40%) 4 63% 61%
Customer engagement and collaborative working sits at the core of our DNA, and =~ e ‘ (2021 - 41%) (2021 - 41%)

we wish to thank all of the parents that have helped us shape our service.

Scoring key: / Very Good / To Expectation / Poor /
IMPROVED IMPROVED
3. How satisfied are you that the 4. If applicable, how satisfied are 5. How would you rate the
stages of swimming lessons you that the transfer process on feedback and encouragement & Doesthe teasher asses§ the
progress have been communicated the APP is effective? offered by the teacher to all students regularly and give
to you by the centre? shidents? relevant awards?

2%

11% 8%

12% 16%

50% 47%

52% 53%

‘ 32% 30%
: 2021 - 26% (2021 - 25%) 24 ‘ )%
3 27% ( %) 28% (2021 - 33%) (2021 - 31%) (2021 - 26%) (2021 - 23%)
(2021 - 22%) (2021-26%) '
IMPROVED IMPROVED : IMPROVED IMPROVED

7. How satsfied are you that the 8. How satisfied are you that the 9. How satisified are you that the 10. How satisfied are you that
swim manager is accessible and swim scheme offers value for swim scheme offers a varied the swim teacher is always
answers all queries sufficiently? money? programme of class times & days? punctual?

2% 2%

1%

q 4%
o 7%

11%
56%

(2021 - 30%) Sl

(202139%) : 60% (2021-19%) 4 %
SRy (2021 - 40%) ‘

- 53%
32%

S 2021 - 24%
(2021-28%) L 4 (2021 - 67%)

- (2021 -28%)
IMPROVED IMPROVED IMPROVED IMPROVED
11. How satisfied are you that 12. How would you rate the 13. How would you rate the 14. How would you rate the
the teacher/student ratio is booking process, from signing quality of equipment made state of the facilities in the
acceptable? up to moving sggoges/classes? available durilg lessons? centre during yur lesson?

8%
9%

55% 32%
(2021 - 36%) 4 63%

(2021 - 43%)

32% -

PYE N (2021 - 38%) ! ‘
(2021 -38%) MRCIPIRETNY /o

(2021 - 26‘_%)' (2021 - 18%)

IMPROVED IMPROVED IMPROVED IMPROVED



SWIM LESSON SURVEY 22/23

YOUR VIEWS MATTER

Swim Lesson Survey 2022/23 Feedback

Area Of Improvement Feedback
Communication, Assessment & | Whilst our Aqua Passport app is well regarded within the wider UK swim lesson sector, it
App has not been without its problems, leading to parent critique relating to communication

and ongoing assessment information. Everyone Active recognise this and are currently in
the process of migrating to a new platform in mid-2023.

Swim Pupil to Teacher Ratio’s These are pre-determined by our national & regional swim management team, who align
them to a corporate delivery model that sees Everyone Active as the current UK Swim
Scheme Operator of the Year. In simple terms, our pupil to teacher ratio’s form part of a
best practice model that is used in over 150 centres nationally. We believe the feedback
here directly relates to the Covid-19 pandemic, where pupil to teacher ratio’s were
dropped in order to reduce the spread of the virus. Unfortunately, these ratios were

neither practical as we exited restrictions, or aligned to the aforementioned best practice
model.

\x&. ..."-i" -~ »-gv&-
“ "~

-4-:’
-

30 46 o363

o ®
North West ever\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



SWIM LESSON SURVEY 22/23

P

YOUR VIEWS MATTER

In August 2022 we undertook a comprehensive survey with the parents of our

1. How likely are you to . i
swim lesson scheme pupils at Ashby LC & Lido, covering 14 areas of our delivery. ————— sw»i,mmir»: - 2 How bigh wofuld y°f‘ rate
The aim of this survey was three-fold. We sought to identify an overall feel for the . g the standard of teaching at
with everyone active? the leisure centre?

programme and our delivery of it, highlight areas where parents believe we are
performing above expectation and identify areas where they felt improvements 1%
could be made. 2

1%

9%
A total of 209 parents took part in the survey, which means that the feedback 16%
received is reflective of general parent views. Figures in brackets represent the
2021 scores where the same question was asked. Feedback has been considered,
with our intended plan of action provided. We will undertake an identical survey iri

August 2023 in order to measure our direction of travel.

46% 2%

7 i 0,
(2021-53%) \ (2021 - 46%)

41%
Customer engagement and collaborative working sits at the core of our DNA, and (2021 -37%)
we wish to thank all of the parents that have helped us shape our service...

43%
(2021 - 44%)

Scoring key: / Very Good / To Expectation / Poor /

3. How satisfied are you that the 4. If applicable, how satisfied are 5. How would you rate the
6. Does the teacher assess the

stages of swimming lessons you that the transfer process on feedback and encouragement Ry e
progress have been communicated the APP is effective? offered by the teacher to all stu enls regularly Zn? give
to you by the centre? students? relevant awards:

20%

21%
25%

(2021 - 18%)

2021 - 23%)
: 19% 39%

(2021 - 30%)

21%
(2021 - 43%)
20% 31%

(2021 - 36%)

34% 29% (2021 - 36%) 27%

(2021 - 37%)

28%
(2021 - 31%)

7. How satsfied are you that the 8. How satisfied are you that the 9. How satisified are you that the 10. How satisfied are you that
swim manager is accessible and ~ swim scheme offers value for swim scheme offers a varied the swim teacher is always
answers all queries sufficiently? money? programme of class times & days? punctual?

2%

2%
6%

19%

24% 35% 21% X 33%
a0 28%

\ (2021-37%) EEPITRPON ‘ 63%

« (2021 - 33%)

D\ (2021 - 35%)

33%

38% 39% (2021 - 69%)

(2021 - 33%) ' (2021 - 40%) (2021- 43%)
11. How satisfied are you that 12. How would you rate the 13. How would you rate the 14. How would you rate the
the teacher/student ratio is booking process, from signing quality of equipment made state of the facilities in the
acceptable? up to moving stages/classes? available during lessons? centre during your lesson?

10%

A 20%
(2021 - 44%)

34% 35%

(2021 - 37%)

49%

(2021 - 53%)

i
47 e (2021 - 50%)

(2021 - 43%)

48%

27% 38%

(2021 - 35%) ' (2021 - 38%) (2021 - 39%)




SWIM LESSON SURVEY 22/23

YOUR VIEWS MATTER

Swim Lesson Survey 2022/23 Feedback

Area Of Improvement Feedback
Teacher Standard & Delivery Over the past year we have unfortunately seen several of our more experienced teachers
leave in order to either retire or venture into different sectors of employment, much of
this on the back of a number of lengthy centre closures as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic. This has seen several new recruits join our team, and as with their
predecessors when they first started, whilst they are keen to learn and develop, this will
naturally take time. We are confident that in time, these young colleagues will blossom
into strong teachers.
Communication, Assessment & | Whilst our Aqua Passport app is well regarded within the wider UK swim lesson sector, it
App has not been without its problems, leading to parent critique relating to communication
and ongoing assessment information. Everyone Active recognise this and are currently in
the process of migrating to a new platform in mid-2023.
Swim Pupil to Teacher Ratio’s These are pre-determined by our national & regional swim management team, who align
them to a corporate delivery model that sees Everyone Active as the current UK Swim
Scheme Operator of the Year. In simple terms, our pupil to teacher ratio’s form part of a
best practice model that is used in over 150 centres nationally. We believe the feedback
here directly relates to the Covid-19 pandemic, where pupil to teacher ratios were
dropped in order to reduce the spread of the virus. Unfortunately, these ratios were
neither practical as we exited restrictions, or aligned to the aforementioned best practice
model.
Facility Cleanliness Whilst customer feedback indicates cleaning standards to be good, our rating within the
highest scoring bracket has dropped. Staffing resource aligned to cleanliness has not
reduced, however due to our exit from Covid-19 measures, customer numbers have
increased significantly and extra cleanliness and hygiene measures relating to the
pandemic have been reduced.




8. Service

8.1 Customer Feedback

Customer feedback and collaborative working form a key element of the DNA
within the NWL partnership, with Quest assessors and associated reports
consistently highlighting it as a major area of strength that is far and above
what is typically found within leisure centres nationally.

Feedback that is subsequently used as part of decision-making processes is
sought through a variety of methods including websites, direct mail, social
media, verbal comments, user forums, manager clinics and through our customer interaction system —
single customer view.

Dedicated noticeboards located within key areas of footfall advise customers on the various channels
through which we engage with them, whilst our customer charter is displayed in each centre, along with
a summary of popular customer feedback themes and the centre management teams responses to those
in a “You Say We Did” style template that is updated on a bi-monthly basis.

8.2 Customer Satisfaction

In Partnership Year 4 we undertook a comprehensive 14 question swim lesson
survey at both sites in August 2022 that covered all areas of the programme from
initial contact to end outcome. Strong pre-issue promotion of the survey
highlighting its importance in terms of helping to shape service resulted in 324
responses at Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre (16% of the swimmers on scheme) and 209 at Ashby
Leisure Centre & Lido (15% of the swimmers on scheme)

The outcomes were compared directly to those secured to the same questions in August 2021,
evidencing that all 14 scores had risen (green traffic light outcomes) year on year at Whitwick & Coalville
Leisure Centre. Unfortunately, despite the scores remaining generally very positive, all but two had
dropped at Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido.

. .-

The surveys were displayed publicly, with the feedback from them considered within Quality Action Plan
briefings held with the Swim Managers at each site. This was subsequently shared publicly alongside the
surveys. Given that they represented 16% of the entire swim lesson pupil user base, the feedback was
deemed reflective of overall customer satisfaction and a follow up survey is planned for August 2023
(Partnership Year 5). (

Customer satisfaction is currently measured through bespoke surveys such as the above, and monthly
complaints per 10,000 visits. Going forwards, it has been agreed with NWLDC that Google Review scores
for each of the sites will also form part of the customer satisfaction barometer.

RN\

33 49 .':..;:

{ ]
N_orf West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.vecteezy.com/vector-art/463369-customer-support-service&psig=AOvVaw0VWRQmW_S2hE7jWzrdqZ9P&ust=1592935140736000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCLDNxPv_leoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.webinfra.net/en/services/easysurvey/&psig=AOvVaw3QF5PaeYIQxfhY1Zsu7Xkz&ust=1592935240396000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCJCji6uAluoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

8.3 Compliments

Whilst compliments are not formally measured by Everyone Active, the two
centres received a high number of compliments over the course of the fourth
partnership year, with these captured on a month-by-month basis within the
formal Performance Monitoring Review (PMR) reports and then verbally in
Client/Contractor Meetings. Common themes reported included; -

e The standard and maintenance of facilities within the two centres.

e Lido refurbishment investment. Customers are appreciative that it remains the last public lido in
the East Midlands

e Swim lesson standards and associated value for money

e The continued delivery of Cold-Water Swimming, with an agreed intent to potentially extend it

by a month.

Information at site and on-line, including the way in which it is presented.

GP Referral scheme management and health intervention outcomes

Customer and club engagement delivery

Club Activ8 scheme management and communication

The delivery of various high-profile events

Staff customer service standards

New additions to the activity programme.

8.4 Complaints

Customer complaints are recorded and analysed against participation levels, with all complaints
responded to. The number of complaints received for the fourth partnership year was 777 from
1,210,435 visits. This represented an average of 6.42 complaints per 10,000 visits, which

compared favourably against the 6.63 per 10,000 visits seen in the third year of the partnership.
It was also the lowest figure recorded to date.

Table 8.4.1 - Hermitage Leisure Centre/Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre Complaints —
Partnership Years 1-4

Measure /P/Year Partnership Year 1 | Partnership Year 2 | Partnership Year 3 | Partnership Year 4
Attendance 339,931 94,274 418,618 797,493
Number of 244 61 271 508
Complaints

Complaints / 7.18 6.49 6.47 6.36
10,000 Visits

Complaints 100% 100% 100% 100%
Responded To

Table 8.4.2 - Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido Complaints — Partnership Years 1-4

Measure / P/Year Partnership Year 1 | Partnership Year 2 | Partnership Year 3 | Partnership Year 4
Attendance 386,057 122,432 405,253 412,882
Number of 268 80 275 269
Complaints

Complaints / 6.94 6.54 6.78 6.51
10,000 Visits
Complaints 100% 100% 100% 100%
Responded To
34 50 ::’l:: /.
NorthWest | everyone

Leicestershire

District Council

ACTIVE




/ Table 8.4.3 - Overall Complaints (Both Sites) — Partnership Years 1-4

Measure / P/Year Partnership Year 1 | Partnership Year 2 | Partnership Year 3 | Partnership Year 4
Attendance 725,988 216,706 823,871 1,210,435
Number of 512 141 546 777
Complaints

Complaints / 7.06 6.51 6.63 6.42
10,000 Visits

Complaints 100% 100% 100% 100%
Responded To

We analyse complaints for common themes and use these as areas for improvement as soon as
possible. As with ‘compliments’, these are reported to the council through the monthly
Performance Monitoring Reviews (PMR) reporting framework.

e Common themes experienced within the fourth year of the partnership included;-

e Periodic closures of the Health Suite at Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre

e Fitness class programme size and booking issues associated with other members
booking and then cancelling sessions at the last minute (both sites) at both centres, but

predominantly Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre.

e Event car park management at both centres.

e Shower temperature issues at Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido

e Unpleasant smell emanating from the dry side changing rooms at Whitwick & Coalville
Leisure Centre (flush/drainage issue)

35

Leicestershire

District Council

everyone

ACTIVE



8.2 Maintenance of Buildings, Plant and Equipment

We have maintained our registration under Health & Safety OHSAS 18001 management standards, thus
demonstrating our commitment to best practice and compliance. This informs the strategy and direction
of how we manage maintenance of the buildings, plant, and equipment.

The management of maintenance is split into proactive and reactive. The Planned Preventative
Maintenance (PPM) schedule provides a programme of servicing and maintenance to ensure plant and
equipment realise their economic life. The PPM schedule incorporates the relevant statutory inspections
required to be compliant with all relevant legislation (see Health & Safety section for more information
on statutory inspections). These reports (Document 24) have been submitted to the Council as part of
the annual reporting process.

The reactive schedule provides a structured approach for dealing with breakdown and repairs to ensure
the buildings and services are maintained to a high standard. On a monthly basis we submit a reactive
maintenance log indicating the number tasks raised and completed in the month, as well as a yearly
summary report (Annual Reporting Schedule - Document 19). This indicates the volume of tasks being
generated and completed monthly. The variety of these jobs is huge, varying from putting up a notice
board, replacing a lamp, or replacing an air filter to larger jobs such as repairing a dosing line or
arranging for a full pump repair.

Table 8.2.1- Maintenance Task Undertaken By The In-House Maintenance Team — Partnership Year 4

Site Ql-May22 | Q2Aug22— | Q3-Nov22 | Q4—-Feb23 Total

—July 22 Oct 22 —Jan 23 — April 23
Whitwick & C'ville LC 147 131 119 124 521
Ashby LC & Lido 121 82 71 101 375
Total 268 213 190 225 896

8.3 Equipment

Equipment is maintained to be safe, fit for purpose and able to meet programming
requirements. The inventory is updated on a regular basis to reflect any changes. These
reports (Annual Reporting Schedule - Document 7) continue to be submitted to the Council as
part of the annual reporting process.

8.4 Cleaning

Cleaning tasks are split into routine/planned and reactive. Cleaning and housekeeping standards are
clearly set out in operational audit books as well as in dedicated cleaning schedules which dictate the
frequency of the tasks i.e., daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly, annual, as well as the times of the day they
should be complete by whom.

These are captured within the Cleaning Schedule (Document 3) within the annual council reporting
compliance schedule. Regular ‘deep cleaning’ of key areas are a fundamental part of this regime.
Specialist cleaning tasks such as external window cleaning is contracted to third parties and scheduled as
part of the cleaning regime.

36 52 =08

N_orf.VVes_t
Leicestershire

District Counc

everyone
ACTIVE


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.rlssdirect.co.uk/search/PXB/products/LE3220A/RLSS%2BUK%2BPXB%2BBoard/&psig=AOvVaw30s1OGegqeiCnji_6Fv0cL&ust=1592935773003000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCKih_aiCluoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

Monitoring and auditing is carried out vigorously to ensure compliance of the required standards.
Auditing is carried out by several different people and organisations:

Internal audits:

e 6 monthly audits by the Regional Health, Safety and Quality Manager.

e Weekly inspections by the Area and Partnership Manager.

e Daily and weekly audits by the General Manager and Department Managers.
e Daily audits by the Duty Managers.

External audits:

e Monthly by the Council
e Annually as part of Quest Accreditation.

8.5 Service Improvement

Continuous improvement is an integral part of quality service delivery and

has been incorporated into an overarching Quest Accreditation & Contract i I
Action Plan report (Annual Reporting Schedule - Document 22) that by its iii

very nature evolves continually.

This all-encompassing document pulls together actions derived from several sources such as Council
inspections, health & safety audits, customer feedback, internal inspections, Quest assessment feedback
and colleague suggestions.

8.6 Service Interruptions

During Partnership Year 4 the centre’s experienced two maintenance related facility closures. The first
saw the main indoor pool at Ashby closed on 15-16 November due to a major power failure resulting in
the swimming pool temperatures dropping below 25 degrees. All swim lesson customers were contacted
with associated refunds issued.

During the period 14-16 December 2022 a pool closure was scheduled at Whitwick & Coalville Leisure
Centre to allow for pool pipe replacement works to be undertaken due to a leakage within the plant
room. These works were programmed in to align to swimming lessons finishing for Christmas to
minimise service interruption. Customers were notified well in advance of the wors with normal service
resumed on 17 December.

8.7 Community Contributions (Free Activity)

Within Everyone Active’s tender submission document, reference was made to
our providing a minimum value of £500 per month (£6,000 pa) of free public
activity within our Oadby & Wigston partnership.

A commitment to undertake similar within the NWL partnership was made;
However, this has consistently been significantly exceeded throughout the
partnership to date via our front foot approach to engaging with and supporting the local community.

In total we provided a value of £218,284 in ongoing discounted or free usage arrangements with local
community partners, a 52% uplift on the previous year’s already impressive £144,054.

) " : YR VY GRYYTY  STITE b DA m-:.«nﬁ“; A
37 53 2%

NorthWwest | everyone

Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=http://clipart-library.com/improvement-needed-cliparts.html&psig=AOvVaw1fyqMdhZYW-frkVJ2LA-RS&ust=1592936307498000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCJjH8aeEluoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAL

.

v ..

.‘;‘- ' "..I- PRt
":" a.""v' -‘

. Table 8.7.1 — Summary of Free Activity & Community Contributions — Partnership Year 4

.

Description Number Unit Value (£) Total Value (£)
Children In The 29,147 3-30 96,185
Community (CAS8)
Primary School
i Children In The 14,575 4-90 71,418
Community (CAS8)
Secondary School
Children In The 5,058 8-20 41,475
Community (CAS8)
— Upper School
- Talented Athletes 11 299-90 3,299
Complimentary Annual
Membership
Adult & Child 45 4-85 218
— Complimentary Swim
- Pass
Disabled User 22 4-85 107
Complimentary Passes
Work Live Leicestershire 42 8-15 342
e . Complimentary Passes
' Various Requests 107 8-15 872
Complimentary Passes '
- NWLDC Employee 21 8-00 168 "
Membership Discount ¢
. NWLDC Event & Local 5 400-00 3,900 4
Team Sponsorship h
School Sports Partnership 6 50-00 300 N
g (SSP) Events
N Total £218,284
]

-
38 54 Ly 7
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



9.1 Internal Health and Safety Audits

Health and Safety audits are carried out by the Everyone Active Regional Health

and Safety Management Team. Following the principle of continuous

improvement, the assessments inform an action plan designed from the

feedback.

For the avoidance of doubt, our Health and Safety audits set a standard

far higher than required to safely operate the centres. The criteria

stipulate an ‘all or nothing’ approach and each item requires consistent
records to achieve the mark.

()¢

A

Under previous assessment criteria, Everyone Active historically sought new sites to secure an initial
minimum score of 65%, subsequently migrating to 95% by the fourth cycle of assessment. With
respective scores of 90.0% and 91.4% secured in their third cycle of assessment, both Hermitage/W&CL
and Ashby LC & Lido were well on course to achieve the desired benchmark, having increased from
scores of 78.0% and 80.0% recorded the previous year.

Assessment criteria was changed in 2022, with sites advised that a score of 85% be secured within Year 1
(2022), migrating to the previous standard of 95% at the third cycle of assessment in 2024. As the table
below shows, with Year 1 scores of 87.4% and 87.1% both centres are on course to meet corporate

expectations.

Table 9.1.1 — Health & Safety Audit Scores — Partnership Years 1-4

Centre

2019 (PY 1)

2020 (PY 2)

2021 (PY 3)

2022 (PY 4)

Hermitage LC/
WE&CLC

70.0

78.0

90.0

87.4

Ashby Leisure
Centre & Lido

71.0

80.0

91.4

87.1

Average

70.50

79.0

90.7

87.3

9.2 External Audit / Inspections

o
NorthWest

Leicestershire

District Council

Towards the latter part of Partnership Year 1 monthly monitoring inspections
undertaken by NWLDC'’s appointed Client Officer commenced, with a formal
reporting template created that captured findings and agreed rectification
timescales, with updates on subsequent remedial action taken subsequently
provided by Everyone Active.

Due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic the councils Client Officer was unable to undertake any of

these inspections during Partnership Year 2, however, these resumed towards the end of Partnership
Year 3. In Partnership Year 4 a shared drive was set up by NWLDC within which the template now sits,

with inspections continuing to take place on a monthly basis.

39

55

Leicestershire

District Council

everyone

ACTIVE



https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://clipartart.com/categories/free-clipart-health-and-safety.html&psig=AOvVaw2JGy0KZFcmK31bx7CEe570&ust=1592920145244000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCMitmo3IleoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

9.3 Quest Accreditation

Quest is the Sport England recommended Continuous improvement Tool for
leisure facilities and sports development teams, designed to measure how
effective organisations are at providing customer service, their proficiency at
delivering varied activity programmes in a clean and well-maintained
environment, along with assessing their impact on the health and wellbeing of
communities.

The scheme is currently managed by Right Directions, on behalf of Sport England.
Hermitage Leisure Centre / Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre

Hermitage underwent a QUEST Prime Covid assessment in December 2020, receiving an overall rating of
‘Very Good’, with the assessor advising the centre to be closing in on the ‘Excellent’ banding level. Due to
the age of the facility, this represented a hugely satisfying testament to the service.

As a result of the pandemic, the centre subsequently closed its doors for a period of four months,
reopening them with a limited programme and decreased usage levels. When allied to the centre being
due for closure in 2022, Right Directions agreed that Hermitage need not undergo further assessment
and would retain its banding and current score until such time as it closed, with a fresh cycle of
assessment commencing at the new Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre once it had become
established.

Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre is due to undergo its first cycle of assessment in June 2023
(Partnership Year 5), meaning that at the end of Partnership Year 4 the existing final Hermitage Leisure
Centre assessment represented the last one undertaken for the two facilities as a collective. Within it,
the following observations were made in terms of strengths.

4 CESUNERY

Mystery Visit Strengths

Centre was well presented, smelling fresh and clean with no opportunities for improvement
Identified.

e Witnessed staff taking a proactive approach to cleaning, wiping down both surfaces and high
points.

e Comprehensive staff return to work inductions and Covid training were evident.

e C(Clear Covid related information relating to centre protocols and activities was provided.

e Environmental information was comprehensive and well presented.

e C(Clear evidence of strong social media & associated customer engagement throughout the Covid
period was noted.

! Vi

Assessment Strengths

Comprehensive cleaning schedules were in place
e Information and the way in which it was presented.

e Social media and customer engagement.

e Significant levels of positive customer feedback was noted
e Swim lesson programme.

o Community engagement

Strong programming throughout all dry based activities

56 %%

{ ]
N.or’F West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Counc



https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://questnbs.org/&psig=AOvVaw1Zw-HfqhcOScDWHJEvod8Q&ust=1592919931417000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCNCCmqfHleoCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido

Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido underwent a full QUEST assessment on 19 May 2022, securing a ‘Very Good’
banding, with the assessor also advising that it had every chance of securing an ‘Excellent’ banding at the
next cycle of assessment. Mystery Visitor and Assessor strengths were advised as follows;-

Mystery Visit Strengths

e The centre was very well-presented throughout, with all notice boards full of strong eye-catching
information.

e C(Cleaning and hygiene standards were good throughout.

e The maintenance and housekeeping at the centre were to a high standard.

e The Lifeguards were watching the pool professionally and attentively.

o All telephone calls to the centre were answered within a reasonable timeframe and with a
standard corporate greeting.

e Best practice approaches were in place to provide customer confidence that cleaning standards,
sanitising, and disinfecting are being constantly maintained.

Assessment Strengths

e Due to the Club Activ8 scheme, wider community clubs have become involved with the centre,
with discounts and benefits offered to those previously unable to use the centre.

e The EQMS management system was user friendly, brilliantly designed, and provided a great
support to the centre in terms of day to day operation.

e Continuously improving Health & Safety audit scores pointed to a strong direction of travel
against corporate expectations

e The Swim Lesson program was designed within the Swim England Framework and is overseen
and managed to a high standard by the Swim Manager.

e There is strong evidence that customer feedback is followed up, responded to, and action is
implemented if appropriate to improve the service.

e There was a regular schedule of customer forum meetings held at the centre, with a selection of
stake holders, members, and local politicians having a seat on the forum. Over time it has proven
itself to be an effective way of communication and ‘getting things done’.

e Each employee has access to EQMS and all the information on there, as well as Absorb Training
which they need to complete pre-employment.

e EQMS checks were completed on time, with system in place that provide internal competition
as well as highlighting missed checks.

e There was a good feel to the centre, with lots of customers interacting with the management
team evidencing a strong community vibe.

e Staffing levels within the centre were sufficient to meet customer and programme demand.

e Customer information within dedicated notice boards was to a very high standard.

Nor’? ..V\/est eve I"\6 ne

Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Counc




10. Health & Safety

10.1 Major Incidents

In Partnership Year 4 there were two major incidents that occurred at Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido,
although the first of these was external to the centres red line boundary.

e 20th May 2022 — Attention was brought to the centre staff team that an Injured Person (IP)
located within an adjacent play area was experiencing repeated seizures and loss of
consciousness, vomiting blood, and had irregular breathing. He was treated by member of our
team prior to being taken to hospital by ambulance. He later made a full recovery.

5th August 2022 — An IP suffered a heart attack whilst exercising in the Lido. CPR and Defib was
applied prior to him being taken to hospital by ambulance. He later made a full recovery.

There were no major incidents at Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre.

10.2 Accident Analysis

Table 10.2.1 — Accident Analysis — Partnership Year 4

Information Whitwick & Ashby Leisure Total
Coalville LC Centre & Lido
Site Attendance 797,493 412,882 1,210,435
Accidents 74 45 119
Riddors 4 3 7
Accidents Per 10,000 Visitors 0.93 1.09 0.98

The average accidents per 10,000 across the 70 sites in the SLM East Region is 4.95, so it is pleasing to
see both Hermitage and Hood Park significantly well under this benchmark for a third successive year.

10.3:- Statutory inspections

To achieve legislative compliance, we have a programme of statutory
inspections. These are part of the Planned Preventative Maintenance
(PPM) Schedules (Annual Reporting Schedule - Document 24) and
continue to be submitted to the Council as part of the annual
reporting process.

42 58 2 e
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=http://www.puretraining.co.uk/water-rescue/national-pool-lifeguard-qualification&psig=AOvVaw3xvLIKce_m_lCEQjCVMv46&ust=1592985946791000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCJjT4529l-oCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAF

11. Environmental

11.11S014001

The Corporate Environmental Policy informs the structure and direction of how we manage
environmental issues. Everyone Active have maintained our ongoing registration under
Environmental ISO 1400 management standards. This sets out our objectives for carbon reduction,
energy reduction and re- cycling.

In September 2022 Whitwick & Coalville was chosen along with four other sites within Everyone
Active’s East Region of 78 centres, to undergo ISO 1400 accreditation assessment. We subsequently
achieved this, securing excellent feedback from the assessor in relation to our ongoing commitment
to environmental management.

Both centres deliver a yearly contract specific Energy Engagement Plan (EEP) (Document 6 — Annual
Reporting Schedule) and an Energy Reduction Plan aligned to ISO 1400 performance standards.
These are well received by NWLDC and championed by QUEST as examples of best practice.

The following headlines sit within these plans:

Reduce energy usage and carbon emissions by 5% v budget

Aim to Install Solar Panels at Ashby LC

Reduce DEC rating at each site

Reduce waste levels

To recycle 20% of our waste

Encourage colleagues and customers to use green forms of transport
Compliance with ISO 14001 accreditation

The new Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre has a BREEAM Excellent rating that demonstrates a
sustainability-focussed approach to the building and operating of the facility. The building
incorporates a photovoltaic (PV) array mounted on the roof; EV charging bays in the carpark; energy-
efficient LED lighting throughout and smart building controls via a state-of-the-art building
management system (BMS).

Environmental management actions taken at Ashby Leisure Centre & Lido include;

The installation of a new BMS system which has reduced energy usage by 20%
Continuous daily monitoring of the BMS system as well as daily energy monitoring
The replacement of 2 lido pool pumps with lower energy units

The replacement of internal lighting with LED lamps

The reduction of pool temperatures by 0.5C

The installation of timers on the Ashby 3G Football Hub

Encouraging customers to use green forms of active travel

In addition to this, all colleagues undertake regular environmental training at both centres. In
addition to that, we have a Green Champion in place across the two centres who is responsible for
implementing policies and ensuring staff awareness.

e R
WS

fosk

R

S

%1& x

y [ ]
Northwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



Aside from corporate and site level environmental management delivery, Everyone Active work
closely with NWLDC on its Carbon Zero Project, with the partnership deemed to be far in advance of
the majority seen elsewhere within Everyone Active’s East Region. The companies Group
Sustainability Manager puts this down to a combination of a proactive local authority and fully
engaged EA contract, with the Contract Manager and General Manager recently being asked to
present an overview of our delivery to other Leicestershire based local authority representatives.

11.2 Display Energy Certificate (DEC)

Ashby Leisure Centre achieved a Display Energy Certificate (DEC) rating of 69 in November 2022. This
represented a decrease of 13 on the previous year and is a clear indicator that our Energy
Engagement plan, Energy Reduction plan, and partnership with NWLDC's Carbon Net Zero plan is
working. Given that the centre’s facility mix includes three swimming pools, a rating of this level is
impressive.

Whitwick & Coalville LC will receive its inaugural DEC rating shortly, having now been open for over a
year (sites are not required to have DEC’s in place for the first year of operation)

11.3 Energy Consumption

We use a software analytics package to record energy
consumption via Automated Meter Readings (AMR’s) which
subsequently provides our energy consultant partners with half
hour, hourly, daily and monthly usage data which is displayed
on our energy portal.

This in turn provides daily, monthly, and annual trends with
regards to consumption, with monitoring, investigation, and
action managed collaboratively between Everyone Active’s
Regional Technical Manager and the management team at site.
In addition to that the Duty Management team undertake meter readings daily.

We have Combined Heat & Power (CHP) units in place at both centres which are monitored daily to
ensure optimum efficiency performance. Gas consumption tends to be affected much more than
electrical consumption, as it is gas that runs the water and heating systems, so varies dependent on
usage levels and ambient air temperatures. Electricity consumption is related to the operation of
lights and air handling, so is less open to variance unless we experience issues with the CHP units.

Both centres have brand new Building Management Systems (BMS) in place that allow us to control
and monitor the usage of electrical / plant equipment such as air conditioning and pool pumps. These
are set on timers within the BMS, which allow us to ramp down during quieter times or at night when
the centre is closed.

Whilst energy saving measures such as a migration to LED Lighting at Ashby LC & Lido and
improvements made to the pool plants at each site clearly impact on energy consumption, providing
tangible comparative year on year data has proved difficult due to a combination of redevelopment,
a new build, and the impact of a pandemic.

In Partnership Year 1 the then Hood Park LC underwent a major redevelopment, before the year
ended with the centre’s closed for the last 6 weeks due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Partnership Year 2
saw the centre’s closed for seven months across three separate closure periods because of the
pandemic, with activities and usage curtailed in between due to best practice measures. Partnership
Year 3 commenced with the centres operating a reduced programme and facility usage due to the
impact of the pandemic, before finishing with the closure of Hermitage LC and the opening of the
new Whitwick & Coalville Leisure Centre.

44 60 | B "
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



Partnership Year 4 represents the first year that we will be able to secure ‘base line’ data that can
then be subsequently bench marked against.

Table 11.3.1; - Energy Consumption 2022/23 - Partnership Year 4

Partnership Year 4

Whitwick & Coalville

Ashby LC

Total

Gas (kwh)

2,108,651 kwh

2,030,354 kwh

4,139,005 kwh

Electricity (kwh)

377,216 kwh

167,156 kwh

544,372 kwh

Total (kwh)

2,485,867 kwh

2,197,510 kwh

4,683,377 kwh

_Table 11.3.2 ; Energy Consumption 2021/22 - Partnership Year 3

Partnership Year 3

Hermitage / W&C

Ashby LC

Total

Gas (kwh)

1,376,553 kwh

2,229,729 kwh

3,606,282 kwh

Electricity (kwh)

400,510 kwh

237,725 kwh

638,235 kwh

Total (kwh)

1,777,063 kwh

2,467,454 kwh

4,244,517 kwh

Table 11.3.3 ; Energy Consumption 2020/21 — Partnership Year 2

Partnership Year 2

Hermitage LC

Hood Park LC

Total

Gas (kwh)

1,408,983

1,386,835

2,795,818

Electricity (kwh)

347,514

282,943

630,460

Total

1,756,497

1,669,778

3,426,278

Table; 11.3.4 ; Energy Consumption 2019/20 Partnership Year 1

Partnership Year 1

Hermitage LC

Hood Park LC

Total

Gas (kwh)

1,801,690

3,249,999

5,051,689

Electricity (kwh)

311,263

267,029

578,292

Total

2,112,953

3,517,028

5,629,981

61

Leicestershire

=83
10
North West

District Counci

.

-

everyone

ACTIVE



-a

. "‘ ;\\ e ‘\

- \ .\. ) -

from our specialist contractors — Kingfisher Environmental Services Ltd. All the bacteriological

-
. Water Quality is monitored daily by the site teams and also on a monthly / quarterly basis % é\
A

K
reports for the period May 2022 — April 2023 came back highly satisfactory and there were no f\‘*ﬁ\.

KINGFISHER

reported incidents. EMVIAONMENTAL

12. Financial

12.1 Operational Expenditure and Income
Operational Expenditure and Income for Partnership Year 4 (May 2022 to April
2023) has been reported to NWLDC in line with contractual requirements.

.
everyone

ACTIVE

13. Reporting Schedule

NWL/ SLM Report Schedule
Partnership Year 3: May 2022- April 2023

Document
Ref Number Report Type Submitted

1 Annual Service Report Y
2 Physical Activity, Health and Economic Support Outcomes Framework Y
3 Cleaning Schedule Y
4 Electrical Certificate Y
5 Emergency Action Plan Y
6 Environmental & Energy Plan Y ~
7 Equipment Inventory Y
8 Event Management Plan Y
9 Facility Health & Safety Procedures Y
10 Fire Risk Assessment Y
11 Grounds Maintenance Schedule Y
12 Legionella Reports Y
13 Licensing & Legislation Compliance Y
14 Lightening Conductor Y
15 Annual Marketing Plan Y
16 Opening Hours Y
17 Performance Monitoring Y
18 Pricing Schedule Y
19 Programmed Maintenance Y
20 Programme of Use Y
21 Property Database Y
22 Quest Accreditation & Contract Action Plan Y
23 Staff Training Plan Y
24 5 Year Maintenance Plan Y
25 Club Activ8 Scheme Annual Report Y

46 62 :355; /,o
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.environmental-expert.com/companies/kingfisher-environmental-services-ltd-53064&psig=AOvVaw0Q-SK3UO7uOeMgc1Pv5Sf5&ust=1592986433365000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCKCu34W_l-oCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.rya.org.uk/membership/benefits/Pages/benefit-detail.aspx?bid%3D229%26title%3DEveryone%2BActive%2B&psig=AOvVaw2oYqVS3I2R_pVf7-hI3Ehk&ust=1592986756271000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCJDS35_Al-oCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE

14. Appendix A

-

. -
14.1 Social Values

SOCIAL VALUE

CALCULATOR
REPORT

OPERATOR NAME :
EVERYONE ACTIVE

REPORT DATE:
11.05.2023

P
% DataHub

<> 1- FILTERS

4GLOBAL Social Value Calculator uses filtering based on date, location, demographics, membership and activity type. The following filters
have been been selected to generate this Social Value report.

DATE 01-2023 to 03-2023

BENCHMARK PERIOD Same period last year

LOCATION NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE CONTRACT

DEMOGRAPHICS Gender: All Age: A

CASUAL / MEMBER All

MEMBERSHIP TYPE All

ACTIVITY TYPE All

o 2 My oy S
e g &

< a0 W o 00 iy TS
“ e W N

47 63 R4 "
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Counci



2 - SOCIAL VALUE DASHBOARD

The dashboard displays the main Social Value KPIs based on selected filters: 1-Total social value generated, 2-Total number of participants
generating social value 3-Average social value per person, 4-Average social value per site, The total social value is then broken down by
manth within the selected time period and benchmarked against the same time period from the previous year,

SOCIAL VALUE
TOTAL SOCIAL VALUE TOTAL SV PARTICIPANTS PER PERSON SOCIAL VALUE PER SITE

£878,003 12,804 £292,668

OTAL SV PER MONTH

W ED0kK

Feb

@ Filter Period

MOMNTH ON MONTH CHANGE (1

INDICATORS

PHYSICAL & MENTAL SUBJECTIVE INDIVIDUAL
HEALTH WELLBEING DEVELOPMENT SOCIAL & COMM. DEVE

£149,448 £493,733 £225,552

HEALTH INDICATORS

The Subjective Wellbeing outcome refers to the increase in life satisfaction. It is calculated by multiplying the value of increased wellbeing
derived from a participant's engagement in sport by the number of unigue people taking part.

Individual Development refers to the improvement in educational attainment and higher starting salaries gained through participating in
sport at university.

Social and Community Development outcome represents the reduction in crime rates for young males and the social capital based on
improved networks, trust and reciprocity.

N_orth West
Leicestershire

District Council

every

L]
ne
ACTIVE




&
oy J
N . :
' |
1] - > ty
N
Y This section provides comparisons for the selected KPIs (social value per site, social value per person and social value growth) against the ,,/
3N sector benchmarks, For each KPI, you can see the Actual Value, the Index Score and the Sector Graph, which groups all individual sites from ‘)

el the sector into four quartiles based on their performance in the selected KP1 J

] ACTUALVALUE SV INDEX SCORE SOCIAL VALUE PER SITE (SECTOR GRAPH) /
| (Filter: £196,377

£196,377 e

69

@ Bottom quartile Second quartile Third guartile @ Top quartile

The average social value generated by each site within the selected time period is calculated by the
SOCIAL VALUE PER SITE division of the total social value generated by the operator by the number of sites included in the
filter. This value is then benchmarked with all sites the sector on the quartile graph.

Actual Value: The actual social value delivered by the operator (or the selected sites) within the selected time period.

Index Score: The percentage score (1 to 100) given to the operator (or the site) based on their performance against the rest of the sector -
a higher score represents better performance (i.e. 100 is the best performing sites operator).

Sector Graph: The graph with all sites from the sector matching the selected filters grouped into four quartiles based on their performance
- i.e. Top Quartile includes the best performing 25% of the sites in the sector and Bottom Quartile included the worst performing 25% of
the sites in the sector for the selected KPI.

ACTUAL VALUE SV INDEX SCORE SOCIAL VALUE PER PERSON [SECTOR GRAPH)
| - Filter: £53
£53 7 a5
59 ! :
a 12 20 30 &0 50 80 80 30 100 no 20 130 W0
@ Bottorm quartile Second quartile Third quartile @ Top quartile

riod. This value is
its that generated social

¢ each person within the selected time
otal social value by the number of partic

SOCIAL VALUE PER PERSON

SOCIAL VALUE CHANGE (%) YoY (SECTOR GRAPH)

ACTUAL VALUE SV INDEX SCORE

-17.61%

57

o quartile ond quartile Third gquartile @ Top quartile

This value represents the change in social value generated by the selected operato
the same time period in the benchmark year.

SOCIAL VALUE CHANGE (%) - YOY e compared to

49 65

) [ ]
N_orﬂ\ West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



This section focuses on the activity levels of individuals required to generate social value following the WHO guidelines for physical activity.
Social value is generated for ‘active’ participants at the physical activity threshold of 150+ minutes per week of moderate activity. In addition,
for health outcomes, social value is also generated for ‘fairly active’ participants (30-149 minutes) based on the reduced risk of developing
various health conditions.

SOCIAL VALUE PARTICIPANTS PERSON TYPE EREAKDOWN ACTIVITY LEVEL BREAKDOWN SOCIAL VALUE PER PERSON

12,803 1 £1.68

MEMBER CASUAL

Social Value Participants: The total number of unique individuals (member and casual users) that generated social value within the
selected time period.

Person Type Breakdown: Members are defined as faci ers with an active subscription (paid or unpaid) to use the facility. Casuals are
all facility users without an active subscription using the facility to do physical activity occasionally or regularly

Participant Breakdown: The total number of Active (150+ minutes per week) and Fairly Activity (30-149 minutes per week) participants
averaged across a month, including members and casual users.

Social Value Per Person: Average social value generated by each Active (150+ minutes per week) and Fairly Active (30-149 min per week)
person within the selected time period

TOTAL ACTIVE PEQPLE (%) ACTIVE PEOPLE (%) PER MONTH

Jar Maf-23 i

Feb

@ Filter Period @ Filter Period

TOTAL ACTIVE PEOPLE

PHYSICAL & MENTAL SUBJECTIVE INDIVIDUAL
HEALTH WELLBEING DEVELOPMENT SOCIAL & COMM. DEV.

12,647 4,487 353

Total number of unique individuals (members and casual users) that g
N Yo hy [ LT g S = e [0y yatel B[ cutcome areas - physical and mental health, subjective wellbeing, individual
and community d pment are displayed above.

L ]
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council




5 - LEAGUE TABLE

The data tables in this section display the main social value KPIs for the top five regions, contract and sites of the operator based on selected

filters with comparisons against the same period in the previous year, The full tables are available in SYC3 and can be exported in excel, csv
and pdf format,

HIGHEST SV (REGION) HIGHEST SV (CONTRACT) HIGHEST SV (SITE)
£878,003 £878,003 £644,506

EAST REGION NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE CJ WHITWICK & COALVILLE LEISURE WHITWICK & COALVILLE LEISURE

The region, contract and leisure centre of the operator generating the highest total social value within
SOCIAL VALUE LEADERBOARD

the selected time period are displayed in the above KPI boxes, In addition, the leisure centre with the
highest growth in social value generation is presented with its year-on-year growth rate.

LEAGUE TABLE - REGION (TOP 5)

m SOCIAL VALUE [FILTER PERIDD] 1 w PEORLE COUNT (FILTER PERICD} NG VALUIE PER PERSOM [FILTER PERIOD) 2 HANGE

EAST REGION EE78,003

LEAGUE TABLE - CONTRACT (TOP 5)

LEAGUE TABLE - SITE (TOP 5)

WHITWICK & COALVILLE LEISUIRE MORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE EAST REGION £644,506
CENTRE CONTRACT
ASHBY LEISURE CENTEE AND LIBG MESETH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE 1233220
CONTRACT
HERMITAGE LEISUSE CENTRE MORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE EAST REGION
CONTRACT

51 67

S [ ]
Northwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



%5 6 - MAP

The heat map displays the social value generated by the selected sites on a map view using the same filters from the dashboards.

i ; datahubclub.com
Building 7,
- . y Chiswick Business Park
3 —

566 Chiswick High Road
London W4 5YG, UK
Phone : + 44 (0) 208 123 4693 -

®
gxo DataHub

[ ) ... .
Northwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council




14.2 Everyone Active & NWLDC Community Wellbeing Plan

Everyone Active & NWLDC

Community Wellbeing Plan

Delivering our Key
Community Programmes

2022 - 2023
Everyone Active - North West Leicestershire
NG COMMUNITIES THROUGH ACTIVITY"

www.everyoneactive.com

1. Introduction

Everyone Active (EA) is a charitable trust that manages leisure centres and facilities across the country. In 2019 Everyone Active was awarded
the contract to manage Ashby Leisure Centre and Lido and Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre. The health and wellbeing of North West
Leicestershire (NWL) residents and the positive impact that we can have through our leisure centres is a priority for us.

The aim is to, In partnership with North West Leicestershire District Council, deliver programmes to support the health and wellbeing of
residents through physical activity, movement and sport as highlighted in this strategy. This plan captures EA’s actions which aim to support
the NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy, and the NWL Sport & Physical Activity Commissioning Plan.

It is important to note that the Leisure Industry, as a result of closures and restrictions during the Covid-19 pandemic, has seen considerable
financial impact, with our local centres being no exception to this. Therefore, this plan also includes actions to support our centres recovery
through reengagement in activity and sporting participation whilst ensuring activities are identified and executed in a way that will have
greatest impact on wellbeing. Leisure recovery and stabilising the centres for the future creates enormous benefit for NWL residents. The plan
will evolve over the coming years to shift the focus to community support.

Key — the below colours indicate that on oction aims to support the NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy or the NWL Sport & Physicol Activity
Commissioning Plan

B NWL Heolth & Wellbeing Strategy

W NWL Sport & Physical Activity Commissioning Plan

2. The power of Physical Activity, Movement and Sport

‘Step right up! It’s the mirocle cure we’ve all been waiting for.” (NHS.UK)

1t is well documented and backed up by strong scientific evidence that moving more, being physically active and participating in sport can have
huge benefits to a person’s physical health.

s a
Northwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



The Chief Medical Officer [CMO) recommends that children aged 5- 18 years old be physically active for at least 60 minutes per day and adults
150 minutes per week including 2 days of strength building.

Physical activity can reduce the risk of developing type 2 diabetes by 30-40% and can reduce the risk of conditions such as heart disease,
dementia, and stroke to name but a few.

s well as a tool to prevent disease it can be usad for rehabilitation and to manage certain medical conditions such as recovering from cancer
or heart conditions or living with long term conditions swch as arthritis. 4

Building mare moverment into daily life can improve strength, balance and motor skills which are essential to living longer in better health.
NWL has a rate of hip fracture that is significantly worse than the national average, increased levels of physical activity amongst residents
coild encourage a downward trend in the prevalence of hip fracture.

Meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity is an important aspect of maintaining a healthy weight. This plan aims to support the wider
work of the county's Healthy Weight Strategy implementation and local work through the NWL Health and Wellbeing Partnership and Primary
Care Network. NWL's prevalence of overweight and obesity is significantly higher than the national average in adults with 71.3% (Public Health
2021} of our adults classed as overweight or obese.

Scientific evidence also indicates that physical activity can support our residents to have the best start in life, reduce mortality, increase energy
levels, support better sleep and manage pain effectively.

As well as having an impact on physical health, physical activity, movement and sport can also positively impact in other ways too. Evidence
suggests that physical activity contributes to good mental wellbeing, it has the ability to reduce depression and in some cases anxiety.

Physical activity provides opportunity to overcome challenges, improve self-confidence, increase sense of purpose, build resilience, and make
social connections. All of which can contributes to fun, enjoyment, happiness, and life satisfaction.

Physical activity can support individual development. There is evidence that being active improves educational behaviour and attainment. NWL
has a lower than the national average attainment & score (GCSE grades achieved across 8 subjects), encouraging our children and young
people to be more physically active could help improve grades.

Physical activity can help to reduce anti-social behaviour giving young people activities to get involved with. It also provides opportunity to
volunteer which supports the development of skills, such as integrity and leadership.

Sport and physical sctivity bring people together, ity and i people from all backgrounds. Spart and physical
aetivity contribute £39 billion to the UK s economy and a significans portton of this comes from grassroom sporr, The sector boosts the econowmy
Directly, through job creation, and tndivectly by reducing healtheare costs due 1o a kealthier population aad reducing crime.”

orgh

3. Assessing Need

ver 40% of North West Leicestershire Adults are reportedly not meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity, of which 28.5% are
reportedly inactive (active less than 30m per week). This is reflective of the England data as shown in the charts below.

Sport England, Active Lives Survey, May 21)

54 70

[ ]
Northwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



55

Only 38%

of NWL’s children and young people
44.6%. However, 39

compared t

When developing the programmes set out in sections 7 we have taken into consideration the new Sport England Strategy ‘Uniting the
Movement’ and the issues identified within the strategy as set out below. The issues each specific programme will aim to address are set out in
the table in section 7

Issue Supporting Issue Description
S1 Recover and re-invent
s2 Connecting communities
53 Positive experiences for children and young people
54 Connecting with heaith & wellbeing
55 Active environments

The plan considers and supports priorities identified through the following.

o The NWL Health and Wellbeing Strategy

o The Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Strategy

e The NWL Healthy Communities Plan

* NWL Sport and Physical Activity commission plan

* Active Together Framework

* Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 2018 — 2021 Obesity: Physical
Activity, Healthy Weight and Nutrition

* Lelcestershire Healthy Weight Strategy

* Integrated Care System’s Life Course; Best start in life, Staying Healthy and Well, and
Living and Ageing Well.

* The NHS CORE20PLUSS Health Inequalities (Tackling health inequalities by supporting the 20% most deprived residents, plus those with

poor access to healthcare and have a condition recognised in the NHS 5 clinical areas of focus)

Barriers to participation:

*  Socio-economic status — families and personnel from lower socio economic backgrounds have less expendable money which can be

used to participate in sport/ activity. NWL has 2 number of low socioeconomic areas/residents which has the knock on affect on

activity/ sports participation

Disability - Inclusivity and access for accessible users is a key barrier to participation. The percentage of people living in the district with

a disability is higher than the national average.

*  Travel & time — Being a ‘rural’ district poses its own iSSbEiJrDBrfiefS for residents. Resident report not having available activities close
enough to them to engage in. Additionally, travel links need further work to allow NWL residents to travel around the dist heaply
and easily.

Both & national and local issue...
[Public Health England)

Physical INACTIVITY s responsible for one in six deaths and costs the country an estimated £7.4 billion o year”

This plan aims to tackle some of the barriers to physical activ
wishon of “Unit) 5
spexification around providing local economic benefit, supporting safe and inclusive neighbourhoods, educating, protecting and providing
opportunities for young people, and providing high quality services.

The specific aims of each programme are set out in the table in sections 7.

5. Outcomes

Everyone Active's Key Programmes to Support Community Wellbeing — These programmes are Everyone Active’s (EA) core conporate

pragrammes which are used to underpin programming within every contract.

Programme Outcome Description
1. Community & Education Delivery of governments new Kickstart programmes, apprenticeships, and online community education
Empioyment COUTSES
2. Club support ‘Work with our clubs to support a return of cub-based activities by providing flexible working

relationships

Social Prescribing

Support Eroups to re-engage with activity providing improved access to a range of activities at the
centres Delivery of the exercisa referral programme for adults and children working with GP practices
and school nursing teams

4. Supporting Inequalities Support Eroups to re-engage with activity providing improved access to a range of activities at the

CENtres

Partner and Local Network

‘Work with national partnerships to support local community networks gain greater access to our
facilities and provide viable activities for under-represented growps in the community.

6. Digi-activity Programme Utilise pur digital activity platform to provide wider access of activity services to priority areas that lack

facilities and provision to take part in regular physical and social activities

71

N
L?I

l.l:]
orthWest
cestershire

strict Counc

everyone
ACTIVE



Leisure Contract Specification — Authority Outcomes

This strategy sets out how we intend to meet the specified cutcomes in the NWLDC Leisure Services contract. The NWLDC outcome that each
specific programme will aim to support is set out In the table in section 7.

Outcome Description

Improwving Health and Wellbeing and Reducing Health inequalities
Providing Local Economic Benefit
Supporting Safe and Inclusive Neighbourhoods

Educating, Protecting and Providing Opportunities For Young People
Providing High Quality Services

and p
(sits within the appendix — Energy Engagement Plan 2022/23)

-ﬂmUhm>L§

The strategy broadly aims to achieve the following outcomes.

Tackle and reduce health inequalities across the district

Provide skills, employment opportunities and local economic benefit

Provide opportunities for the inactive to be physically active

Provide exercise and activity referral intervention for health-related conditions

Support groups in our o to be more physically active

Support our community clubs to provide stability and developmental opportunities

Work collaboratively with partners to provide active spaces for community groups

e Use digital platforms to reach rural or isolated residents with less opportunity to access to physical activity provision
Educate, protect and provide opportunities for young people

Play an integral part in the districts journey towards a carbon net zero future

The specific outcomes of each programme are set out in the table in section 7.

Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning

All programmes will be evaluated using Active Together's [Leicester, Leicestarshire and
Rutland's Active Partrership) Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning (MEL) Framework.
This is a consistent approach across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.

The principles and approach within the framework have been designed using natianal
guidance set out by Sport England and the Office for Health Improvement and Disparities
[formerly Public Health England).

The framework supparts the production of accurate, high-quality reporting to
understand value and demonstrate impact. It allows the generation of evidence in order
to learn and guide future actions. It promotes interaction and reflection across our local
system ta connect, exchange and develop our leaming. It allows us to demonstrate what
is working and learn from what is not. It’s helps us to evidence and tell a story about the
impact on people and places.

The Framework provides a tool kit which inchudes a bank of standard guestions to build
our own pre and post questionnaires/data collection tools and guidance to adapt the
questions to ensure that they are accessible. The framework also provides pre-populated
question templates, an evaluation plan template, logic model, leaming log and learning
case study templates.

The framewark encourages MEL thraughout the programme, this allows learning to
happen during and adjustments made accordingly.

Ay targets o outcomes detailed in the plan are for both centres collectively, unless otherwise stated.

56

=

J

ol I it it
1 4
oy
-4
'..;J J !
PR R 244

72

N_orm West
Leicestershire

District Council

everyone

ACTIVE



7. Community Wellbeing Plan

Community & Education Er (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 1)

What [Activity Nesd [ Whan u Whe (Target Growg = Parformance
Gap/ Develpment]  (Tisascab)  (Locition] & Partners] il Indicators
Provide ki sore 60 x Comtras
tacilivias 1o bl p VISITS gy
increass physical 145 per quaries)
imgacting 10
imviduals

Target Greup
MWL Residents
CORE2OMLUSS.

Partmars
Wi

Target Greup.
WL Residnts
Appranticessip ssarify

Ganerally simea 3t | appranticessip
parscesal ovor age | eeporunitios ter
of1g ew agphcants and
wsdsting cobasguses o
Work piacemant - | train and devsiog in
Forpasonnelin | medtiple positionsto [ 2x

COREOPLUSS and commurity- defiverod
Basid services.
Pstors & werk
Collogs [ scheols | Peovide opgortunity | placossnts
tor gxpariance aed
Lacallspers chbs/ | petential

partmers ampkony L within
o cantes:

Job Cantre kick
Start Prograssma

Lititions Trainieg
Whitwick | Targat Greup. darnily mesbars of Al wea

& Coalvilo | COREMOPLUSS | thee curram 22 Y B undartaie
Laigre Risidents fcument | worklona and NWL | aim far training wil
Cantre EA amployees RS 10 SRR U havve

57 73

o /'.
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



[
Cantre &
(™

Pataars
Comenuniny Geoups
e Coalvilo Can,
Inchush Play
Schuma

NWLDC

0ihe L2 skl
Engram me b tran
i Lifeguard,
Fitngss, frent of
Beuss, Saks, and
coachieg.

L2 5LA [Sap
= D] (L =
March)

25 Swisming
taachars

oppotanity b
sty for
amgloymant or
adtional ks
within our
Ieiure cantres.

Al will be
offarad

welurnesr
opportanity.

It has recanly
bean idannifiad
that tharis 3

Club Support (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 2)

[Activity Nesd
D

Spportieg Taiamed
Arvdatas

oaguing

Whare

Whitwick &

Coalvila
Laisura
Comtra

Laisura
Comtro &
Lids

Target Group
Aihlktes aperating
at regional,
mational, and
intermational
puriomancs lavel

Pantners
WWLDC

Activa Togather
Speets Clults
MWL Speet

Dearating undar
the Evaryoes At
Sportieg Champion:
and 6o Gold
schame, working
wilh i local
authority, active
panneshigs and
thi chibe; EA will
aflar membership
suppon, provising
Tréw access b high
gty tacilinis for
thase compating at
ragional and
national keval

Tha atkstes must
be able b vidence
that they are
comglating at
ragional er mational
vl

Iglemant &
dedicatad
ifermation Beard
o track and
pomata atelete
progress

Dutputs

-5 % Athiatas
(L1
o berships)

ALCOmeeaaning
thesa atlstes
Rl urthes thee
ralanned athistes
wraising aed
Sovicpmeet.
Shewcasing the
Eansfits of using
Paaith & lokre
sarvica may
nspre othars o
partidpata in
sp0n and ghysical

athlotes helps 1o
s Ehe dstvict s
oo

physical acthity
at both EA and
NWLDC
community
imterventions
and events to
imspire children
and young
peopie.

Parlorance
Indicat

74

'03
N_orthWest
Leicestershire

District Council

y o

everyone



Revarming the Workieg with
progreming wsisting chets]
T of the Eookses tahidp | 51,52,55
chbs, balincieg @row our astareal | CB
time for casual usa, Eaokings
chebs, and coursas. parttolia, Bast Staetin
caesoguntly ™
Aasassing resdant ivieg mon
chet’s gsisting and epporusity for | Stay
sevalopemantss MWL residentsto | Haaithy  and
naas fo7 th i angage in sert, | Wl
cic Paaith, keisua
Target Geoup Fladble | g cocia Liing  and
Local Sports Cletis | Workwith local z:’gm" activitiar. Againg well
Whitwick & | Commurity Groves. | ehbs, residests and .
Coahvila NWLDC Sgorts “"‘,’;““‘ g | Provises
Lisure Partners Duvalopment aatommart! | addtiona
Comtra Activa Togethar | Officertoidanuty | SRPMIN | o ) g
= ML Spest gapsinthe dapricrs [ =00 wokntary socter
B | ashy leclutive Soeuring | sperting provisioe. 0 contieus e
Comsas | Mt —— 2anewcuns | SEEUELI
Lt panness. and L o | coponuaity for
actwities 10 Fuidonts 10 b
comgioanttha | PRSI gy

5M poits will hilp

Cantras b supgert o amd
locakisad social adva i 1o MWL
madia (58] ruidonts of he | 315255
Aratagis through & acities which | £
planssd and thiy can acces
Anectuned their local Bast stantin
sppicath cantres. Lite
[Marksting Plan Adationally
02,23) 10 adwnkingother | Staying
create cub local partnars for | Healthy  and
raistrations a2 bigger SM wal
Target Geoups i bseshiss ruach. Sl e |
s wsad to Lhing  and
Whitwick & CORETOPISS Wiorkieg 10 the ANCouaEe Age g Wl
Coahile | i | same cameain FidE 16 8
Laisura plansar as NWLDC S aClive and -
Contra i Haalth aed Srysecal | 1 sieps
Social Madia Wallbeing Team o i w2 B ity
Oogong | oy m i el | PR ifestyle theough
Laisura Lcalspons s | ™SSR the promotion <
comral [ iha sepponieg local mational and local
; agsthar . .
Lida and sational campaigns.

o heith, malbang
and moving mom
incluging Lat’s Gat
Moving'.

Promata CAE:
panmes

Promots WWLDC &
panners SM and
romation

75

59 <]
everyone
ACTIVE

'03
N_orthWest
Leicestershire

District Council



60

Masch
2023

Coatvite
Loisure
Comtra

Ashby
Leisure
Contro &

Whitwick &

Target Groups

Now and existing
Local Sports Chubs

Suppeet small and
madium sized dubs
10 istegrata and
establsh
hemaadess ino the
contras activity
poetiolio.

entey.

Censidared on 3n
indiisua basis to

accommodata

priciog policy | mere bookiegs
that supports | within the centre,

s/ coesoguontly
acswites increasing
starting inthe | oppornunity for
Woisure reudents 1o o
Tacilinies ie. physically actve
Dexible tierod | 5ng supporting
priceg Behaviour charge
Srategy at This approach wil

the poist ot | noiy smaller/ less

fiancaly secsw
b to access
our state of the
an tacilities as
wedl as king to
ke substantial
sized bookings

51,5255
ce

Bast Stantin
s

Staying
Hoaltey  and
wos

thieg  and
Aquiey el

What [Activity Nesd
Jeap)

Devslopment]

Enarcisa Raferral
Secial Prascribieg

Social Prescribin

Whan

[Timseseala)

March
03

Wihere
[Lscatien)

Everyone Adlive Targeted

Wiha (Targer Geoup
& Partnrs]

Target Grougs
Al with low be
madum rick, hazdth
coeditions.
CORETOPLLSS

cther madical

L
Public Haslty

Provising 4 x lavel 3
narcise ratanra
gualifd imstructer
oty | @nincisa
SO por Wk
Prewisa SEcoust on
baith exual s for
thed haraticm o their
tim on the schiss
142 wewks) sadd
digcint mesBorhin
few & mosahs.

Prowicia space Tor
Cantiesulmasary
classas at sach
cantre.

Proiia 3t (o, wherd

pradaated from the
Candiegulmanary
schims.

Proicia space Tor the
Srwady Steps and
Seady Steps Mus
pregrammes.

ramme 3

programea
Tinishes (12
e

Outcoms

Providieg a robust
health support
prograsen for piople
with koww b high sk
health conditioes te
wercise s faly.

Supporting social
prascrigtion will
alliviata additional
P on thi NKS
aead rulated sarvices by
incraasing ganiipast's
skl actiity.
Conributing 1o 3
bettar quality ol Ba.
Imgenvemant and

man et ol
meaScal conditions and
S thise abiity to
manage owe pivysical
aead mantal wilRing.

i@t SOSIUR,
stability, rangih, and
balanca in oldar aduls
1o raduce tha risk of
tailieg.

Ve 1 wil prowide o
baseline, due 1o the
posdemsic affectiog
deieiry vt the
previses 2 years

»

Stayiey
Hualthy and
e

Liing
Aquieg Wel

76

[ ]
N_orﬂ\ West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



Degaing

Praseription]

Target Grous
Badulis wha bave
e 10 meieivae risk

Paalth redated
cond itiong.
Ewaryosa
e | coRexmess
potr | Exoncsa voterral
participants
Exi Agp [r—
Fartmer
HWLDC

Evaryaea Activa and
NWLDE 10 sapport
the promotion of the
Exi ape via:

LY
Metwerking
with

Frimary
e

parmTs
such as
&P,

#h;
HHS

i,

Commu
Health
Ser

Fublc
Health, and
s

*The asp will b

usad 1o add

waiug tothe

seppleman not
a raplacamant of
Tace toace

ssppon.

ragistar to
tha app.

iksien the g for
rafare dints wil
hilp i azsily
accessiia information
e tham, allawing
taliored acthities 1o
aceass. This
sshancemest o the
schama will suppest

track
pihysical ane
heaith. The
TasowEn s exgactad 1o
rartuce: ATt rats.
Tha £5 Ape will help
TaganSs 10 ischushity 35
180 app is Basgoks 12
wach parsen whi usis
it ghing ssars
spacific parscn
wenercica plan/
asistance.

51,52,54

Hualthy and
el

Lving  and
Ay Wl
-

Supporting Inequalities (Everyone Aclive Targeted Programme 41

Actiity subscriptions
suppesting fasiliés

onlowincomas [ o

Children and
Famiiis:
Wallaing Senica
of theough the
Active Families
Sohame
sk
Lisung COREJOPLUISS.
Cantre &
s Pastnaes
| Craldran &
iy | Fames
| wolbeing sanice
tacilinas [ o

Commenity clubs
et delivery
pastrars

NWLOC

Usa 3 whok Taesily
approach 1o
pivysical activty.

Assessad on 3
carie-by-case Bags
Wi will week with
NWLDC and tha
chidran and
farilias weilbeing
SIACE L0 prowis
frie e low cost
ancess 10 sasskons
and acthithis.

W il with
rasidant chus e
provide low cost
Aok 0 5p0r1

W il with
parinars io
SUPPON aCoass 10
agupmant and
sports clathisg
whiars rageingd
and whire
pasibis.

Dubar 3 5%
increase in
the numbsr of
sepponed
ehildron and

M pravious
dara

‘This aggroach wil
sppart
engagement with
residanas from low
secio-atonsec
Backgrounds and
peovide cogonunity
naccess
squigment and

2,53

Bast Stant in

Staying
Healiy and
wall

61

77

everyone
ACTIVE

N.or{H West
Leicestershire

District Counc



Sucoess will be
menitorad thieugh
he use ol
anamymiad case
S U b e
sgacific and
sangitive natu of
h Schemsa.

‘Wi intand o impact
@ach individual’s life
with social, physical
and amatioeal
Banedis.

naithar

cara awars Iving | Evaryone

i NWL that wiih | Active ner
tousw thelabure | Nerth Wast
Commenity clubs | canras. Leicastarshina
e halhoey District
partears 2 Comncil i
any contrad of
NWLDC framber af
rafamrals
made, we
oty hand
caningd over
s regquirod. ratantion
ratas

Partner & Local Network (Everyone Active T ted Programme S

What (Activity Newd | Whar Whete  Who (Target Pertormanc
Gap/Development)  (Timescale)  (Loc Group & « Ingicaners
Partnars)

i partnarshi with
NWLDC, we hiave

idontified 3 tack of
proviion withia the
strict fo residents
with Gisabiktes and

Target Groups against
Paople with 2009720
Ssaniinnes and space and
ddiicnal neads usage kvels
{13t non
Local isaisty Covid19
wous matue yoar)
play/sessions
Eseych Praviois 1635 | 1o the city o
Lsisewiththalocst | sccessie | elsewtare in o
Moschys usars couetycan have 3
panticipations | consideradie
(2019/2020) | megative effect or
SX increase, | mean tat thoy are
Taget 1715 | met b to access
sassions.

2x 00w
ccessivis
user sassions
rennieg per
ok

62 78 2 /0
NorthWest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



e

Wert wilh el Titer peopie
Authority Parnpes | X RO hava 3
o conmerwan | wEon 1,555
::;‘W' Tor oldar Ao
PecpIOrOLES | o rofactiiior will | Lidag  and
‘Whireick Targut Group Discounted use for Bealp incraace the: Againg Well
& O ar papbar TESHNT Prou| . skl act
Coahile | COREROMLLISS | Ashiby Bridgo Club awak for this - :
Leisur samograghic
Providieg active Cantre Partsars Offar fres Soorts. PO ing postural
spaces for clder aduits | Maech 2023 Cidor panghe hall  meating spaca saaile
dalivery parnars | for orgasisatioes traity and
g Age SuSgOrting old ar o longan in Batter
Comcarm) pecple’s mantal Pt
WD snd plupical activty | 1o o =5
s e— ks MWL Bs Bigh v
2029/2020 of Bip fracture,
Sui ppot the Staady 5% increase, EORraMm such
Sogs pogramma | S 2o o
i pdcE : pecsitivaly impact en
tha rate of hig
tracnare
Target i extiling an 2o
Disadvanagad oyl o
childran and childran from a 51,52, 55
‘Whireick Tamibas N yousg age will balp | ACD
& Worwith o3l | ynrgn | naate s hait for
Coahile | Lowincome Yo e ivion | unsarstaed | ita. Thi has many | Best Start in
Leisura Tamibas - ha mdind ool Eanidin L
. aeat idarmity geoues:
Providieg active Cantre presidieg actiitios potanial increasiog physical
spoces for childeen | Maezh 203 cossaomugs | EEERETE | parmas. acthiny b, -
seppOr groups Ay e Uncarstand | Banefits physical
Leisura Partsars N 1re gags and mamal hisakth
Contre & | Sported May e prosssice, and alowing
Save the Childran addiieea
Drildran and sniali ation for
Familis childran.
W lbeing Sarvice
NwDC

ne Active Targeted Programme &

What [Activity wh, Who [Tanget Grewp &
e | Gap / ILoeation)  Partnars) How Outpus

[
Using This agp 1o
groe furthes
CRPOMTusities to
Comnect with googha andschodks | 51, 51, 53,55
e a T
N Ul'bﬁ’.wilt.ﬂr\’-lh o 2t 'ufil[.n ﬁlDﬂ;(V’i‘.‘th Bést Saat in
;ﬂ";::mm' Fpect aducaien s ngec Sz grouptoba mare | Lite
March CEROMUMLES ehyically actia.
| Ll arowsdihe | Colect o wallas -
”'"::.tx“““ :::2‘;"[ EAQ platieem | baseling incraassing physical
sl and actiitas | dataforagp | actiity
Active Tagethar 0 S . partipEen, this
after sl app hedps 10
simplify the
aluiery o physical
: activity for the
school
Target Groups. Owaradl putcomas
Chilsran 3 young paopk Workieg WD | 4 eentity 101 b dafinad 3z
idarnified & fkty 10 POSPRZONG | orecan | part of tha peopie | 51,52, 53,55
particigata in anti-social foapom | o | 2o plassing ALD
Whitwick & | Bshasdour i | 1o b process _
Gande | g | telerad bl
ctners : . Liter
Mdantity ety esopk 1000 f‘::l:;'"'
pponUIitis for 1 HWLIC offorang | oo =
.wmm_lmn Ay 2022 Ashiy CEpPOrunitEs e
P Poaaes) Active Togethar and Charks in
o | Booth Canare Tacksing Thingstoms |
T wanualitis Propict] :‘:'_ " P
- what vall b
Peopk 2one a plot
gt morkis | Police chami

63 79 % ®

N.or{H West | eve r\6ne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



64

Children. young pecple, and families

EA will offar 2 variod rangs:

Dutpiits

[EI——

ks ancserage CYF o
Aty withie OuF et
and adStonally with cur
panners

Wia Bawe identifiod gaps in
peovition across the district

fortr and
Rymnastics

Gymnastics clubis ware.
Fapoeting a 2-yei waiing
(3

Session stanting in Apd
2.

Sy atics
4 trampakine
2 adventura mania

activities te our
portioko wil bals ta
new

participants it our
conras

I resdcing naw
activities 1o owr
portioks will alg ta
ngage niw
participants isgo our
cammes

Starting thes new
secsions will ieduce
ths wiiting kst of
local chubss, provwising
MO Seponusities
for Chikdren and
eung propk o be
active.

Cluls based within
ot pur faciities
and th wit
community

NWRLDC

Tiiter sassices provided ina
Wit range of SCThITRS v
2 dayy

A minimum ol % dubs
Basen a gack site and 2%
‘chibs ot based 3t tha sites
peovide tastar sessions
waithia thi Opan D3y

Using this ogen day/
activity day 35 an
oppertunity e
cakbrate and
ancourage pocple
ima sport and
activity. Gaving
axparnge of variad
activities, that thiy
My cEharwiis s
hass tha pportusity

clibs 25 thay wil gain
asditional esposurs,
hedpieg them: 1o

incraasa thair

ot noemadly ccess @
Vs cantro to
come dong et
taking tha e to
come and have 3 kock
P L pe—
ta contamglating a
hesalth er Whestyle

80

N_or‘:H West
Leicestershire

District Council

everyone

ACTIVE



Whiteick
& Coalill
Laisur
Catre

Clab Artivl Scham | Marck 2003 | Astiy
Laisurn
Cantre &
udo

L
District

Target Geoups
Chikdron aed Young
LT

COREIOPLUSS

Primary schosis
Upper schools

A scheols in
disirit

Schoal Sports
Fartnarship [ School
Gamat Officar

HWLDC

Engaging mith MW
Lecitershise schooks 10
i erdias el aEtidty
lavaki ded ieas canre
e

Penmatiag focal chate and
pannars

Incraasa

signeet up
From 34t

Incrusing CAB usigs
wil consaquenty

W Liics residant's
acthvity leveds, Having
@ positive imgact on
thai pipsical, mestal
aed emationsl
health.

SR LS
help ancourage
children ista new
activities which thay
My BOE i

et Wncid bedora.

SehaiG USS CIn
angage with Turther
local opportusitios
susch a5 local ehobis

and busingss's

Best Start
inLie

Improve engagement for

wihe,

What [Activiey Hesd

Whitwick
B
Inchsiva play ssson | o Emhinle
Cantrs

ople with physical and learni

Wha [Target
Group & Partners|

Target Geoup
513y s with
leaemiag disabiktios
and spacial
educaticeal nods

Partsars

Spenal Edacatenal
Mt [SEN]
scheoks

Earych

Muasghys

WWLDC

NWL ieciutive
Stanring Group

Continu 1o provide 1 5
hour play session for
childres with disasilines
i sk far 3 Mt ol
16 wieks

Crutput

Avaraga af
10 pecpke
antanding

por zaszien

T engags this group in
Ebysical acthiny/play
‘sassioes 10 bl
CTEaL O wadkdy
acthety vk
Beclugvicy s a key
peionity, tharsfor
contieuiing this
Rsispuoke sesaion will
v opportusity to this
Rapat group. We know
that theew s 2 ek of
inclusive peyucal
acthity provision i
MWL frem mapping
and ceesuhanicn.
Currantly rasisants
Rand o teavel to the
[
The County 1 aosss
penvigons. Incraasing
Tocal prewisice wil
pesitivily impact both
hose with dsabibities
and garants and
cares. It will educe
cost, trawal tima and
the prassura that they
et on indivicaals s
Hamito

disabilities, mental wellbeing conditions

ABCE
52,54, 55

Bag Startin
Lifa

Avwerage ol
10 s peale

attandieg
i GSSR

65

81

Comanantad [FKT]: Can wa have some commsntary o
whaat's baing dena 10 get this back on track please?

ML2R1): R s
et 1
falthough childran gain SSCounts Thiough o provider]
P sed 1o pay for x

amymons [aitheu gh w ofer 3 discountod rate)
~CHildren on o Swim SCTMa G frae swimiming which
i sarvi iy Fothacad th use of peints Tor swimming

o B Gueries o Tha Fogart a5 | Son't balve its pulling
ifall tha ralatad infis needed 1o worik out iha wiage %

N_or.':rm West ever\féne
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



A acice i tha North
\Wiest Laicestarshire Haslth
and Willieg Strategy,
this approach i baisg
atiogted ie Nerth Wast
Laicestarshira. Evaryone
Active: will support this
aperoach by sominating a
mamsar of st 1o
camplata the Traie tha
Traiear qualification.

This will allow Eviaryces
Acthon ta defivar MECT
Tha geewral traiing to thesr staff such
Population as Rceptionists, Lifageants
Irasisents and and Fitaass Instructon.
vidtorstoNonh | This will give their staff iha
Wast skills, confidence, and
Liscusta rshira] Emcavincgn ba rcomn
haalthier Nfestyie choices prascribing

Once Ehe identified
mamEar of sttt is ual

a5 a traiear, thay wil
developa MEEE
programme of trining for
Evuryeea Activ's
weeklorce [miling oet in
3133) and sepport the
District Couscil 10 raie
other ogasisations withis:
Narh West Laicestorshie.

Colieating the sporting achiovamants of paople | A, B,C.0,E
withie pur ditrict will el Shewcase the great 515,53,
suceess that ponglo achisws thisegh spor, actity | 54,5

and a healthy ifestyia. Ferthanmons, the
colabration avant beslps to gabaeize tha Sstrct | BastStartia
thizegh posities premotion of activity. This Life
Cofabeannny event will 3C1 36 inspiration 1o
rasidents of MWL Thiough tha hoart wanming and | Stayieg
ispiring Aorios and ackiovasants. it ighights | Healihy asd
what is possibie, o matter who yoe s and wisll
eeccurages paricigation in sport and Physical
Activity, and to take Regs tewards 2 heakhy g aed
iastia. Agquing Well

“Spart con b the ghue TAIT kieas communiies
ragether and is o perasne 00! -
in prometing shared interests slosgide fostering
ke sense of chvic pride.

1 bave seen ot fiest-hand e BOSEINE Do SBOrT

ondl recreation esent, from

chidien of ol backgreunds e istiag TN Ao
at their local communicy

Itk 350 an epportusity 10 Fecegnise and thank
thi veduinto s whe werk tirsksly to in dubs
and activitias, WWL N 2 very §ood sparting oftar
whiich i domn 10 The volunesrs. W will su rey
Schools 10 JEcertain i Todd Dack o the dwant
aed it thai schee childran were insgired.

66 82 . °

Northwest | everyone
Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



T8 5 avars A B,COE
Swimathons P v 515,53,
o competition: wilhidp | 54,55
Swimming showecasa and £reata traffic for our £antres.
Galas Adebtienaly, it wil Sncousg poopa 1o coma 1o | Stayieg

U CoRLIS, QRPN CE The Taciitics aed Healifry aed
cONGEqUANTlY reTum 10 Take part in furtharsport. | Wiell

Wehitwick
Coalvila

Leisura
Coatra

Ashiy c
Public Evants. | nan -

ABCDE
512,58,
54,55

Bast Srart i
sparts dubs
and whar Staying
aperopriste Healifry aed
Targat respond 1o wel
Greups Ehesa raeds.
Living  asd

Whitwick | Localspeets
Paying  kiay partin MWL Sport wil halp place our
& e e = Aquieg Wall

B el comtr in 3 et pesiion o secommodtacal
e | vtoers | uprocun PP gt Ty e e I |
Freay Sehaal Sperts | ActhE. scussion and formulation of ideas and plans 1o

help redcn Barviers Lo spart and inEneese activity

Ashby [ Pastearchip 4
Laisurs Active Seppon dub vt with & collaborative a peen;

Comtra Together werkforce
NWLDC development.

Suppon

acess o
facibtios.

moetiegs

Fartrars Tdantify sulability of the ara ouisise Whitwick | A, B, €, 0, E
aed Coabille Lokurs Costra 10 Rost a jurior 51,5253,
Al schaok is parkne 5455
disarict EA B NWLDC W suitabie plaesing wil comeance for WILL 10
hest junier garkmn. Staying
Whitwick | School Sperts i Healthy asd
& Fartnarshig { Wiell
Juy2022 | Coatvibg | School
Losure [ Gamas
Contra
NWLDC -
-
WL
resigents
Fartnrs A B CDE
EA o seppart 51,53,53,
Allschookis | NWLOC with 5435
diarict commurity .
and thamesd Simying
whitwick | School Sports | walks within Haalthy and
E Partearship /| tha dicmict Ut thess walks 10 eegage CYF families and MWL | wail
Coalvita [ Sehoal Fremating Tasidents it activity paricigation i a friendly,
Leisur | Games the malks 35 COMmenal 08 COmEatitivg SANDT.
Contra Officar wall a5 -
halping
s facibtats
tham at EA
sit@s [WELE).

NL
rasidents

67 83 % ™

N.or{H West | eve I"\/('?) ne

Leicestershire ACTIVE

District Council



everyone
ACTIVE




s
Community Wellbeing Plan \ J
Y £ (‘,A\‘ ‘
/

4

Everyone Active & NWLDC

Delivering our Key

~
Community Programmes |

L]

2022 — 2023 TSI

Everyone Active - North West Leicestershire

| “UNITING COMMUNITIES THROUGH ACTIVITY

WWW.everyoneactive.com




98

1. Introduction

Everyone Active (EA) is a charitable trust that manages leisure centres and facilities across the country. In 2019 Everyone Active was awarded
the contract to manage Ashby Leisure Centre and Lido and Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre. The health and wellbeing of North West
Leicestershire (NWL) residents and the positive impact that we can have through our leisure centres is a priority for us.

The aim is to, in partnership with North West Leicestershire District Council, deliver programmes to support the health and wellbeing of
residents through physical activity, movement and sport as highlighted in this strategy. This plan captures EA’s actions which aim to support
the NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy, and the NWL Sport & Physical Activity Commissioning Plan.

It is important to note that the Leisure Industry, as a result of closures and restrictions during the Covid-19 pandemic, has seen considerable
financial impact, with our local centres being no exception to this. Therefore, this plan also includes actions to support our centres recovery
through reengagement in activity and sporting participation whilst ensuring activities are identified and executed in a way that will have
greatest impact on wellbeing. Leisure recovery and stabilising the centres for the future creates enormous benefit for NWL residents. The plan
will evolve over the coming years to shift the focus to community support.

Key — the below colours indicate that an action aims to support the NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy or the NWL Sport & Physical Activity
Commissioning Plan

B NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy
Bl NWL Sport & Physical Activity Commissioning Plan

2. The power of Physical Activity, Movement and Sport

‘Step right up! It’s the miracle cure we’ve all been waiting for.” (NHS.UK)

It is well documented and backed up by strong scientific evidence that moving more, being physically active and participating in sport can have
huge benefits to a person’s physical health.



.8

The Chief Medical Officer (CMO) recommends that children aged 5- 18 years old be physically active for at least 60 minutes per day and adults
150 minutes per week including 2 days of strength building.

Physical activity can reduce the risk of developing type 2 diabetes by 30-40% and can reduce the risk of conditions such as heart disease,
dementia, and stroke to name but a few.

As well as a tool to prevent disease it can be used for rehabilitation and to manage certain medical conditions such as recovering from cancer
or heart conditions or living with long term conditions such as arthritis.

Building more movement into daily life can improve strength, balance and motor skills which are essential to living longer in better health.
NWL has a rate of hip fracture that is significantly worse than the national average, increased levels of physical activity amongst residents
could encourage a downward trend in the prevalence of hip fracture.

Meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity is an important aspect of maintaining a healthy weight. This plan aims to support the wider
work of the county’s Healthy Weight Strategy implementation and local work through the NWL Health and Wellbeing Partnership and Primary
Care Network. NWL'’s prevalence of overweight and obesity is significantly higher than the national average in adults with 71.3% (Public Health
2021) of our adults classed as overweight or obese.

Scientific evidence also indicates that physical activity can support our residents to have the best start in life, reduce mortality, increase energy
levels, support better sleep and manage pain effectively.

As well as having an impact on physical health, physical activity, movement and sport can also positively impact in other ways too. Evidence
suggests that physical activity contributes to good mental wellbeing, it has the ability to reduce depression and in some cases anxiety.

Physical activity provides opportunity to overcome challenges, improve self-confidence, increase sense of purpose, build resilience, and make
social connections. All of which can contributes to fun, enjoyment, happiness, and life satisfaction.

Physical activity can support individual development. There is evidence that being active improves educational behaviour and attainment. NWL
has a lower than the national average attainment 8 score (GCSE grades achieved across 8 subjects), encouraging our children and young
people to be more physically active could help improve grades.

Physical activity can help to reduce anti-social behaviour giving young people activities to get involved with. It also provides opportunity to
volunteer which supports the development of skills, such as integrity and leadership.



88

Sport and physical activity bring people together, encourages community and integrates people from all backgrounds. ‘Sport and physical
activity contribute £39 billion to the UK’s economy and a significant portion of this comes from grassroots sport. The sector boosts the economy
in two ways. Directly, through job creation, and indirectly by reducing healthcare costs due to a healthier population and reducing crime.’

(Sportengland.org)

3. Assessing Need

Over 40% of North West Leicestershire Adults are reportedly not meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity, of which 28.5% are
reportedly inactive (active less than 30m per week). This is reflective of the England data as shown in the charts below.

70%

60.9%

60%

50%

40%

30% 27.5%

20%

11.6%

10%

0%
England (Nation)

% Levels of activity:
B Inactive: less than 30 minutes a week [l Fairly active: 30-149 minutes per week [l Active: at least 150 minutes a week

(Sport England, Active Lives Survey, May 21)

70%

59.2%

60%

50%

40%

28.5%

30%

20%

12.2%

10%

0%
North West Leicestershire LA

% Levels of activity:
B Inactive: less than 30 minutes a week [l Fairly active: 30-149 minutes per week [l Active: at least 150 minutes a week



68

Only 38% of NWL'’s children and young people are meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity compared to the England Average of
44.6%. However, 39.1% are fairly active meaning we perform significantly better than the England average for inactive children at 22.9%
compared to an England average of 32.4%. (Sport England, Active Lives Survey, May 21)

When developing the programmes set out in sections 7 we have taken into consideration the new Sport England Strategy ‘Uniting the
Movement’ and the issues identified within the strategy as set out below. The issues each specific programme will aim to address are set out in
the table in section 7.

Issue Supporting Issue Description
S1 Recover and re-invent
S2 Connecting communities
S3 Positive experiences for children and young people
S4 Connecting with health & wellbeing
S5 Active environments

The plan considers and supports priorities identified through the following.

e The NWL Health and Wellbeing Strategy

e The Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Strategy

e The NWL Healthy Communities Plan

e NWL Sport and Physical Activity commission plan

e Active Together Framework

e Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 2018 — 2021 Obesity: Physical
Activity, Healthy Weight and Nutrition

e Leicestershire Healthy Weight Strategy

e Integrated Care System’s Life Course; Best start in life, Staying Healthy and Well, and
Living and Ageing Well.

e The NHS CORE20PLUSS Health Inequalities (Tackling health inequalities by supporting the 20% most deprived residents, plus those with
poor access to healthcare and have a condition recognised in the NHS 5 clinical areas of focus)




06

Barriers to participation:

e Socio-economic status — families and personnel from lower socio economic backgrounds have less expendable money which can be
used to participate in sport/ activity. NWL has a number of low socioeconomic areas/residents which has the knock on affect on
activity/ sports participation

e Disability — Inclusivity and access for accessible users is a key barrier to participation. The percentage of people living in the district with
a disability is higher than the national average.

e Travel & time — Being a ‘rural’ district poses its own issues/ barriers for residents. Resident report not having available activities close
enough to them to engage in. Additionally, travel links need further work to allow NWL residents to travel around the district cheaply
and easily.

4, Aims

7

Both a national and local issue.... ‘Physical INACTIVITY is responsible for one in six deaths and costs the country an estimated £7.4 billion a year.
(Public Health England)

This plan aims to tackle some of the barriers to physical activity and support more residents to become more active. We aim to deliver on our
vision of ‘Uniting communities through Activity’. In addition, the plan also aims to support some of the wider outcomes within the delivery
specification around providing local economic benefit, supporting safe and inclusive neighbourhoods, educating, protecting and providing
opportunities for young people, and providing high quality services.

The specific aims of each programme are set out in the table in sections 7.



T6

5. Outcomes

Everyone Active’s Key Programmes to Support Community Wellbeing — These programmes are Everyone Active’s (EA) core corporate

programmes which are used to underpin programming within every contract.

Programme Outcome Description
1. Community & Education Delivery of governments new Kickstart programmes, apprenticeships, and online community education
Employment courses

2. Club support

Work with our clubs to support a return of club-based activities by providing flexible working
relationships

3. Social Prescribing

Support groups to re-engage with activity providing improved access to a range of activities at the
centres Delivery of the exercise referral programme for adults and children working with GP practices
and school nursing teams

4. Supporting Inequalities

Support groups to re-engage with activity providing improved access to a range of activities at the
centres

5. Partner and Local Network

Work with national partnerships to support local community networks gain greater access to our
facilities and provide viable activities for under-represented groups in the community.

6. Digi-activity Programme

Utilise our digital activity platform to provide wider access of activity services to priority areas that lack
facilities and provision to take part in regular physical and social activities




Leisure Contract Specification — Authority Outcomes

This strategy sets out how we intend to meet the specified outcomes in the NWLDC Leisure Services contract. The NWLDC outcome that each
specific programme will aim to support is set out in the table in section 7.

Outcome Outcome Description
Key
A Improving Health and Wellbeing and Reducing Health Inequalities
B Providing Local Economic Benefit
C Supporting Safe and Inclusive Neighbourhoods
D Educating, Protecting and Providing Opportunities For Young People
E Providing High Quality Services
F Sustainability and Environmental Improvements
(sits within the appendix — Energy Engagement Plan 2022/23)

X The strategy broadly aims to achieve the following outcomes:
e Tackle and reduce health inequalities across the district
e Provide skills, employment opportunities and local economic benefit
e Provide opportunities for the inactive to be physically active
e Provide exercise and activity referral intervention for health-related conditions
e Support disadvantaged groups in our communities to be more physically active
e Support our community clubs to provide stability and developmental opportunities
e Work collaboratively with partners to provide active spaces for community groups
e Use digital platforms to reach rural or isolated residents with less opportunity to access to physical activity provision
e Educate, protect and provide opportunities for young people
e Play anintegral part in the districts journey towards a carbon net zero future

The specific outcomes of each programme are set out in the table in section 7.



€6

Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning

All programmes will be evaluated using Active Together’s (Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland’s Active Partnership) Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning (MEL) Framework.
This is a consistent approach across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.

The principles and approach within the framework have been designed using national
guidance set out by Sport England and the Office for Health Improvement and Disparities
(formerly Public Health England).

The framework supports the production of accurate, high-quality reporting to
understand value and demonstrate impact. It allows the generation of evidence in order
to learn and guide future actions. It promotes interaction and reflection across our local
system to connect, exchange and develop our learning. It allows us to demonstrate what
is working and learn from what is not. It’s helps us to evidence and tell a story about the
impact on people and places.

The Framework provides a tool kit which includes a bank of standard questions to build
our own pre and post questionnaires/data collection tools and guidance to adapt the
guestions to ensure that they are accessible. The framework also provides pre-populated
guestion templates, an evaluation plan template, logic model, learning log and learning
case study templates.

The framework encourages MEL throughout the programme, this allows learning to
happen during and adjustments made accordingly.

Any targets or outcomes detailed in the plan are for both centres collectively, unless otherwise stated.

B. Reflect on
learning to adapt

and improve delivery

5. Develop and
Implement
measurement
tools

14, Select data
collection methods
and tools

1. Define purpose
and rationale

2. Identify MEL
priorities

3. Decide the level of
evaluation




v6

7. Community Wellbeing Plan



Community & Education Employment (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 1)

What (Activity Need

/ Gap/
Development)

When
(Timescale)

Where
(Location)

Who (Target
Group & Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators

Ql

AL Provide leisure 60 x centres iy
& Coalville | Target Group o - physical, S1, 52
. . facilities to help visits per year
Ongoin Leisure NWL Residents increase physical (15 per quarter) mental and D
t'IgM gh Centre CORE20PLUS5 ol pdy \ P t'q - social wellbeing This scheme saw 78 usages.
Work Live Hx 'ZOZ;rC ment? anl libei !mdF')a.Cd lngl in professional Staying We had 4 scheme users undertake work experience.
Leicestershire (WLL) | > | Ashby Partners e;“oh'o"a wellbeing | individuals and personal | Healthyand | 1scheme users is now employed by Everyone Active as a
ool orf Leisure WLL &7 SIS T life Well Lifeguard and Duty Manager as a result of his experience
LRI Centre & with us.
Lido
Target Group 0
NWL Reéldentcs Identify 1 x apprentice
Apprenticeship — . . secures a full or
. apprenticeship .
Generally aimed at . part time S1, S2
© opportunities for
o personnel over age B employment E
of 18 - role within the
existing colleagues R Stavin
Whitwick to train and develop ' ying
. Work placement— | . - . Healthy and
& Coalville . in multiple positions
. For personnel in 2 X Well
Leisure . to support both . .
Number of Qi current education I —— apprenticeships
o March CORE20PLUSS ) delivered . 1
Apprenticeships/ 2023 community-based |
Work Experience Ash by Partners services. 4 x work
Leisure Colleges / schools placements
Centre & & Provide opportunity
: . 1
Lido for experience and

Local sports clubs/
partners

Job Centre Kick
Start Programme

Lifetime Training

potential
employment within
our centres




L2 Skills Programme
including; - Sport
Leader Awards (SLA)/
Swimming Teacher L1
& L2 Qualification.
National Pool
Lifeguard
Quialification(NPLQ)

96

March
2023

Whitwick
& Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

Target Group
CORE20PLUSS5 /
Residents / current
EA employees

Partners
Community Groups
/ i.e. Coalville Can,
Inclusive Play
Scheme

NWLDC

Identify members of
the current
workforce and NWL
residents to sign up
to the L2 skills
programme to train
up in Lifeguard,
Fitness, front of
house, Sales, and
coaching.

2022 / 23 will
aim for

2 x L2 SLAs (Sep
—Dec) (Jan—
March)

2 x Swimming
teachers

All who
undertake
training will
have
opportunity to
apply for
employment or
additional roles
within our
leisure centres.

All will be
offered
volunteer
opportunity.

It has recently
been identified
that there is a
shortage of
volunteers and
swim teachers
in NWL. This
programme
would help to
fill the gap.

S1, 82

E

||

[ |

Staying
Healthy and

Well
|




Club Support (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 2)

What (Activity Need / = When

Gap / Development)

L6

Supporting Talented
Athletes

(Timescale)

Ongoing

Where
(Location)

Whitwick
& Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

Who (Target Group
& Partners)

Target Group
Athletes operating
at regional,
national, and
international
performance level.

Partners
NWLDC

Active Together
Sports Clubs
NWL Sport

Operating under
the Everyone Active
Sporting Champions
and Go Gold
scheme, working
with the local
authority, active
partnerships and
the clubs EA will
offer membership
support, providing
free access to high
quality facilities for
those competing at
regional and
national level.

The athletes must
be able to evidence
that they are
completing at
regional or national
level.

Implement a
dedicated
information board
to track and

Outputs

—5 x Athletes
(5 free
memberships)

Outcomes

Accommodating
these athletes
helps further the
talented athletes
training and
development.
Showcasing the
benefits of using
health & leisure
service may
inspire others to
participate in
sport and physical
activity.
Successful
athletes helps to
raise the district’s
profile in

competitive sport.

These athletes
can be used as
advocates of
sport and
physical activity
at both EA and
NWLDC
community
interventions
and events to

Performance
Indicators

S2,S3, S5

CB

Best Start in
Life

Staying
Healthy and
Well




promote athlete

inspire children

©
(e)

Programming

Ongoing

Whitwick
& Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

Target Group
Local Sports Clubs
Community Groups

Partners

Active Together
NWL Sport
Inclusive Steering
Group

NWLDC

progress and young
people.
Reviewing the Working with

programming
requirements of the
clubs, balancing
time for casual use,
clubs, and courses.

Assessing resident
club’s existing and
developmental
needs for the new
W&CLC.

Work with local
clubs, residents and
NWLDC Sports
Development
Officer to identify
gaps in the district’s
sporting provision.

Secure new
partners and
activities to
complement the
existing
programme.

Flexible
programming
for clubs to
continue
residency and
development
within our
centres

3 x new clubs
/ activities
added to the
programme

existing clubs/
bookees to help
grow our external
bookings
portfolio,
consequently
giving more
opportunity for
NWL residents to
engage in sport,
health, leisure
and social
activities.

Provides
additional
support to the
voluntary sector
to continue the
great work they
do to provide
opportunity for
residents to be
active.

S1,S2, S5
C,B

Best Start in
Life

Staying
Healthy and
Well

Living and
Ageing Well




©
©

Social Media

Ongoing

Whitwick
& Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

Target Groups
Residents
CORE20Plus5
Club Activ8 (CAS8)
members

Partners

NWLDC

Local Sports Clubs
Active Together

Centres to support
localised social
media (SM)
strategies through a
planned and
structured
approach
(Marketing Plan
2022/23) to
increase club
registrations /
memberships.

Working to the
same campaign
planner as NWLDC
Health and
Wellbeing Team to
deliver consistent
messaging,
supporting local
and national
campaigns relating
to health, wellbeing
and moving more
including ‘Let’s Get
Moving’.

Promote CA8
partners

Promote NWLDC &
partners SM and
promotions

52 x Social
media posts

SM posts will help
inform and
advertise to NWL
residents of the
activities which
they can access at
their local
centres.
Additionally
advertising other
local partners for
a bigger SM
reach. SM will be
used to
encourage
residents to be
more active and
take steps
towards a healthy
lifestyle through
the promotion of
national and local
campaigns.

S1,S2, S5
E

Best start in
Life

Staying

Healthy and
Well

Living and
Ageing Well




00T

Pricing

March
2023

Whitwick
& Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

Target Groups

New and existing
Local Sports Clubs

Support small and
medium sized clubs
to integrate and
establish
themselves into the
centres activity
portfolio.

Having a
pricing policy
that supports
clubs /
activities
starting in the
leisure
facilities i.e.
flexible tiered
pricing
strategy at
the point of
entry.

Considered on an
individual basis to
help
accommodate
more bookings
within the centre,
consequently
increasing
opportunity for
residents to be
physically active
and supporting
behaviour change
This approach will
help smaller/ less
financially secure
clubs to access
our state of the
art facilities as
well as king to

S1,S2, S5
C,B

Best Start in
Life

Staying
Healthy and
Well

Living and
Ageing Well




make substantial
sized bookings.

Social Prescribing (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 3)

What (Activity Need

/ Gap/
Development)

Exercise Referral &
Social Prescribing

When

(Timescale)

March
2023

Where

(Location)

Whitwick
&
Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

Who (Target Group
& Partners)

Target Groups
Adults with low to
medium risk, health
conditions.
CORE20PLUS5S

Partners

NWLDC

Local GP Surgeries
other medical
professionals
hospitals

social prescribing
teams

Active Together

Providing 4 x level 3
exercise referral
qualified instructor
led gym / exercise
sessions per week.
Provide discount on
both casual use for
the duration of their
time on the scheme
(12 weeks) and
discount membership
for 6 months.

Provide space for
Cardiopulmonary

Outputs

25%
achieve
150
minutes of
activity per
week 40%
of people
on
programme
continue
after
programme
finishes (12
weeks)

Outcomes

Providing a robust
health support
programme for people
with low to high risk
health conditions to
exercise safely.

Supporting social
prescription will
alleviate additional
pressure on the NHS
and related services by
increasing participant’s
weekly activity.
Contributing to a
better quality of life.

Performance
Indicators

S4

A

Staying

Healthy and

Well

Living and
Ageing Well

2022/23

Exercise Referral

73 Participants completed the 12-week scheme, of
which all participant were inactive at the start.

35 (48%) are now achieving 150 minutes of
moderate physical activity at 12 weeks.

48 (66%) are achieving 2 days of resistance training
per week at 12weeks.

51 (70%) stated that their health was either
somewhat better now or much better now.




Leicestershire
Public Health

classes at each
centre.

Provide access, where
appropriate for
clients that have
graduated from the
Cardiopulmonary
scheme.

Provide space for the
Steady Steps and
Steady Steps Plus
programme.

Improvement and
management of
medical conditions and
support their ability to
manage own physical
and mental wellbeing.

Improve posture,
stability, strength, and
balance in older adults
to reduce the risk of
falling.

Year 1 will provide a
baseline, due to the
pandemic affecting
delivery over the
previous 2 years.

=
o
N
Everyone | Target Group Raising the | Utilising the app for
Supporting the Active on | Adults who have Everyone Active and profile of referred clients will
promotion of the EXi Oneoin Demand low to medium risk | NWLDC to support the Exi app | help give easily 5192 54
Exercise Referral going health related the promotion of the and the accessible information e
App on Everyone Exi App conditions. Exi app via: number of to them, allowing

55 (75%) stated they agreed or strongly agreed that
they have improved or stabilised their health
condition since starting the programme.

58 (78%) stated that they were either likely or very
likely to continue being active after the programme.

See appendix 3 for case study.
Cardiopulmonary Rehab

17 people completed the Cardiopulmonary Course
(numbers have struggled to recover since covid).

16 out of 17 (94%) are completing 150 minutes of
moderate aerobic activity at the end of the
programme.

All 17 (100%) were performing 2 or more strength
training sessions per week.

16 (94%) stated they either agree or strongly agree
that they have improved their health condition.

All 17 (100%) were very likely to continue with
physical activity.

All 17 (100%) rated the programme a 7 out of 10 or
above.

See appendix 4 for case study.




Active on Demand
(EAD) platform
(Personalised
Exercise
Prescription)

€0T

CORE20PLUSS
Exercise referral
participants.

Partners
Exi Partner
NWLDC

e  Social
Media

e  Enrolment
of Exercise
Referral

e  Networking
with
Primary
care
partners
such as
GP’s,
Pharmacies,
NHS
Community
Health
Services,
Public
Health, and
CCG's

*The app will be

used to add

value to the

exercise referral

scheme as a

supplement not

a replacement of

face to face

support.

people
registering
on the
platform.

50% of
exercise
referral
participants
register to
the app.

tailored activities to
access. This
enhancement to the
scheme will support
participants to stay on
track in regards to their
physical and mental
health. The additional
resource is expected to
reduce attrition rates.
The Exi App will help in
regards to inclusivity as
the app is bespoke to
each person who uses
it, giving users a
specific personal
exercise plan/
assistance.

A

Staying
Healthy and
Well

Living  and

Ageing Well Awaiting

update
|

31

Supporting Inequalities (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 4)

What (Activity Need = When
(Timescale)

/ Gap/
Development)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators




Use a whole family
approach to

This approach will
support engagement
with residents from

Target Group hysical activit low socio-economic
Families which Py v backgrounds and S2,S3
.are on low Assessed on a provide oppc?r'FL!nlty .
incomes case-bv-case basis to access activities, Best Start in
identified by the . i4 . equipment and state | Life
; we will work with i
Children and of the art facilities
I NWLDC and the . . .
- Families . Deliver a 5% that they otherwise Staying
Whitwick . . children and . .
. Wellbeing Service I . increase in would not have the Healthy and
& Coalville families wellbeing .
. or through the . . the number of | opportunity to Well
Leisure . - service to provide
Centre Active Families free or low cost supported access.
Scheme access to sessions | children and ||
Activity subscriptions Ashb and activities families |
supporting families Leisu:le CORE20PLUSS. ’ utilising our Awaiting
on low incomes . . . centres based report
Ongoing Centre & We will work with
. Partners . on 2019/20
Lido resident clubs to
rovide low cost it ({53 et
= Children & P Covid-19
o Local - access to sports.
L . Families mature year)
community wellbeing service — No previous
facilities & We will work with P
(LCC) data
partners to
. t t
Community clubs suppor access to
. equipment and
and delivery -
sports clothing
partners .
where required
NWLDC and Yvhere
possible.
Whitwick Target Groups Success will be
. Care leavers, and .
& Coalville | Young people / . Accommodate | monitored through
. . people in current
L — Leisure adults who are in all referrals the use of
Activity subscriptions care generally . .
. Centre the process of . for this type anonymised case
for care leavers Ongoing . have limited .
leaving care. ) of studies due to the S2,S3
access to leisure o o
Ashby subscription specific and

Leisure

activities due to




Centre &
Lido

SOT

Partners
Leicestershire
County Council
Care Leavers
Team

Community clubs
and delivery

partners

NWLDC

barriers such as
cost.

Everyone Active
will support Care
Leavers by
Providing a free
membership
subscription to any
care leavers living
in NWL that wish
to use the leisure
centres.

This will be
reviewed by the
centre and the
authority teams
periodically to
determine if any
additional support
is required.

Number of
care leavers
accessing the
scheme and
number of
visits will be
captured to
give baseline
data.

It is important
to note that
neither
Everyone
Active nor
North West
Leicestershire
District
Council have
any control of
number of
referrals
made, we
only have
control over
retention
rates.

sensitive nature of
this scheme.

We intend to impact
each individual’s life
with social, physical
and emotional
benefits.

Staying
Healthy and
Well

Partner & Local Network (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 5)

What (Activity Need / = When Where

(Timescale)

Gap / Development)

(Location)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performanc
e Indicators




Providing active
spaces for disability
8 groups

March 2023

Whitwick
&
Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

Target Groups
People with
disabilities and
additional needs

Local disability
groups

Enrych
Memphys

Partners
NWLDC

NWL Inclusive
Steering Group
Active Together

Work with NWLDC
to promote
opportunities for
local Disability
Groups/Schools to
use the centre.

Provide activity
space for inclusive
play/sessions

Liaise with the local
Disability Groups to
understand what
they require to be
active.

Member of the
NWL Inclusive
Steering Group

5% Increased
utilisation of
facility space
for disability
groups/ 5%
Increased
disability
participation
against
2019/20
space and
usage levels
(last non
Covid-19
mature year)

Previous 1635
accessible
users
participations
(2019/2020)
5% increase,
Target 1715

2 X new
accessible
user sessions
running per
week

In partnership with
NWLDC, we have
identified a lack of
provision within the
district for residents
with disabilities and
additional needs.
Providing additional
space/activities for
this target group
will allow them to
access physical
activity
opportunities
locally. The burden
of having to travel
to the city or
elsewhere in the
county can have a
considerable
negative effect or
mean that they are
not able to access
sessions.

$1,S2, S5
A,C,D

Staying
Healthy and
Well




Work with Local
Authority Partners

5% Increased

Older people
naturally have a

ilisati
to connect with uti .|s?at|on o higher risk of illness | S1,S2, S5
facility space .
older people and aliment. AC,D
for older - "
groups. Providing additional
people groups o . -
against space/activities will | Living and
Whitwick Target Group Discounted use for 2?)19/20 help increase the Ageing Well
= & Older people resident groups i.e. pace and weekly activity
3 Coalville CORE20PLUSS Ashby Bridge Club P levels for this [ |
. usage levels .
Leisure s demographic
Providing active Centre Partners Offer free sports Covid-19 supporting postural
spaces for older adults | March 2023 Older people hall / meeting space stability, reducing
. L mature year) . L
Ashby delivery partners for organisations frailty and living
Leisure (e.g., Age supporting older . longer in better
) Previous
Centre & Concern) people’s mental 37 371 usages health.
Lido NWLDC and physical activity | o 7> 4528
for this age .
programmes rou NWL has high levels
group of hip fracture,
2019/2020
Support the Steady K programmes such
Steps programme >% increase, as this can
. " Target 39,009 " .
with facility space positively impact on
to deliver the the rate of hip
classes. fracture.
Whitwick Target Groups Work with Local Identify & Instilling an active
Providing active & Disadvantaged Authority partners understand lifestyle into
spaces for children March 2023 | Coalville children and to map provision the need of children from a S1,S2, S5
support groups Leisure families and identify groups | potential young age will help | A,C,D
Centre providing activities partners. create a habit for




Low income for disadvantaged Understand life. This has many Best Start in
Ashby families children and the gaps in benefits, including Life
Leisure identify gaps. provision. increasing physical
Centre & | CORE20PLUS5 activity levels, [ |
Lido benefits physical
Partners and mental health
Sported and allowing
Save the Children additional
Children and socialisation for
Families children.
Wellbeing Service
NWLDC
Digi-activity (Everyone Active Targeted Programme 6)
What (Activity When Where Who (Target Group & Partners) Outcomes Performance Q1
Need / Gap / (Timescale) = (Location) How Outputs Indicators
Development)
= Using this app to
8 give further
Special opportunities to
P . Connect with | 1 xnew SEN | people and schools | S1,S2, S3, S5
Educational . s
SEN schools schools with disabilities and | A,C,D
Needs (SEN) | Target Groups . .
. . . which are accessing SENs Can support
Schools Children with disabilities and . .
. . . rural to the EAO this target group to | Best Start in
Provide Everyone (Forest Way) | special educational needs. . . .
discuss platform be more physically Life
On Demand (EOD) . .
subscriptions to March Whitwick & Partners opportunities active.
. P 2023 . around the Collect As well as |
special support Coalville NWLDC . . . .
. EAO platform | baseline increasing physical
schools Leisure NWL Sport L L
. and activities | dataforapp | activity
Centre School Sports Partnership . L .
. to deliver usage. participation, this
Active Together
after school. app helps to
Ashby N
. simplify the
Leisure delivery of physical
Centre & . v i
. activity for the
Lido
school.




Target Groups Overall outcomes
Children and young people Working with | Identify to be defined as
identified as likely to participate | People Zone actions and part of the People S1,S2,S3, S5
in anti-social behaviour. to explore programmes | Zone planning ACD
S opportunities | to be process
Wh'tV_VICk & Partners for EA to delivered as Best Start in
Coalville '
Leisure enhance the part of the Life
Identify F— NWLDC people zone ‘People
opportunities for Start date, . h 4 Charl offer and Zone’ |
youth crime Aug 2022 Ashb D Depelier e _C aries opportunities | project.
prevention LS' Y Booth C'e'ntre (T'ackllng i
SR Inequalities Project) Thringstone Raviiew
Centre &
Lido el Tl and success of
P Whitwick. what will be
Impact workers a pilot
scheme.
Police
H
)
(o]

Children, young people, and families

What (Activity Need

/ Gap/
Development)

Increase in physical
activity participation
rates in;-

CYP (Children &
Young People)

After School Sports

When
(Timescale)

April 2022

Participation
data will be
reported
monthly via
our PMR
(Performance
Management
Review)

Where
(Location)

Whitwick
& Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

NWL
District

Who (Target Group
& Partners)

Target Groups
Children and Young
People

CORE20PLUS5

Partners
Primary schools

School Sports
Partnership / School
Games Officer

EA will offer a varied range
of activities and sports to
help encourage CYP into
activity within our centres
and additionally with our
partners.

We have identified gaps in
provision across the district
for trampolining and
gymnastics.

Outputs

Baseline
year =
311,073
usages,
this year’s
target (5%
increase)
326,626
usages for
this age
group

Outcomes

Introducing new
activities to our
portfolio will help to
engage new
participants into our
centres

Introducing new
activities to our
portfolio will help to
engage new

Performace
Indicator

A, B ,CE
S3, 54, S5

Best Start in
Life

77,337
usages




Gymnastics clubs were

participants into our

NWLDC reporting a 2-year waiting centres
list.
Starting these new
Session starting in April sessions will reduce
2022. the waiting lists of
6 x gymnastics local clubs, providing
4 x trampoline more opportunities
2 x adventure mania for Children and
young people to be
active.
!A‘
o A, B,E
T B
Whitwick Target Groups thghage $2 53 54
& Coalville Wi e T
e Children and Young attendees U5|.ng' difsEpancey | G5
Centre / People to activity day as an
entre Taster sessions provided in a d d | opportunity to Best Start
AR i wide range of activities over understan in Life
Recreation | Families s g how likely celebrate and
Hold an - Grounds v they are to | encourage people ||
Open/Play/Activity (HRG) CORE20PLUS5 reviisiE il into sport and
e arr &l e A minimum of 4 x clubs o o
ay for all activities ) centre activity. Giving
Partners based at each site and 2 x . fvaried
 April Ashby ) (and experience of varie
16" Apri ) L clubs not based at the sites o
2022 Leisure Clubs based within i i . understand | activities, that they
Centre& | poth our facilities provide taster sessions their may otherwise never
Lido . within the Open Day. n
: ' and the wider PStarical have the opportunity
(including community use of to try.
outdoor lei
facilities) NWLDC elsu.re This will have a
services)

positive impact on
clubs as they will gain
additional exposure,




helping them to
increase their
member base and
consequently
sustainability of their
sport.

We are encouraging
residents who would
not normally access a
leisure centre to
come along, just
taking that step to
come and have a look
can be a massive step
to contemplating a
healthier lifestyle.

TTT

Club Activ8 Scheme

March 2023

Whitwick
& Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Ashby
Leisure
Centre &
Lido

NWL
District

Target Groups
Children and Young
People

CORE20PLUS5

Partners
Primary schools
Upper schools

All schools in
district

School Sports
Partnership / School
Games Officer

NWLDC

Engaging with NW
Leicestershire schools to
increase weekly activity
levels and leisure centre
usage.

Promoting local clubs and
partners

Increase
overall
scheme
usage from
34.5% to
36.2%

Increase
schools
signed up
from 34 to
36

Increasing CA8 usage
will consequently
increase
junior/adolescent
NW Leics resident’s
activity levels. Having
a positive impact on
their physical, mental
and emotional
health.

Scheme usage will
help encourage
children into new
activities which they
may not have
experienced before.

A, B, E

S2,S3, 54,
S5

Best Start in
Life




Scheme users can
engage with further
local opportunities
such as local clubs
and business’s

AN




Improve engagement for people with physical and learning disabilities, mental wellbeing conditions

What (Activity Need

/ Gap/
Development)

=
=
w

Inclusive play session

When

(Timescale)

Ongoing

Where

(Location)

Whitwick
&
Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Who (Target
Group & Partners)

Target Group
5-11yr olds with
learning disabilities
and special
educational needs

Partners

Special Educational
Needs (SEN)
schools

Enrych

Memphys

NWLDC

NWL Inclusive
Steering Group

How

Continue to provide 1 x
hour play session for
children with disabilities
per week for a minimum of
16 x weeks

Output

Average of
10 x people
attending

per session

Outcomes

To engage this group in
physical activity/play
sessions to help
increase their weekly
activity levels.
Inclusivity is a key
priority, therefor
continuing this
bespoke session will
give opportunity to this
target group. We know
that there is a lack of
inclusive physical
activity provision in
NWL from mapping
and consultation.
Currently residents
tend to travel to the
City or other side of
the County to access
provisions. Increasing
local provision will
positively impact both
those with disabilities
and parents and
carers. It will reduce
cost, travel time and
the pressure that they
put on individuals and
families

Performance
Indicators

A B,CE
S2, 54, S5

Best Start in
Life

Average of
10 x people
attending

per session

Ql




This was Making
every contact count
(MECC) Healthy
Conversations

Making Every
Contact Count
(MECC) is an
approach to
improving the health
of the population. It
uses the day to day
conversations that
people have to
encourage and help
people to make
healthier lifestyle
chqiges. It is a brief
or @y brief
intervention which
traditionally focuses
on lifestyle issues
such as; stopping
smoking, being
physically active,
healthy eating,
alcohol intake and
mental health as well
as housing,
employment, social
isolation and debt or
money advice.

December
2022

Whitwick
&
Coalville
Leisure
Centre,

Ashby LC

The general
population
(residents and
visitors to North
West
Leicestershire)

An action in the North
West Leicestershire Health
and Wellbeing Strategy,
this approach is being
adopted in North West
Leicestershire. Everyone
Active will support this
approach by nominating a
member of staff to
complete the ‘Train the
Trainer’ qualification.

This will allow Everyone
Active to deliver MECC
training to their staff such
as Receptionists, Lifeguards
and Fitness Instructors.
This will give their staff the
skills, confidence, and
knowledge to encourage
healthier lifestyle choices.

Once the identified
member of staff is qualified
as a trainer, they will
develop a MECC
programme of training for
Everyone Active’s
workforce (rolling out in
2023) and support the
District Council to train
other organisations within
North West Leicestershire.

1 x MECC
Trainer

Programme
of MECC
Training
developed
for EA staff.

A minimum
of 1 x
external
training
session
delivered
with
NWLDC
Officer.

Improved
access to
health and
wellbeing
advice and
services
Improvement
in morbidity
and mortality
risk factors
Improve
health and
wellbeing of
population
reduce
inequalities
embed
prevention
and social
prescribing

A B,CE
S2, 54, S5

Completed
Trainer
Training

0

January
session
cancelled
by NWLDC
staff(being
rearranged)




Support the provision of sustainable community sport

What (Activity
Need / Gap /

When
(Timescale)

Where

(Location)

Who (Target
Group &

How
(Outputs)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performace
Indicators

Development)

Hast NWL
rt and
Health Awards

(now known
as Let’s Get
Moving
Awards)

November
2022

Whitwick
&
Coalville
Leisure
Centre

Partners)

Target Group
Sport and
activity

based
participants

NWL
Residents

Partners
School Sports
Partnership
Local Sports
Clubs

NWL Sport
NWLDC

Working in
conjunction
with key
partners to
host a sports
and health
awards
evening to
recognise the
great
sporting,
physical
activity and
healthy
lifestyle
achievements
of our
wonderful
residents,
clubs,
schools, and
volunteers.

Achieve 16 x
awards with
a minimum
of 3
nominations
per award.
500 x people
attending
the event.

Celebrating the sporting achievements of people
within our district will help showcase the great
success that people achieve through sport, activity
and a healthy lifestyle. Furthermore, the
celebration event helps to galvanize the district
through positive promotion of activity. This
celebratory event will act as inspiration to
residents of NWL through the heart warming and
inspiring stories and achievements. It highlights
what is possible, no matter who you are and
encourages participation in sport and Physical
Activity, and to take steps towards a healthy
lifestyle.

“Sport can be the glue that keeps communities
together and is a persuasive tool

in promoting shared interests alongside fostering a
keen sense of civic pride.

I have seen at first-hand the positive power sport
and recreation exert, from

children of all backgrounds emulating their heroes
at their local community

facilities to supporters working together to protect
the assets they value.”

MARCUS JONES MP, 2015.

It is also an opportunity to recognise and thank the
volunteers who work tirelessly to run clubs and
activities, NWL has a very good sporting offer
which is down to the volunteers. We will survey
schools to ascertain their feedback on the event
and if their school children were inspired.

AB,CD,E
S1,S2,S3,
S4, S5

Best Start in
Life

Staying
Healthy and
Well

Living and
Ageing Well

2022 saw the Sport and Health Awards

change their name to the Let’s Get Moving
Awards to support the local Leicestershire
Let’s Get Moving Campaign.

In partnership with NWLDC Health and
Wellbeing Team and the NWL School
Sports Partnership we hosted almost 400
people at the Whitwick and Coalville
Leisure Centre.

We spent an evening celebrating the
amazing achievements of all our nominees
and in particular our winners, showcased in
the videos below.

Our guest speaker GB 400m runner Martyn
Rooney clearly inspired the audience as did
our local trampoline club who put on an
impressive show.

Primary School Team of the Year Award

Secondary School Team of the Year Award

School of the Year Award

Disabled Sportsperson of the Year Award



https://fb.watch/mBZqw2-1xD/
https://fb.watch/mBZnCFbquf/
https://fb.watch/mBZhposyVB/
https://fb.watch/mBZmotptVh/

9TT

Let’s Get Moving for Health Award

Activator of the Year Award

Outstanding Contribution Award

sports Person of the Year Award

Club of the Year Award

Team of the Year Award

Our post event survey and school
engagement session suggested that a
separate event for young people would be
preferable.



https://www.facebook.com/watch/?extid=CL-UNK-UNK-UNK-AN_GK0T-GK1C&mibextid=2Rb1fB&v=1283770602189312
https://fb.watch/mBZl2s9oY7/
https://fb.watch/mBZs9PNPEZ/
https://fb.watch/mBZj5V0R1B/
https://fb.watch/mBZj5V0R1B/
https://fb.watch/mBZp089KYp/

Review and Whitwick Hosting 15 x events A BCD,E
expand the & Swimathons events across | held over S1, S2, S3,
programme of Coalville our centres in | the year, Hosting sporting events/ competitions will help S4, S5
mass Leisure Swimming partnership with an showcase and create traffic for our centres.
participation e Galas with local average of Additionally, it will encourage people to come to Staying
events run Ongoing clubs and 50+ our centres, experience the facilities and Healthy and
from the Ashb local, participants | consequently return to take part in further sport. Well
pLeisure . v regional, and | per event.
- Leisure . . [
@Icmtles Public Events | national
Centre .
organisers.
Understand A B,CD,E
the wants, S1,S2, S3,
needs and S4, S5
Target
Groups challenges
- P facing Best Start in
Whitwick | Local sports . . . .
grassroots . Playing a key part in NWL Sport will help place our Life
& clubs Deliver 2 x . .
. sports clubs centres in a great position to accommodate local
Coalville user group . f .
NWL Sport . and where - sporting club’s needs. The group also allows Staying
. Leisure Partners . meetings for ; ) . .
(previously . appropriate discussion and formulation of ideas and plans to Healthy and
Ongoing Centre School Sports each centre. . . L
LSA) . respond to help reduce barriers to sport and increase activity Well
Ashby Partnership . .
. . those needs. levels with a collaborative approach.
Leisure Active .
Centre Together Living - and
g Work with Ageing Well
NWLDC .
clubs to sign
up to Club ||

Activ8.

A,

Jveryons
q

ACTIYE




Support club
workforce
development.

Support
access to
facilities.
Attend and
chair
quarterly
meetings.
Partners Identify suitability of the area outside Whitwick A B CD,E
and Coalville Leisure Centre to host a junior S1, S2, S3,
All schools in parkrun. sS4, S5
district EA & NWLDC If suitable planning will commence for WCLC to
Health and host junior parkrun. Staying
Whitwick | School Sports | wellbeing Healthy and
= & Partnership / | Team will Well
pargun July 2022 Coalville School explore if the
Leisure Games WCLC site is
Centre Officer suitable for a Best Start in
junior Life
NWLDC parkrun.
||
NWL
residents
Partners EA to support A B,CD,E
NWLDC with S1,S2,S3,
All schoolsin | community S4, S5
district and themed
Whitwick walks within . Staying
. & School Sports | the district. ST Use these walks to engage CYP families and NWL Healthy and
Community/ March . ; . partner 2x . . . s .
Coalville Partnership/ | pPromoting . residents into activity participation in a friendly, Well
Themed Walks | 2022 . walking .
Leisure School the walks as communal non-competitive manor.
Centre Games well as events
Officer he|p|ng -
facilitate
NWLDC them at EA

sites (WCLC).




NWL
residents

6TT

Appendices

Appendix 1

Talented Athlete Programme

Thomas uses both WCLC and ALC gyms and pools and his journey has been one which has been constantly assisted by the Leisure Centres and related
teams.

Thomas started swimming lessons at the leisure centre, then progressing on to Coalville Swim Club. At this time Thomas had also taken up a keen interest in
tennis.



0ocT

Thomas is currently GB U18 ranked 39 and men’s 151. Thomas also achieved a level 1 in coaching tennis which was funded through Team Leicestershire
Talent. Having the facilities available on his doorstep has been key to Thomas ascending through the ranks in tennis.

Unfortunately, Thomas experienced a foot stress fracture last year. Using the centres range of facilities really aided his recovery. Due to his complimentary

membership through the Talented Athlete Programme, he was able to use varied areas to assist with his rehabilitation. He now has his sights on a
scholarship in Tennis in the USA.

Appendix 2
Pickle Ball, in partnership with NWLDC Health and Wellebing Team

o All pickleball participants have increased their weekly activity by at least 1 hour per week
e The most noticeable improvements have been seen in the participants who have suffered from health conditions:
o One participant was severely obese and has now lost 4 stones and is playing 4 times per week.

o Another participant, who suffers from Parkinsons has said that pickleball is the only activity he does and that it has provided a great way for
him to exercise and socialise



TZT

e Both leisure centres have put on an extra session per week to support demand for pickleball, which has allowed a large percentage of the group to
increase their activity by 2 hours per week.

Pickleball - Participant Exercise Data

=
a

ol
:." .-':l
E
-
2 40
& 30
5
20
) I [ [ I ] II ]
1]
<30 30-59 G-89 20-119 120-149 *150
Minutes of Exerclse per Week
m Pre data m After 6 months
Appendix 3

Exercise Referral/GP Referral

Alex has been suffering long term back pain with issues with the discs at L5 and L4. The MRI showed quite a degenerative disc at S1/L5 and another
degenerative disc at L5/L4. This included a broad-based disc bulge at both levels with mild lateral recess stenosis. There was also something called focal
areas of oedema at the end plates to L5/S1.



[4A)

After being referred he had a discussion with a member of the health and wellbeing team, and it was decided that joining the leisure centres would be
useful to aid in his recovery.

He states that this has been a huge element in his recovery. He has been attending the gym once per week alongside swimming and spin classes.
A result of this, he has been able to start playing a bit of 6 a side football once a week, which the thought of running before this was impossible.

All in all, the days of back pain are more a rarity now, in which before it was a rarity to have a pain free day.

Appendix 4
Rehab, in partnership with NWLDC Health and Wellbeing Team

Participant story 1

Over 10 years ago, having begun to find it harder to undertake tasks that required modest physical effort, | was diagnosed with COPD. During the
subsequent years | found it slowly becoming more difficult to do everyday tasks, but | was always able to cope, it just took longer to do them. Having COPD



XA

| was classed as being in the Covid at-risk group so began a long period of self-isolation at home from the start of the first lockdown period. During that
period, | also retired so my physical activity fell from little to almost zero and it remained at that level for the following 2 years.

At my 2021 annual COPD review, it was evident that | had become heavily reliant upon the relievers to do the everyday tasks and the doctor suggested
taking part in a Cardiac and Pulmonary Rehabilitation Scheme, a 6-week course run by the NHS designed re-establish some level of physical fitness to help
in performing those everyday tasks. At the end of the course, | was offered a referral to the NWLDC Health and Wellbeing Team. Having already begun to
feel the benefits of regular exercise | was keen to accept as | felt | would be more motivated to exercise within a gym environment than if | just tried to
exercise alone at home.

A few weeks ago, | had my introductory meeting which included a tour of the Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre. During the meeting we discussed what
| had achieved on the NHS course so that at my first gym session, an initial exercise program had been drawn up suitably tailored to my abilities. The
instructor took the time to go through it with me and introduced me to the equipment | would be using and how to operate it. Even after just a few weeks
into the course, my level of fitness has certainly begun to improve. During each session, the instructor reviews my exercise program and suggests suitable
adjustments to take advantage of my improving level of fitness. Having the instructor available during each session certainly helps with the motivation.

My first visit to the gym was daunting to say the least, but | soon settled in and now look forward each session. | would thoroughly recommend the course
to anyone who needs to improve their level of fitness in a controlled manner.

Participant Story 2

Having been diagnosed with an aortic tear | was very apprehensive when it came to activity. Knowing how much intensity | could safely perform was a big
concern for fear of exacerbating problems.

During rehab this was discussed in length during the consultation and helped to put my mind at ease. Knowing that | could safely push myself to a moderate
intensity without fear of problems made my confidence grow dramatically. | began to enjoy the sessions and was keen to attend each week. My physical
and mental health increased as the sessions went on. The social aspect was a huge help as seeing others in a similar situation to myself was very motivating.

After the rehab had finished, | had a discussion with the instructor about the next stage. | decided to continue my physical activity by signing up to the gym
and attending on a regular basis. The knowledge and confidence gained through rehab set me up for the future by understanding how important physical
activity was for cardiovascular health and to reduce the likelihood of a future event.

| would highly recommend cardiac rehabilitation to anyone who may require it.



1Z4"

Appendix 5

Youth Crime Prevention
*for purpose of confidentiality, only initial of first name have been used.

| have been working with L since July 2017, he was 12 years old and was involved in criminal behaviour and was heavily influenced by a local negative peer group, he was
involved in drug running and the use of weapons.



1A

His last court order finished in mid-2018 and he has worked with me on a voluntary basis ever since. During that time, he has learnt to trust me and in 2020 disclosed that
he was struggling mentally.

He had previously declined support from CAMHS but between myself and his mum we managed to get him there and at the age of 17 was diagnosed with drug induced
psychosis, we have managed to get him on the correct medication, and | bring him to Everyone Active to get him in a totally separate environment to slowly integrate him
back into mainstream society.

These sessions have been very beneficial to him, and he actually now is asking for them to happen on a more regular basis. L has been consistently unreliable in respects to
attending our meetings, however, since using the Everyone Active facilities he has not missed one of our meetings and has reported feeling more positive about himself
and his future as well as not involving himself in any antisocial behaviour.



ocT

Appendix 6
Inclusive Play Session, in partnership with NWLDC Health and Wellbeing Team

As featured in the Active Together Annual Review for 2022/23 the session continues to support children aged 5-11years with a disability, and their siblings,
to access fun and safe play sessions. 15 new participants joined this year, all were inactive before joining and all have increased PA by coming to the session

once per week. Read Aaron’s story below:
(Active Together Annual Review 2022/23)

ACTIVE TOGETHER working with

Total funding secured to support local delivery: £342,491 @r

Our weekdy Inclusive Play sessions at Whitwick and Coalville Leisure Centre give
children with additional needs, and their siblings, the opportunity to access fun,
safe and inclusive ways to be more physically active. Participants have enjoyed
sports, yoga, inflatables, climbing, sensory dance and agility courses. Their parents
and carers alsa find support in each other.



https://www.active-together.org/researchandevidence/active-together-annual-review-202223

L2T



This page is intentionally left blank



-
—1
\‘l
~
)
e
N
e
,f_)
“J

®
| .

J11IATEE

"e’y°“e Active Community
Wellbemg Plan 23 /24 evengine

...
el

LeicEstershire

“ s.

» "

WEB&II\:)

i "UNITING COMMUNITIES THROUGH ACTIVITY



0€T

1. Introduction

Everyone Active (EA) is a charitable trust that manages leisure centres and facilities across the UK on behalf of local authorities.
Everyone Active is now in its 5% year of running NWLDC facilities our centres are 2 in 260, now the sectors largest leisure operator

75 Local Authorities.

The health and wellbeing of North West Leicestershire (NWL) residents and the positive impact that we can have through our leisure
centres is a priority for us. Our aim is to provide access and opportunities to all across our district, and those who are visiting our
centres, acting as a catalyst and mechanism to increase activity levels across the district’s residents.

Our partnerships aim is to deliver programmes to support the health and wellbeing of residents through physical activity, movement
and sport as highlighted in this strategy. This plan captures EA’s actions which aim to support the NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy,
and the NWL Sport & Physical Activity Commissioning Plan.

Key — the below colours indicate that an action aims to support the NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy or the NWL Sport & Physical
Activity Commissioning Plan

Bl NWL Health & Wellbeing Strategy
Bl VWL Sport & Physical Activity Commissioning Plan



TET

2. The power of Physical Activity, Movement and Sport

‘Step right up! It’s the miracle cure we’ve all been waiting for.” (NHS.UK)

Benefits of active lifestyle

It is well documented and backed up by strong scientific evidence that moving more, being physically active and participating in
sport can have huge benefits to a person’s physical health.

The Chief Medical Officer (CMO) recommends that children aged 5- 18 years old be physically active for at least 60 minutes per day
and adults 150 minutes per week including 2 days of strength building.

Physical activity can reduce the risk of developing type 2 diabetes by 30-40% and can reduce the risk of conditions such as heart
disease, dementia, and stroke to name but a few.

As well as a tool to prevent disease it can be used for rehabilitation and to manage certain medical conditions such as recovering
from cancer or heart conditions or living with long term conditions such as arthritis.

Building more movement into daily life can improve strength, balance and motor skills which are essential to living longer in better
health. NWL has a rate of hip fracture that is significantly worse than the national average, increased levels of physical activity
amongst residents could encourage a downward trend in the prevalence of hip fracture.

Meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity is an important aspect of maintaining a healthy weight. This plan aims to support
the wider work of the county’s Healthy Weight Strategy implementation and local work through the NWL Health and Wellbeing
Partnership and Primary Care Network.

NWL’s prevalence of overweight and obesity is significantly higher than the national average in adults with 70.7% (Public Health
2021) of our adults classed as overweight or obese.

Scientific evidence also indicates that physical activity can support our residents to have the best start in life, reduce mortality,
increase energy levels, support better sleep and manage pain effectively.



CET

As well as having an impact on physical health, physical activity, movement and sport can also positively impact in other ways too.
Evidence suggests that physical activity contributes to good mental wellbeing, it has the ability to reduce depression and in some
cases anxiety.

Physical activity provides opportunity to overcome challenges, improve self-confidence, increase sense of purpose, build resilience,
and make social connections. All of which can contributes to fun, enjoyment, happiness, and life satisfaction.

Physical activity can support individual development.

There is evidence that being active improves educational behaviour and attainment. NWL has a lower than the national average
attainment 8 score (GCSE grades achieved across 8 subjects), encouraging our children and young people to be more physically
active could help improve grades.

Physical activity can help to reduce anti-social behaviour giving young people activities to get involved with. It also provides
opportunity to volunteer which supports the development of skills, such as integrity and leadership.

Sport and physical activity bring people together, encourages community and integrates people from all backgrounds. ‘Sport and
physical activity contribute £39 billion to the UK'’s economy and a significant portion of this comes from grassroots sport. The sector
boosts the economy in two ways. Directly, through job creation, and indirectly by reducing healthcare costs due to a healthier
population and reducing crime.’ (Sportengland.org)

3. Assessing Need

38% of North West Leicestershire Adults are reportedly not meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity, of which 27.4% are
reportedly inactive (active less than 30m per week). This is reflective of the England data as shown in the charts below.



Levels of activity (Main - 3 categories)

Levels of activity (Main - 3 categories)

€eT

Local Authority and County Council Nation
Now 21-22 Now 21-22
0% 7
B, 1%
[l 6%
500 50%
1
0% A%
30% T 4% 0% 26.8%
2% 20%
Leve 10.8% 1A%
Nort 10% 10%
% 63.1%
0% 0% RN
70% Mot Wes! Lescosiershine LA England [Matian}
60% %o Lorvals of sctiity (Main - 3 categories %o Livals of sctiity (Man - 3 calegories)
W naciive: less thar 30 minutes & week [l Faidy active 30-149 minotes por week [l Active it least 150 minuies a weak B ‘naciive: less than 30 minubes & week [l Faidy active 302145 minutes perweek [l Active at least 150 minuies a wiek
50%
40%
40%
28.1% 30.0% 29.7% o7 4% 30% 26.6% 26.7% 25.1% 24.6% 27.4% 27.2% 26.8%
30% 24.6% 23.5% 24.1% - S - _./__’——f——"'—'_\\—.
20%
20% 15.3% o
12.4% 12.5% 12.3% 12.2%
9.8% T R . 11.4% 10.9% 11.2% 10.8% ."—"’7 _."—.; 11.5% 11.5% 11.1%
. -— Y Py
10% o * *- — 8 —e 10% —®
0% 0%
Nov 15-16 Nov 16-17 Nov 17-18 Nov 18-19 Nov 19-20 Nov 20-21 Nov 21-22 Nov 15-16 Nov 16-17 Nov 17-18 Nov 18-19 Nowv 19-20 Nov 20-21 Nov 21-22
Time period Time period

% Levels of activity (Main - 3 categories)
M nactive: less than 30 minutes a week |l Fairly active: 30-149 minutes per week [l Active: at least 150 minutes a week

% Levels of activity (Main - 3 categories):
W Inactive: less than 30 minutes a week |l Fairly active: 30-149 minutes per week [ll Active: at least 150 minutes a week

The most recent data available for NWL regarding children’s participation is May 2021 where only 38% of NWL'’s children and young
people are meeting the CMO guidelines for physical activity compared to the England Average of 44.6%. However, 39.1% are fairly
active meaning we perform significantly better than the England average for inactive children at 22.9% compared to an England
average of 32.4%. (Sport England, Active Lives Survey, May 21)

When developing the programmes set out in sections 7 we have taken into consideration the new Sport England Strategy ‘Uniting
the Movement’ and the issues identified within the strategy as set out below. The issues each specific programme will aim to
address are set out in the table in section 7.



vET

The plan considers and supports priorities identified through the following.

The NWL Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The NWL Healthy Communities Plan

NWL Sport and Physical Activity commission plan

Active Together Framework

Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 2018 — 2021 Obesity: Physical
Activity, Healthy Weight and Nutrition

Leicestershire Healthy Weight Strategy

Integrated Care System’s Life Course; Best start in life, Staying Healthy and Well, and
Living and Ageing Well.

The NHS CORE20PLUSS Health Inequalities (Tackling health inequalities by supporting the 20% most deprived residents, plus
those with poor access to healthcare and have a condition recognised in the NHS 5 clinical areas of focus)

Active Together Framework 2022-2032

The developing NWL Community Health and Wellbeing Plan (led by the LLR Integrated Care Board)

Barriers to participation:

Socio-economic status — families and personnel from lower socio-economic backgrounds have less expendable money which
can be used to participate in sport/ activity. NWL has a number of low socioeconomic areas/residents which has the knock-
on effect on activity/ sports participation

Disability — Inclusivity and access for accessible users is a key barrier to participation. The percentage of people living in the
district with a disability is higher than the national average.



GET

e Travel & time — Being a ‘rural’ district poses its own issues/ barriers for residents. Resident report not having available
activities close enough to them to engage in. Additionally, travel links need further work to allow NWL residents to travel

around the district cheaply and easily.

4. Aims

Both a national and local issue.... ‘Physical INACTIVITY is responsible for one in six deaths and costs the country an estimated £7.4
billion a year.” (Public Health England)

This plan aims to tackle some of the barriers to physical activity and support more residents to become more active. We aim to
deliver on our vision of ‘Uniting communities through Activity’. In addition, the plan also aims to support some of the wider
outcomes within the delivery specification around providing local economic benefit, supporting safe and inclusive neighbourhoods,
educating, protecting, and providing opportunities for young people, and providing high quality services.

The specific aims of each programme are set out in the table in sections 7.



9€T

5. Outcomes

Leisure Contract Specification — Authority Outcomes

This strategy sets out how we intend to meet the specified outcomes in the NWLDC Leisure Services contract.

The strategy broadly aims to achieve the following outcomes:

e Tackle and reduce health inequalities across the district

e Provide skills, employment opportunities and local economic benefit

e Provide opportunities for the inactive to be physically active

e Provide exercise and activity referral intervention for health-related conditions

e Support disadvantaged groups in our communities to be more physically active

e Support our community clubs to provide stability and developmental opportunities
e Work collaboratively with partners to provide active spaces for community groups
e Use digital platforms to reach rural or isolated residents with less opportunity to access to physical activity provision
e Educate, protect and provide opportunities for young people

e Play anintegral part in the districts journey towards a carbon net zero future

The specific outcomes of each programme are set out in the table in section 7.




LET

Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning

All programmes will be evaluated using Active Together’s (Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland’s Active Partnership) Monitoring, Evaluation and
Learning (MEL) Framework. This is a consistent approach across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland.

The principles and approach within the framework have been designed using
national guidance set out by Sport England and the Office for Health
Improvement and Disparities (formerly Public Health England).

The framework supports the production of accurate, high-quality reporting to
understand value and demonstrate impact. It allows the generation of evidence
in order to learn and guide future actions. It promotes interaction and reflection
across our local system to connect, exchange and develop our learning. It allows
us to demonstrate what is working and learn from what is not. It’s helps us to
evidence and tell a story about the impact on people and places.

The Framework provides a tool kit which includes a bank of standard questions
to build our own pre and post questionnaires/data collection tools and guidance
to adapt the questions to ensure that they are accessible. The framework also
provides pre-populated question templates, an evaluation plan template, logic
model, learning log and learning case study templates.

B. Reflect on
learning to adapt

and improve delivery

5. Develop and
Implement
measurement
tools

14, Select data
collection methods
and tools

1. Define purpose
and rationale

2. Identify MEL
priorities

3. Decide the level of
evaluation

The framework encourages MEL throughout the programme, this allows learning to happen during and adjustments made

accordingly.



8ET

Improving Health and Wellbeing and Reducing Health Inequalities (including Ex Referral)

Providing Local Economic Benefit

Supporting Safe and Inclusive Neighbourhoods (including demographic inequalities)

Ol m| >

Educating, Protecting and Providing Opportunities For Young People (including Apprenticeships and
Work Experience)
Providing High Quality Services (partner & local network)
Sustainability and Environmental Improvements
(sits within the appendix — Energy Engagement Plan 2023/24)

m

-n

Any targets or outcomes detailed in the plan are for both centres collectively, unless otherwise stated.



What (Activity Need / Gap /

Development)

=
w
©

Exercise Referral & Social
Prescribing

Improving Health and Wellbeing and Reducing Health Inequalities (including Ex Referral)

When
(Timescale)

March
2024

Where
(Location)

WCLC

ALC

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Target
Groups
Adults with
low to
medium risk,
health
conditions.
CORE20PLUS5

Partners
NWLDC

Local GP
Surgeries
other medical
professionals
hospitals
social
prescribing
teams

Active
Together
Leicestershire
Public Health

Providing 4 x level 3 exercise
referral qualified instructor
led gym / exercise sessions
per week.

To have 2 contact points
during the 12 weeks on the
referral programme for each
participant accessing the
leisure offer by EA staff to
support retention on the
scheme and long-term
adherence to physical activity.

To offer a 6-week circuit-
based session for exercise
referral participants as a pilot.

Provide discount on the
scheme (12 weeks) and
discount membership for 6
months.

Provide space for
Cardiopulmonary classes at
each centre.

Provide access, where
appropriate for clients that
have graduated from the
Cardiopulmonary scheme into
mainstream physical activity.

Provide space for the Steady
Steps and Steady Steps Plus
programme.

Outputs

27.5%
complete
the
course
40% go
onto
exercise
beyond
the 12
weeks.

Outcomes

40% increased their PA levels.

70% report an improvement to
their health/wellbeing.

Providing a robust health
support programme for people
with low to high risk health
conditions to exercise safely.

Supporting social prescription
will alleviate additional
pressure on the NHS and
related services by increasing
participant’s weekly activity.
Contributing to a better quality
of life.

Improvement and
management of medical
conditions and support their
ability to manage own physical
and mental wellbeing.

Improve posture, stability,
strength, and balance in older
adults to reduce the risk of
falling.

The above will be evidenced
using Active Together’s MEL
(Monitoring, Evaluating and
Learning) Framework.

Performance
Indicators

S4

A

Staying

Healthy

and Well

Living

and Ageing
Well




What (Activity Need / Gap /
Development)

LGN
(Timescale)

March 24

Where
(Location)

WCLC

ALC

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Target
Groups

Young people
of school age
displaying
challenging
behaviour in
school.

Partners
LCC,

REACH
Project
workers

Schools in
district

NWLDC

REACH is an organisation who
are currently working with
Castle Rock School and
Newbridge with children that
have been identified with
behavioural challenges.

REACH require support to
provide suitable activities for
young people and accessing
the leisure facility is a popular
solution.

Working with NWLDC and
using a whole family approach
parents and their children will
be offered the opportunity to
utilise the facilities via club
activ8 and Active Families
Programme.

Outputs

Outcomes

Measurable/noticeable
behaviour change and
children who are re-engaged
in school. REACH to provide
feedback/data.

Increased activity levels
leading to improved
physical, mental, and social
wellbeing.

Spending quality time and
overcoming physical
challenges with parents and
carers improving family
socialisation/relationships.

Personal development.

Outcomes measured
through case studies,
questionnaires, and
engagement with REACH.

Performance
Indicators

Best Start in
Life

Staying
Healthy and
Well

Q1

Q2

Q3




What (Activity Need / Gap /
Development)

When
(Timescale)

March 2024

Where
(Location)

WCLC

Providing Local Economic Benefit (and local partner working)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Target
Groups

Children and
young people

Partners

All schools in
district

School Sports
Partnership /

School Games
Officer

NWLDC

NWL
residents

How

EA & NWLDC Health and
Wellbeing Team will explore if
the WCLC site is suitable for a
junior parkrun.

Outputs

Outcomes

Influence the design of the
Hermitage Rec Ground
development to incorporate
a hard path system large
enough to host a junior
parkrun.

Work with H&WB Team and
Active Together to sign up to
parkrun, design the route,
provide staff, recruit
volunteers, provide parking,
storage and changing
facilities and support
comms.

The route would start and
finish at the leisure centre.

The main outcome is to be in
a position by 315t March to
launch junior park run early
2024/25.

Performance
Indicators

A B,CD,E
S1, 82, S3,
S4, S5

Staying
Healthy and
Well

Best Start in
Life

Q1

Q2

Q3




What (Activity
Need / Gap /

Development)

When (Timescale)

Where
(Location)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators

. A B,CD,E
Holding health and .
Partners ol 5 T, e Residents are aware S1,S2, S3, S4,
) . of and able to access | S5
NWLDC 2 x pe.r year (1 per site) e 5x o services.
allowing local partners to activities Staving Health
Active engage NWL residents e  20xstall Resident's health andngeII v
highlighting the support holders L
Together and wellbeing is
available within the e 100 improved as a result
WCLC L= ::JS;T?S/ iioel;:t!(;lvice cost of :Lt;ndfees of accessing services.
HWB Roadshow | March 2024 & E living support healt'h ° f;o ||
ALC A residents | stall holders are
. screening, mental health in asked to monitor
Community support, healthy eating and attendance hei
Partners weight management sign access to their
hysical activity, su : ort for d services as a result of
Ssp EaIYents - o porst.e | the event and
’ services capture a case study
'E NWL where possible.
N residents
Residents are aware
of and able to access
services.
Support Attend/man NWLDC mobile Resident's health
NWLDC wellbeing van during the 80 residents engage | and wellbeing is
Health and summer to raise awareness | with the van raising | improved as a result
Wellbeing of services available awareness of of accessing services.
District Team at district/countywide. available services. Raised awareness of
Events March 2024 Wide events to the dangers of
promote Deliver a water safety event | 40 children and water, how to stay
health and at Whitwick Lake for young people access | safe and what to do
wellbeing children and young people the water safety if you get/someone

opportunities

in partnership with NWLDC
and the People Zone.

event.

else gets in trouble
improves the
changes of young
people staying safe
around the
waterways in NWL.




What (Activity
Need / Gap /

Development)

When (Timescale)

Supporting Safe and Inclusive Neighbourhoods (including demographic inequalities)

Where
(Location)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance

Indicators

Q1 Q2 (OF]

H
Ac'%vity
subscriptions for
care and care
leavers

WCLC

ALC

Target
Groups
Young people
/ adults who
are in the
process of
leaving care.

Partners
LCC

Care Leavers
Team

NWLDC

Community
clubs and
delivery
partners

Care leavers, and people in
current care generally have
limited access to leisure
activities due to barriers
such as cost.

Everyone Active will
support Care Leavers by
Providing a free
membership subscription to
any care leavers living in
NWL that wish to use the
leisure centres.

This will be reviewed by the
centre and the authority
teams periodically to
determine if any additional
support is required.

Accommodate
all referrals
for this type
of
subscription.

Number of
care leavers
accessing the
scheme and
number of
visits will be
captured to
give baseline
data.

It is important
to note that
neither
Everyone
Active nor
North West
Leicestershire
District
Council have
any control of
number of
referrals
made, we
only have
control over
retention
rates.

Success will be monitored
using anonymised case studies
due to the specific and

sensitive nature of this scheme.

We intend to impact each
individual’s life with social,
physical and emotional
benefits.

S2,S3

Staying
Healthy
Well

and




What (Activity
Need / Gap /

Development)

Providing active
spdges for
disabilisy groups

When (Timescale)

March 2024

Where
(Location)

WCLC

ALC

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Target
Groups
People with
disabilities
and
additional
needs

Local
disability
groups

Enrych
Memphys

Partners
NWLDC

NWL Inclusive
Steering
Group

Active
Together

How

Work with NWLDC to
promote opportunities for
local Disability
Groups/Schools to use the
centre.

Provide activity space for
inclusive play/sessions.

Liaise with the local
Disability Groups to
understand what they
require to be active.

Member of the NWL
Inclusive Steering Group

Outputs

Increase of
5% disability
participation
against
2022/23 and
usage levels

Previous 1715
accessible
users
participations
(2022/23) 5%
increase,
Target 2330

Outcomes

Providing additional
space/activities for this target
group will allow them to access
physical activity opportunities
locally.

The burden of having to travel
to the city or elsewhere in the
county can have a considerable
negative effect or mean that
they are not able to access
sessions.

Additionally, these sessions
contribute to increasing activity
participation for this
population, helping provide
social and emotional benefit
through activity engagement.

These sessions further embed
inclusivity into our centres.

Increase physical activity levels
of participants.

Participants to report
improvement in physical,
mental and social wellbeing.

Evidenced using Active
Togethers MEL Framework.

Performance
Indicators

S1,S2, S5
ACD

Staying
Healthy and
Well




What (Activity  When (Timescale) Where Who (Target Outputs Outcomes Performance Q1 Q2 Q3

Need / Gap / (Location) Group & Indicators
Development) Partners)

These walks will help to build
free physical activity and social
opportunities for this S1, S2, S5
population that are easily AC,D
accessible, helping families
increase their physical activity Staying

1 x new walk
per contract

Target To train
8 levels and improve overall Healthy and
Groups volunteers . -
. . wellbeing and resilience. Well
Active mums and deliver a
Active communit
n Work with NWLDC, Active ¥ Using the MEL Framework |
. WCLC families . led Walk to - L
Community together and local residents physical activity and
March 2024 & become . .
Walks ) health/wellbeing will be
ALC sustainable .
monitored through attendance,
Partners through uestionnaires, and case
NWLDC volunteer gtudies !
= Active delivery.
N
o1 Together




What (Activity
Need / Gap /

Development)

When (Timescale)

Where
(Location)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance

Indicators

Qi Q2 Q3

Active Mums

orT

March 24

WCLC

Partners
NWLDC
Active
Together

NWL
residents who
are Pre & Post
Natal

Provide discounted offers
for pre and post natal
residents.

Train up 1 member of staff
to deliver pre and post
natal sessions.

Deliver a buggy walk pilot
to start and finish at the
leisure centre.

Discounted
swimming 1x
per week for 10
participants

Train 1x staff
members in pre
& post natal
qualification.

Deliver 1x
Buggy Walk
pilot.

Facilitate virtual
class for mums.

PT to deliver a
circuit class

Exit route into
main stream

physical activity.

A social/physical activity
support group created for pre
and post natal residents.

Women reach/ maintain a
healthy pre and post natal
weight.

Women maintain/reach
healthy mental wellbeing
combatting post natal
depression)

Pre and post natal mums
have a healthy social balance.

Pre and post natal mothers
improve physical health,
posture, core stability and
overall fitness.

Programme evaluated using
the Active Together MEL
Framework.

S1, 82, S5
ACD

Staying
Healthy
Well

and




What (Activity
Need / Gap /

Development)

When (Timescale)

Where
(Location)

WCLC

ALC

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)
Target Groups
Children and
young people
identified as
likely to
participate in
anti-social
behaviour.

Partners
NWLDC
LCC (YJS)

Active
Together

People Zone

Impact
workers

Police

How

Work with LCC to facilitate
Youth Crime interventions
through LC use

Project users to access
centres 20 times per year

Outputs

Benefits may
include
increasing
physical activity
levels which will
positively affect
emotional
health of the
programme
users
contributing to
greater sense of
wellbeing and
reducing
antisocial
engagement.

Impact will be
evidenced
through
anonymised
case studies.

Outcomes

Continue to work with LCC.

Performance
Indicators

S1, 82, S3, S5
ACD

Best Start in
Life




What (Activity

Need / Gap /

When (Timescale)

Where
(Location)

Who (Target
Group &

How

Output

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators

Development)
Active
Whitwick/
Thringstone/
People Zone

8T

March 2024

WCLC

Community
Settings

Partners)
Whitwick &
Thringstone
communities/
residents

Leisure partner for Active
programmes, including
offering reduced cost for
activities and outreach
work.

Provide support and
education for People Zone
group in relation to water
safety at collaborative
event

Representation
at community
steering group.

Deliver a Sports
Leaders Award
Training Course
to residents of
Thringstone and
Whitwick and
encourage
participants to
volunteer and
gain experience
at local VCSE
organisations
such as the
scouts, Charles
Booth Centre
and so on.

Attend and
support delivery
of community
events x2

Support with
facility access
(at the Leisure
Centre)

Support with
any other
possible
opportunities
that arise.

To engage residents in
activity and promoting a
healthy active lifestyle.

Educate children around
water safety

Influence the direction, add
capacity to delivery and
keep momentum of the
People Zone — see also
events.

Local residents trained to
deliver physical activity
sessions will leave a legacy
of sustainable sessions and
support access to jobs.

Create community
cohesion.




What (Activity

Need / Gap /
Development)

When (Timescale)

Where
(Location)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance Indicators

Q1

H
NWL SErt

Ongoing

WCLC

ALC

Target Groups
Local sports
clubs

Partners

School Sports
Partnership
Active Together
NWLDC

Understand the wants,
needs and challenges
facing grassroots sports
clubs and where
appropriate respond to
those needs.

Work with clubs to sign
up to Club Activ8.

Support club workforce
development.

Support access to
facilities.

Attend and chair
quarterly meetings.

Deliver 2 x user
group meetings
for each centre.

Playing a key part
in NWL Sport will
help place our
centres in a great
position to
accommodate
local sporting
club’s needs.

The group also
allows discussion
and formulation
of ideas and
plans to help
reduce barriers
to sport and
increase activity
levels with a
collaborative
approach.

Centre users get
access to state of
the art leisure
centres.

Engaging with
LC’s and this
network helps to
increase
advertisement
and reach for
sports, helping to
increase people
physical, social
and emotional
health.

A B,CD,E
S1,52, 53, 54, S5

Best Start in Life
Staying Healthy and Well

Living and Ageing Well




Educating, Protecting and Providing Opportunities For Young People (including Apprenticeships and Work Experience)

Performance Q1
Indicators

Where Outcomes

(Location)

Who (Target
Group &

What (Activity When (Timescale) Outputs

Need / Gap /

Development)

Partners)

All who undertake training

L2 Skills Target Group :VI” Ihaf\c/)er :pmpolgtur::zttgr :1’ 52
Programme CORE20PLUSS / oty AU
. : ) additional roles within our | Il
including; - Sport AT Identify members of the leisure centres [ |
Leader Awards current EA y 1xL2SLAs ’ .
(SLA)/ Swimming cralleyes current workforce and Staying
WCLC NWL residents to sign up L All will be offered Healthy and
Teacher L1 & L2 . 1 x Swimming .
e March 2024 & to the L2 skills volunteer opportunity. Well
Qualification. Partners . . teachers ]
k ALC . programme to train up in
National Pool Community . . |
. Lifeguard, Fitness and It has recently been
Lifeguard Groups, sports . . o .
P coaching. identified that there is a
Quialification(NPL clubs
Q) shortage of volunteers and
swim teachers in NWL.
This programme would
= help to fill the gap.
g Target Group .
NWL ReydenFs ST AT RS H 1x apprentlFe secures a
Apprenticeship — . full or part time
. opportunities for new .
Generally aimed . e employment role within S1,S2
applicants and existing
at personnel . the centres. E
colleagues to train and
over age of 18 . .
develop in multiple Sy
Work placement positions to support.both Healthy and
centre and community-
— For personnel . 1x Well
. based services. . .
WCLC in current apprenticeships
Number of . . [ |
Apprenticeships/ March 2024 & education Provide opportunity for delivered
; ALC CORE20PLUS5 ! . |
Work Experience experience and potential
L 6 x work
employment within our
Partners placements
centres.
Colleges /
schools

Local sports
clubs/ partners

Lifetime Training

Use work placement
booklet for bespoke
experience.




Where

What (Activity
Need / Gap /

When (Timescale)

Development)

WCLC
&
Club Activ8 ALC
Seheme March 2024
[ NWL
District

(Location)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Target Groups
Children and
Young People

CORE20PLUS5

Partners
Primary schools
Upper schools
All schools in
district

School Sports
Partnership /
School Games
Officer

NWLDC

Engaging with NW
Leicestershire schools to
increase weekly activity
levels and leisure centre
usage.

Promoting local clubs and
partners

Work with Schools and
SSP to specifically target
pupils that are on free
school meals or receive
Pupil Premium (at one
specific school

Outputs

Previous years
usage is 20.2%

New Target
22.5%

Outcomes

Increase in activity levels
of participants.

Improving physical,
mental, social, and
emotional health.

Participants can
experience new activities
which may lead to better
adherence to physical
activity.

An increase in children on
free school meals and
Pupil Premium regularly
accessing the scheme and
increasing physical activity
levels.

Pre and post questions will
be used to evaluate the
scheme along with usage.

Performance
Indicators

A B, E
S2,S3, 54, S5
Best Start in
Life




What (Activity

Need / Gap /
Development)

When (Timescale)

Where

(Location)

Who (Target
Group &
Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators

Ql

WCLC
&
ALC

Local
community
facilities

Target Group
Families which
are on low
incomes
identified by the
Children and
Families
Wellbeing Service
or through the
Active Families
Scheme

Leisure Link
Membership

CORE20PLUSS.
Partners
Children &
Families
wellbeing service
(LCC)

Active Together

NWLDC

Use a whole family
approach to physical
activity.

Provide HAF in
collaboration with
TayPlay for low-income
families (pilot)

Use Leisure Link
Membership to give
access to low income
families.

We will work with
partners to support
access to equipment and
sports clothing where
required and where
possible.

Deliver a 5%
increase in the
number of
supported
children and
families utilising
our centres.

Target 573

Provide 10 x
places for HAF

Provide accessibility to
state-of-the-art facilities to
groups from low socio-
economic backgrounds.

Increase physical activity
levels of participants.

Improve or maintain good
physical, mental and
emotional health.

Evidenced using the MEL
Framework including pre
and post questionnaires
and case studies.

S2,S3

Best Start in
Life

Staying
Healthy and
Well




What (Activity
Need / Gap /

When (Timescale)

Where
(Location)

Who (Target
Group &

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators

Q1

Development)

Inclusive play
session

€aT

Ongoing

WCLC

Partners)

Target Group
5-11yr olds with
learning
disabilities and
special
educational needs

Partners
Special
Educational
Needs (SEN)
schools
Enrych
Memphys
NWLDC

NWL Inclusive
Steering Group

The aim is for
Everyone Active to
have taken on the
session by the end of
financial year 23/24
to ensure this session
continues on at a
subsidised rate for
participants.

Average of 10 x
people attending
per session

Accessibility to local
sessions.

Participants feel safe and
welcome.

Increase participants
physical activity levels.

Develop motor skills.

Improve or maintain good
mental and social
wellbeing.

The session becomes
sustainable and not reliant
on external funding being
sourced.

Evidenced using the MEL
Framework including pre
and post questionnaires
and case studies.

A B, CE
S2,54, S5

Best Start in
Life




What (Activity
Need / Gap /

When
(Timescale)

Where
(Location)

Providing High Quality Services (partner & local network)

Who (Target Group & How

Partners)

Outputs

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators

Q1

Development)

=

a1
Suﬁ%orting
Talented Athletes

Ongoing

WCLC

ALC

Target Group
Athletes operating at
regional, national,
and international
performance level.

Partners
NWLDC

Active Together
Sports Clubs
NWL Sport
Sport England

Operating under
the Everyone Active
Sporting Champions
and Go Gold
scheme, working
with the local
authority, active
partnerships and
the clubs EA will
offer membership
support, providing
free access to high
quality facilities for
those competing at
regional and
national level.

The athletes must
be able to evidence
that they are
completing at
regional or national
level.

Implement a
dedicated
information board
to track and
promote athlete
progress

— 5 x Athletes
(5 free
memberships)

Supports athletes with the
cost of elite/high level
sport.

Supports a talent pool
from NWL. Raising NWL'’s
profile.

Inspires other residents
through advocacy and
championing.

S2,S3, S5

C, B

Best Start in
Life

Staying
Healthy and
Well




Thank our volunteers.

What (Activity When Where Who (Target Group & Outputs Outcomes Performance
Need / Gap / (Timescale) (Location) Partners) Indicators
Development)
A B CE
The general deliver MECC training to their | programme e Improved access | S2, 54, S5
population (residents | staff such as Receptionists, of MECC to health and
and visitors to North Lifeguards and Fitness Training wellbeing advice | Il
West Leicestershire) Instructors. This will give developed and services
their staff the skills, for EA staff. e Improvement in
To deliver MECC Lite | confidence, and knowledge morbidity and
: Training to all EA to encourage healthier A minimum ity ri
Making Every frontline staff. lifestyle choices. of 1 x gg{;ﬁ:ty rsk
Contact Count
(MECC) Healthy welc S external * Improve health
N ——. March 2024 & ait having ' Develpp a MECC programme | training and wellbeing of
ALC healthy conversations | of training for Everyone session population
with residents that Active’s workforce and delivered e reduce
visit the centre. This support the District Council with NWLDC inequalities
is a brief or very brief | to train other organisations Officer. e embed
intervention that can | Within North West prevention and
result in signposting Leicestershire. 1x .in.ternal social prescribing
- the resident to training held
g wellbeing support.
Celebrate sporting success A B,CD,E
at all levels, especially grass | S1, S2, S3, S4,
Target Group Working in conjunction with root level. S5
key partners to host a sports
NWL Residents and health awards evening to . Celebrate moving more and | Best Start in
. ’ Achieve 16 . .
recognise the great sporting, ) healthy lifestyles. Life
Partners physical activity and healthy awa.rc?s it
HO::‘:\;V:alstl:‘OFt Wele School Sports lifestyle achie\./ements of our an;mlmum Celebrlate life changing Staying
o S . g A wonderful residents, clubs, nominations beha!wour change though Healthy and
5033 ol schools, and volunteers. per award. moving more. Well
Host Junior Local Sports Clubs Running two separate events 150 pepple Celebrate our children and Living and
Awards . . attending .
NWL Sport this year to trial new style of A —— young people. Ageing Well
awards to further engage ’
NWLDC district residents. Inspire our residents. [ |




94T



Likely to contain exempt information under paragraph(s) 3 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

157



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6.

0’@‘0
)
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL ,.o ®
North We hst
COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — THURSDAY, 28 1 |
SEPTEMBER 2023 L@|C€5ter5 ;Ire
Title of Report AN UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S WORK ON ENFORCING

STANDARDS IN THE PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR AND
AN UPDATE ON TACKLING FUEL POVERTY IN THE
PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR

Presented by Paul Sanders
Head of Community Services

Background Papers None Public Report: Yes
Financial Implications There are financial implications to be aware of arising from
the report.

The cost of the enforcement activities are included in the
General Fund Revenue Budget. However, there are no
income budgeted for any penalties that may be realised. As
set out in the Cabinet the level of income from penalties will
be kept under review and factored into the Budget 2024/25
and Medium-Term Financial Plan.

The Council provides funding to Lightbulb from its revenue
budget and Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) which is part of
the Capital Programme. The report to be undertaken by
Foundations is expected to be funded from the DFG
allocation and will seek to propose options regarding the
future use of DFG allocation.

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications There are no legal implications as this is an update report.

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate The staffing implications are set out in the body of the report
Implications

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes

Purpose of Report To provide an update on the private sector housing work
undertaken by the Environmental Protection team and to
provide an update on tackling fuel poverty in the private
rented sector.

Recommendations COMMUNITY SCRUTINY TO NOTE AND COMMENT ON
THE CONTENTS OF THE REPORT.

159



1.0

11

1.2

13

2.0

2.1

2.2

BACKGROUND

In June 2023, Cabinet approved a number of housing enforcement policies. After the
Cabinet meeting, a call-in request was made, although the call-in request was refused,
the Environmental Protection team agreed to provide Community Scrutiny with an
update on the implementation of the policies.

The policies came into effect in June 2023 and this report provides an update for the
period June to August 2023

In response to a request for the Community Scrutiny work programme, the report also
includes an update on the Council’s progress in relation to tackling fuel poverty in the
private rented sector.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE POLICIES

Following the adoption of the policies at Cabinet the Environmental Protection Team
has met as a working group and has completed the following actions so far:

e The Private Sector Housing Enforcement Group (comprising of Environmental
Health Officer’s, Enforcement Officers, Team Leader and Team Manager have
developed procedures to ensure consistency across the whole team

e The Team has been briefed and trained.

o A review has been carried out of the active private sector housing cases. One
case has been identified which may be appropriate for the application of a civil
penalty, subject to the expiration of a compliance period for the completion of
the works.

e To identify the properties that did not meet the Minimum Energy Efficiency
Standards (MEES), the team used various data sets including Government and
County Council data. The data sets had to be reviewed to ensure there were
no duplications. This is important because the Team wanted to ensure the
relevant owners of properties were contacted and to ensure accurate figures
for reporting purposes. This initial data cleanse has resulted in the figures
changing from 430 to 203 non-compliant properties.

e To manage the case load, the Team has developed a risk-based approach to
ensure the higher risk properties are tackled first. This risk-based approach is
based on a number of factors including; the properties current EPC score,
previous complaints regarding the property and the level of works required to
improve the property. This is also in line with the Government’s requirements to
prioritise damp and mould cases.

The figures for each category are shown in Table One below up to August 2023.

Table One
Very High 10
High 15
Medium 46
Low 34
Very Low 5

Need to register | 8
for an exemption
Total non 118
compliant

160



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.0

3.1

3.2

Table Two below illustrates the work undertaken to date.

Table Two

Total number of private rented properties in North West | 5787
Leicestershire (as per Government data)

Number of properties that were not compliant with MEES | 15 out of 430
but are now, as a result of officer intervention, since June

2023

Number on the Exemption Register 6
Number of owners and tenants notified of the new | 203
legislation

Number of owners contacted via initial letter - in line with | 60
the new policy

Number of owners contacted via second letter - in line | 10
with the new policy

Percentage of properties compliant with MEES in | 93%
September 2022

Percentage of properties compliant with MEES in | 98%
September 2023

Proposed Council Delivery Plan Target 98% by 2028

The working group monitors the progress being made with the very high and high risk
properties to ensure that in line with the procedure and civil penalties policy, once they
have received two letters, the case is reviewed with a view to receiving a penalty for
non-compliance. If the penalty is not paid, then the Council can pursue the payment
via the civil route.

The temporary full time Technical Support Officer and temporary part time
Environmental Health Officer contracts have been extended for a further year, until 31
October 2024 and 20 August 2024 respectively. Both officers are working specifically
on private sector housing enforcement.

The Council has been taking advice from Foundations the Housing Charity that
supports Councils with their Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) service. The Council is
looking at a commission with Foundations to review the potential for greater flexibility
in the use of DFG capital which includes looking at the current level of resources in the
Team.

FUEL POVERTY

Home Update Grant — Phase 2 (HUG2), this is a Government backed scheme
delivered by local authorities to improve home efficiency. People without mains gas
heating are able to apply. Through the Lightbulb project, North West Leicestershire
have top sliced £150,000 from the Disabled Facilities Grant funding, permissible within
the grant criteria, to support take up within the area. There is not any current data on
the uptake for HUG2 in NWLDC as the scheme has very recently been launched.

A pilot project being set up through Lightbulb is the Respiratory illness project. North
West Leicestershire officers are part of the working group scoping the project. The
proposal for this pilot is to address housing conditions likely to exacerbate asthma and
respiratory illness across Leicestershire by improving collaborative working between

161



3.5

4.0

4.1

4.2

housing and health practitioners. This is to ensure that effective intervention is
undertaken at the earliest point to reduce the likelihood of serious illness developing.

The MEES compliance work detailed above will also ensure that works are carried out
by private sector landlords that in turn will help tenants with the energy costs within
their rented properties.

GENERAL HOUSING ENFORCEMENT

The Council’'s Housing Strategy and Environmental Protection Teams have met with
Derby City Council’'s Decent and Safe Homes (DASH) team, which the Council is a
member of. DASH provides advice and support to councils’ Private Sector Housing
Teams. The re-launch of the landlord forum in NWLDC and the use of a Landlord’s
Charter were part of the discussions. During this meeting, DASH also discussed the
landlord accreditation scheme that DASH offer and how to promote this to attract more
members. The Housing Strategy Team is re-launching the Landlords Forum and is in
the process of updating its contacts to attract more Landlords to the Forum in the
future. Once the Forum has been re-launched this will be a good opportunity to
promote the DASH accreditation scheme and gain views on the establishment of a
Landlord’s Charter, which reflects the action within the emerging Council Delivery Plan
considered by Corporate Scrutiny Committee on 31 August.

Table Three below, illustrates the work undertaken by the Environmental Protection
Team in June, July and August.

Table Three
Housing service requests 16
Service requests which involve section 21 notice 2
Park home service requests 5
HMO applications 0
Policies and other considerations, as appropriate
Council Priorities: - Local people live in high quality, affordable
homes
- Our communities are safe, healthy and
connected
Policy Considerations: None
Safeguarding: Any safeguarding concerns raised through the work

within the Environmental Protection Team are
referred as appropriate.

Equalities/Diversity: An Equality Impact Assessment was completed

when drafting the policies.

Customer Impact: Improved energy efficient rented properties will help

reduce the utility costs for the property

Economic and Social Impact: Tackling Damp and Mould and improving energy

efficiency in the private rented sector will help lower

162




utility costs and reduce the risks to health of the
tenants in terms of respiratory illness.

Environment, Climate Change and
zero carbon:

Environmental Implications including contributions
to achieving Zero carbon Council by 2030. The
Minimum Energy Efficiencies Standards Financial
Penalties policy provides a regulatory framework
for improving the energy efficiency in the private
rented sector.

Consultation/Community
Engagement:

None required

Risks:

None

Officer Contact

Paul Sanders
Head of Community Services
Paul.sanders@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Clare Proudfoot
Environmental Protection Team Manager
clare.proudfoot@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

163



mailto:Paul.sanders@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
mailto:clare.proudfoot@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7.

0’@‘0
0.9
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL ’.0 ®
Nortn We hst
COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — THURSDAY, 28 I I
SEPTEMBER 2023 L@IC@SterS :H’e
Title of Report HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY TO APPROVE THE
COUNCIL'S NEW FIVE YEAR HOMELESSNESS
STRATEGY
Presented by Andy Barton, Strategic Director of Communities
Background Papers None Public Report: Yes
Financial Implications There are no financial implications arising directly from the

approval of the Strategy. However, the impact of the Strategy
will need to be considered as part of developing and
approving the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan as
homelessness is a pressure within the local government
sector.

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications No direct legal implications arising from this report

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate None directly
Implications

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes

Purpose of Report To introduce the draft Homelessness Strategy for
consideration by the Community Scrutiny Committee

Recommendations THAT COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE NOTES THE
DRAFT HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY AND PROVIDES
COMMENTS AHEAD OF CONSIDERATION BY CABINET
ON 12 DECEMBER.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Under the Homelessness Act 2002, all housing authorities must have in place a
homelessness strategy based on a review of all forms of homelessness in their district.
The strategy must be renewed at least every five years.

1.2 The strategy must set out the authority’s plans for the prevention of homelessness and

for securing that sufficient accommodation and support are or will be available for
people who become homeless or who are at risk of becoming so.

165



13

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Council’s last Homelessness Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 5 March
2019. As the end of the strategy’s lifespan approaches, this new draft strategy sets out
the Council’s priorities for the next five years

CONSULTATION

The draft strategy has been developed in consultation with a range of key partners and
stakeholders. Consultation and engagement has included:

e A shared partner engagement day alongside Melton Borough Council and Oadby
and Wigston Borough Council

e An online public survey promoted to current and recent service users of the
housing choices service

e A presentation to the Tenants and Leaseholders Consultation Forum

e Engagement with the local homelessness prevention forum

¢ A member workshop.

Feedback across all of these activities has fed into the draft strategy and emerging
actions.

Following on from consideration by Scrutiny Committee, the strategy will be shared
with key stakeholders for comment prior to presentation to Cabinet.

OVERVIEW OF THE STRATEGY

The strategy reviews performance over the last five years and then identifies a set of
priorities and potential actions to address those priorities.

Section 179 of the Housing Act 1996 sets out an obligation on the local housing
authority to provide advice around homelessness to people in the district. Section
179(2) sets out particular groups the service must be designed to meet the needs of.
These are:

a. people released from prison or youth detention accommaodation;
b. care leavers;

c. former members of the regular armed forces;

d. victims of domestic abuse;

e. people leaving hospital; and

f. people suffering from a mental illness or impairment.

The strategy is structured so as to have particular regard to the needs of these groups.
The Homelessness Code of Guidance for Local Authorities sets out that “in districts
where there is evidence that people are sleeping rough, the homelessness strategy
should include objectives to work toward eliminating rough sleeping.” The strategy
also, therefore, considers the needs of rough sleepers in the district.

Finally, taking on board feedback from service users the strategy places a focus on the
customer experience.

The strategy identifies four priorities and sets out how the Council intends to address
these, namely:

166



4.0 PROPOSED IMPLEMENTATION

Reduce demand for homelessness services through proactive support;
Increase the number of positive outcomes for homeless households;
Reduce demand and increase the quality of emergency accommodation;
Better meet the needs of people with complex needs; and

To eliminate rough sleeping where possible.

4.1 It is proposed that the draft strategy is now put out to consultation ahead of
consideration by Cabinet at the December meeting.

4.2 Once the strategy is approved, an annual delivery plan will be developed to address
the priorities agreed through the strategy.

4.3 Oversight of the delivery plan will be through the Council’s multi-agency preventing

homelessness forum.

4.4 Key performance information in relation to homelessness will also form part of the
housing strategy and systems team plan.

Policies and other considerations, as appropriate

Council Priorities:

Local people live in high quality, affordable
homes

Policy Considerations:

None

Safeguarding:

There are no direct safeguarding considerations,
however, the policy has particular regard to support
for people subject to domestic abuse.

Equalities/Diversity:

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been
undertaken and no adverse impacts on protected
groups have been identified

Customer Impact:

The strategy identifies the Council priorities for
addressing homelessness. These will have a direct
customer impact. The strategy endeavours to have
a positive impact on some of the most vulnerable
customers we support.

Economic and Social Impact:

None directly

Environment, Climate Change and
zero carbon:

None directly

Consultation/Community
Engagement:

The draft strategy has been developed in
consultation with a range of key partners and
stakeholders. Consultation and engagement has
included:

e A shared partner engagement day
alongside Melton Borough Council and
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

e An online public survey promoted to current
and recent service users of the housing
choices service

167




e A presentation to the Tenants and
Leaseholders Consultation Forum

o Engagement with the local homelessnhess
prevention forum
e A member workshop.

Risks:

None identified

Officer Contact

David Scruton
Housing Strategy and Systems Team Manager
david.scruton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

168



mailto:david.scruton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Homelessness Strategy 2024 — 2029

169



Contents

o o 11T o n o T o 1 TRN 4
FA oo U B o o EE S A 1 =Y -4V USSR 4
The NOMEIESS PICLUIE ...viiiiieiiee et e et e e e st e e e s abe e e s sabaeeesasbeeeeesbeeesensbeeessnnrenas 4

K@Y Chall@NGES.....ceuneiiieeeeiiirieeiiieeeeereeeeesreransessreassessernssesseenssessennssessennsssssennsssseennsssssennsssseennsnnne 6
TaTol g F- Y (g BT o o F=Y o Vo PSS 6
o T YA oY =T V=T o u o o TR TSP 7
Temporary ACCOMMOTAtION. ...cciiiiiiiiiciiee ettt e et e e e s e e s s bee e s sabee e s ssbeeesenabeeesenarenas 9
Role of the Private RENTEA SECLOT .....uiiiiiiieiee et st saee e sbeeesanes 12
Key CauSEs Of NOMEIESSNESS ...cc.eviiieitiee ettt e e e e e e e e e te e s e s bte e e e sabaeeeeenrenas 12
Fi¥olole]aaYaaToTe F=1n Lo Yo T @) u o] o U SRR 13
IMProViNg ACCESS 10 SEIVICES ......ceeuiiiiriiriiriisieteteee ettt sttt be e enes 14

Meeting the Needs of Particular GrOUPS .......ceeeeeeieniireeereairtnnereneierenerenerenseereseesnssesssssssnsessnsesses 16
People Released from prison or youth detention accommodation...........cccccooveeiiveiinnneee 16

AVAIIaDIE EVIAENCE ..ottt st s 16
What we are currently dOiNg ........ccoeviririniieeeeese et 16
AT = L= 1= = To I £ 1o [ J U 16
A LEAVETS.....oeeeeeeeee ettt ettt sttt e s e et e b e st et e s seessestesseenseeseensenseeseeseaneententeeneans 17
AVAIIaDIE EVIAENCE ..ottt st st s 17
What we are currently dOiNg ..ot s 17
What We NEEA 10 O ....cuiiiiiiee ettt 17
Former members of the regular armed fOrCes ..o 17
AVAIIaDIE EVIAENCE ..ottt ettt be e s nee 17
What we are currently dOiNg ..ot st s 18
What We NEEA 10 QO ...ttt st st s 18
Victims of dOMESHIC @DUSE .......ceouiiiiiie e 18
AVAIlADIE EVIAENCE ..ottt 18
What we are currently dOiNg ..ot st s 18
What We NEEA 10 QO ...ttt s e 18
People 1eaving NOSPILAL .........cooiiieeeeee ettt e 19
AVAIlADIE EVIAENCE ..ot 19
What we are currently dOiNG........oceeieiiieeiiceeeeeee et 19
What We NEEA 10 QO ...ttt s et 19
People suffering from a mental illness or impairment...........ccccooeveieinineneseseeeeeeeeen 19
AVAIlADIE EVIAENCE ......oeiiiieeeee et 19
What we are currently dOiNG........ooeecieiiiieececeeeee ettt s 19



TV P 1 AV e 1= Y=Y o I (o 1 [o ORI 20

L0 11 g1 €] o TH] o 0PTSRS 20
Supporting those with COMPIEX NEEAS .........ooveveeiiecece e 20
ROUQGN SIEEPEIS.......eeeeeeeeeeieccccceereree s trs s srsneereesesssssssssannseeessssssssssssnsseassssssesssnsnsnesssssassssnanns 20
OUr Priorities and ACHIONS ......cooiiiirieeuiiiiiiiiiirriiiisn s saaesssss s r e s s saasssssessnensssnassssass 22
Priority One: reduce demand for homelessness services through proactive support ..........ccc....... 22
Priority Two: increase the number of positive outcomes for homeless households ....................... 22
Priority Three: reduce demand and improve the quality of emergency accommodation ............... 23
Priority Four: better meeting the needs of people with complex needs.........ccccoceeeeeiieeiiccieeeennen. 23
Priority Five: ENd ROUEH SIEEPINEG ..eeiieiiiiiiiiee ettt sttt e s e e e sree e s e sbae e e e saneeas 23
How We Will MEaSUIe SUCCESS .......coeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 25

171



Introduction

About this strategy

Not having a home or living somewhere that is unsafe or unsuitable can have a
devastating effect on individuals and families. We want to ensure that we are taking
the right approach to preventing homelessness and rough sleeping and supporting
those who become homeless.

Our Homeless and Rough Sleeping Strategy sets the direction and priorities we will
follow for the next five years in order to address homelessness in North West
Leicestershire.

The strategy sets out our plans for the prevention of homelessness and for securing
appropriate accommodation and support for those who are homeless or at risk of
becoming so.

In order to inform and develop this strategy we have carried out a review of our
homeless data from the last five years alongside a series of consultation points with
customers, stakeholders and key partners. This has allowed us to understand the
challenges and gaps within existing homeless services and identify the opportunities
that we want to develop over the next five years.

We are lucky to have already developed strong partnerships locally with many
homeless services and joint pathways are now being delivered at a County or sub-
regional level. We have also maintained our own distinct voice in our locality through
a regular homelessness forum for the area and this has allowed us to develop strong
working relationships with a range or partners, organisations, and individuals.

Since our last homeless strategy we have increased the affordable housing available
to those in need, secured funding for new services and repurposed vacant Council
housing into use as emergency accommodation.

But despite the success and progress we have made over the last few years there
remains further work to do. Homelessness is not unique to North West Leicestershire
and the challenges we face in tackling the underlying issues as well as the effects is
significant. This strategy aims to build on the strong foundations we have developed
with an ambitious and comprehensive approach to tackling homelessness in North
West Leicestershire.

The homeless picture
Much has changed since the last homelessness strategy was developed in 2018.

The Coronavirus created a number of challenges for homelessness services but also
created opportunities. The need to redesign services to be delivered remotely has

172



allowed us to widen opportunities for people to access our services but at the same
time other changes have reduced flexibilities in service provision, especially in
accommodation settings.

The need to make accommodation covid safe led to changes that mean that some of
the short-term emergency accommodation options our providers had in place to
respond to surges in demand or extreme weather events, such as shared spaces or
through sit up night provision, are no longer available.

Ongoing economic challenges have meant that some services have reduced, are at
risk or are under increased pressure. We have had to be proactive with our own
resources to fill these gaps. We have sought to work together wherever possible
with our neighbouring authorities to maximise opportunities for bringing in funding
and creating efficiencies. We have been successful in putting in place a Countywide
Rough Sleeper Initiative (RSI) lead by ourselves on behalf of the districts and
Rutland which has both improved the range of services and support available to
rough sleepers but also allowed us to better understand the true level of need in the
district. This is one of a number multi-agency and sub-regional initiatives now in
place covering areas such as prison release, hospital discharge and leaving care.

There have been other external factors too which have impacted on demand and
have lead to us review our model of support. The most notable is probably the
impact of the troubles in Ukraine and the introduction of the Homes for Ukraine
scheme whereby members of our community opened their homes to those fleeing
the war.

Over the lifetime of the last strategy we saw an increase in demand for our homeless
services whilst at the same time a reduction in available accommodation options.
Over the lifetime of this strategy we need to work smarter to address these
challenges.

173



Key Challenges

Increasing Demand

The graph below shows the number of approaches for help received by the Council’s
Housing Choices Team that were assessed under the Homeless Reduction Act over
the last five years.

Homeless Appications by Year

450

400 /

350

300
250
200
150
100

50

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

As can be seen there has been a significant increase in homelessness cases over
the period. The biggest jump was between 2018 and 2019 and this may in part be
explained by the fact that this was the period where staff and indeed customers were
adjusting to the new requirements of the Homelessness Reduction Act but the trend
has continued overall since then albeit at a slower place.

Age of primary applicant
35%
30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

I i

0% — .

16-17 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 plus

174



The majority of people approaching us for assistance are between the ages of 25
and 34 with 51% identifying as Male. This has been largely consistent over the last
five years.

Of the households who are dealt with at the prevention stage 45% contain
dependent children. At relief stage this drops to 20%. The split between
singles/couples approaching for support and families has remained at a similar level
throughout the last five years.

Early Intervention

The chart below shows the split between households approaching at a point where
they are still in accommodation (prevention cases) and those who are already
homeless (relief cases).

Where households do require assistance this is most effective when it can be
provided before someone becomes homeless (so at the prevention case stage).

In 2018 and 2019 prevention cases were outnumbering relief cases however in 2020
this situation reversed and the gap between the two has been increased.

Prevention versus Relief

250

200

150
100
5

0

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

o

H Prevention M Relief

During the prevention stage a positive outcome can be as a result of providing
assistance so that someone can remain in their existing accommodation or providing
support to access a new home through a planned move. Only around 9% of
prevention cases are closed because the household’s existing accommodation was
secured for at least another 6 months with the number of prevention cases that move
through into relief (when homeless cannot be prevented) averaging around 11%.

The graph below illustrates the change in outcomes for those approaching us as
threatened with homeless over the last five years. It should be noted though that the
profile of cases falling into this category will have fluctuated during the period as a
result of government interventions during the Covid pandemic such as the
moratorium on evictions.

175



Outcomes for Prevention Cases

2022 -2023

2021 -2022

2020-2021

2019 -2020

2018 - 2019

H Homeless M Secured alternative accommodation M Secured existing accommodation

The chart below illustrates the outcomes for those who secure alternative
accommodation at the prevention stage. As can be seen well over half move into
social housing through the council or a registered provider.

Prevention Outcomes (alternative acccommodation)

—

= Council tenancy = Registered Provider tenancy

= Private rented sector: self-contained = Staying with family

= Social rented supported housing or hostel = other

176



If we are to minimise the impact of homelessness on our customers and make best
use of our resources it is critical that we maximise the number of households we
support at prevention stage and maximise the number of positive outcomes for all of
our customers.

Not only have we seen an increase in the proportion of cases being assisted at relief
stage as can be seen from the graph below there has been a steady increase in
those not securing alternative accommodation within the 56 day relief period.

Outcomes for Relief Cases

2022-2023 |
2021-2022 |
2020-2021 | O ——
2019 - 2020 |
2018-2019 |

B 56 days elaspsed ~ ® Secured accommodation

Whilst those households to whom we owe a full homeless duty will continue to
receive support once the relief stage has ended at the very least this reduction in
positive outcomes will lead to extended stays in temporary accommodation and for
those to whom we don’t owe a full duty the likelihood of a prolonged period of
homelessness.

Through engagement with partners during the development of this strategy we have
identified a number of areas to explore in terms of additional prevention options.

These include improving access to appropriate advice, ensuring support is available
when needed and upskilling customers to maintain accommodation more effectively.

Additionally the opportunities afforded to households through access to social
housing has been decreasing particularly to those with lower levels of housing need.
In 2016 almost 75% of lettings were to applicants in the lower bands and this had
reduced to around 30% by summer 2023. This means the chances of assisting
people with planned moves before they reach serious housing difficulty has greatly
reduced. As access to social housing constricts we will need to identify alternative
options to support people to maintain their existing accommodation or move to more
appropriate homes.

Temporary Accommodation

Temporary accommodation is provided to households who are homeless and in
priority need. This will be all families with children or where a household member is
pregnant but for single people they will need to have been assessed as vulnerable.

177



Over the last five years we have seen a significant increase in the demand for
temporary accommodation.

Focussing on the last three years where our data is more detailed the number of
people requiring (and entitled to) temporary accommodation has increased from
around 100 each year to over 150 (as illustrated in the graph below.) As the
Government’s “everybody in” initiative whereby local authorities were encouraged to
accommodate those individuals to whom they did not owe a duty was in place in the
early part of 2020 the increase in demand over the last three years would inevitable
have been even starker was this not the case.

Number of temporary accommodation
placements

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

The graph below illustrates the number of days of accommodation provided and this
shows that even though the number of placements dropped in 2021/22 the number
of nights of accommodation provided still increased.

Days of temporary accommodation provided
8000
7000
6000
5000
4000
3000
2000

1000
2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

As a result expenditure on temporary accommodation has also increased.

178



£350,000

£300,000

£250,000
£200,000
£150,000
£100,000

£50,000 l
£0

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Of 413 households placed in temporary accommodation since April 2020 almost
84% were in temporary accommodation for less than 3 months. Another 13% were
accommodated between 3 and 6 months. Only 15 individuals were accommodated
for over six months but whilst our long term placements are fortunately low these
cases will be some of the most challenging in terms of suitable long term options.

Around 85% of cases accommodated were single people and childless couples with
families with children or expectant mothers making up just 15%

The average length of stay for those with children or who were pregnant was 43
days slightly lower than the 50 days for those without although the longest stay of
any family was 221 days as opposed to 404 for a single person suggesting that more
challenging cases are often single person households.

89 of the singles/couples or 26% were accommodated for 7 days or less for families
this was just below 20%. This demonstrates that any temporary accommodation
model developed needs to be responsive to a significant throughput of short stay
placements as well as a number of longer term stays.

Whilst reducing temporary accommodation is a key target so too is increasing the
quality of Temporary Accommodation when we do need to use it.

If we can improve positive outcomes for people at the prevention stage this will have
the direct impact of reducing demand for emergency accommodation as well as
delivering better outcomes and reducing uncertainty and disruption to people.

If we are able to increase the range of alternative housing options for all, this will
benefit those in emergency accommodation and reduce the length of time
households are required to stay in such provision.

The district has seen a significant increase in demand for temporary
accommodation. Whilst a key objective is to reduce the overall use of emergency
accommodation there will always be a need for some people to access such
provision.

179



Bed and Breakfast is both poor quality in terms of outcomes but also in terms of
value for money. Therefore we will continue to work on alternative provision that is
improves outcomes for customers by redirecting current expenditure.

We also need to review our approach to charging for emergency accommodation to
ensure we are fair and consistent.

Role of the Private Rented Sector

The Private Rented Sector (PRS) Is both a cause of homelessness but also an
effective housing option for many customers.

Whilst reforms to the sector, such as the Rent Reform Bill are intended to improve
security for private tenants this coupled with other external factors such as interest
rate rises do appear to be having an impact on the sector and leading to some
movement in the market with smaller landlords in particular looking to withdraw.

PRS accommodation currently makes up a much lower percentage of
accommodation outcomes than social housing for our homeless households
however it remains an important option particularly for certain households who are
unable to access social housing or who have needs that cannot easily be met
through the available social housing stock.

To ensure the PRS works effectively it is important that both tenants and landlords
understand their rights and responsibilities and are able to access the support they
need.

We therefore need to review our offer of support to existing and potential PRS
tenants as well as review our engagement with private landlords in the district to
work more effectively with them as well as to try and improve the quality of the PRS
and customer confidence.

Key causes of homelessness

The chart below shows the main causes of homelessness in the District. The top four
causes of homelessness are the same at both the prevention and relief stage albeit
coming out in a different order with notices from private accommodation being the
biggest single cause at the prevention stage whilst family and friends asking people
to leave is the bigger cause at the relief stage.

Although for homeless monitoring purposes family and friends no longer able to
accommodate, are grouped separately, we have chosen to view these as one group
as they cover a wide range of similar scenarios.

180



Main Causes of Homelessness

600
500

400

300

200

100 . I
, ] L]

Prevention Relief Total
B End of assured shorthold tenancy B Family or Friends no longer accommodating
M Relationship ended (non-violent) Domestic Abuse

When grouped together, family and friends no longer able to accommodate accounts
for 30% of cases overall and the single greatest cause in total.

In most of these scenarios interventions need to focus on facilitating planned moves
and managing short term friction rather than sustaining arrangements on a longer
term basis.

Accommodation Options

When we look at the accommodation outcomes for people who have become
homeless we can see the importance of supported accommodation. Almost a fifth of
homeless households move into supported accommodation (usually shorter term
accommodation.)

181



Relief Outcomes (alternative accommodation)

.. N

o

= Council tenancy = Social rented supported housing or hostel
= Registered Provider tenancy Staying with family

= Staying with friends = Private rented sector: self-contained

= Private rented sector: HMO = other

This is likely to be in part because those who find themselves homeless are more
likely to have support needs but also because such schemes often prioritise their
vacancies based on need so those already homeless will tend to be better placed on
waiting lists.

If we want to continue to provide positive outcomes for homeless households we will
need to ensure that we have a good supply of supported housing which is able to
meet people’s needs as well as more flexible options for support. Equally important
though is the need to ensure such schemes have effective move on pathways to
generate sufficient vacancies. Developing options to support households in general
needs accommodation as they transition into independence and at times of crisis is
therefore key both to support move on from supported accommodation as well as to
assist those for whom supported placements are not available or appropriate.

Improving access to services
As part of the development of this strategy we have asked customers about their
experience of the service they received.

Whilst it is reassuring that the majority of customers who have received assistance
felt the experience was positive there are key themes that came out of the
consultation that we can address to improve the customer experience.

182



Customers felt that they are approaching the local authority for assistance at the
earliest possible opportunity although as can be seen from our data we are seeing
an increasing proportion of approaches after people have become homeless.

Customers also reported that they were not sure how to seek assistance and the
vast majority approached the local authority in the first instance despite a range of
partners in the district who provide advice and support.

Once receiving assistance they felt they would benefit from having more timely
information about their case and what was happening.

This insight will help inform future service development.

183



Meeting the Needs of Particular Groups

Section 179 of the Housing Act 1996 set out an obligation on the local housing
authority to provide advice around homelessness to people in the district

Section 179(2) sets out particular groups the service must be designed to meet the
needs of

a. people released from prison or youth detention accommodation;
b. care leavers;

c. former members of the regular armed forces;

d. victims of domestic abuse;

e. people leaving hospital;

f. people suffering from a mental illness or impairment;

furthermore we should consider any other group identified as being particularly at
risk of homelessness in the district.

When developing the evidence base for this homeless strategy we have specifically
looked at each key group to determine what the demand is and what existing service
provision looks like. Our consultation work has then identified any gaps in provision
and opportunities to improve support which we have then sought to include as
potential actions under our identified priorities.

People Released from prison or youth detention accommodation

Available Evidence

Around 5.5% of homeless cases are identified as having a support need as a result
of their offending history however this contrasts with less than 1% that are identified
as being homeless as a result of leaving custody. This could suggest that the impact
of offending goes far beyond the initial homelessness that occurs for some on
release from prison.

The majority of referrals that are received through the duty to refer, a statutory
requirement for certain agencies to refer homeless households to the local authority
are for those within the criminal justice system with an average of 7 referrals a year.

What we are currently doing

North West Leicestershire District Council takes a sub-regional approach to those
released from prison and youth detention being a signatory to a protocol shared with
the City Council, the other Leicestershire districts and Rutland.

The protocol is currently being reviewed and one of the emerging issues is the fact
that because of the structure of the criminal justice system prisoners may be
released from a number of prisons and courts across the region.

We have therefore begun work to try and develop more regional approaches to
managing ex-offenders.

What we need to do
Two areas identified within the consultation that partners felt were key to this group
were ensuring appropriate accommodation was available recognising that those with

184



an offending history often face additional barriers to accommodating both emergency
and long term accommodation with specific offences, such as arson making it
particularly difficult to access emergency accommodation.

It was also identified that ensuring that prisoners can access the right advice ad
services in a timely manner whilst still within prison was key to positive outcomes.

Care Leavers

Available Evidence

Only 1% of applications are identified as having support needs as having been in
care (within the age group 18-20) and a smaller proportion again as older care
leavers.

The County Council are subject to the duty to refer in terms of children leaving their
care. On average we received 2 referrals a year.

Because we take a proactive approach to supporting care leavers access
accommodation before their care placement ends we are able to keep the number of
homeless cases low.

What we are currently doing
The Leicestershire Districts work closely with the County Council leaving care team
to ensure positive pathways for young people leaving care in the County.

As well as reviewing and updating a county wide leaving care protocol we are also
working on a number of new accommodation options to better meet need and enable
a more appropriate set of transition options.

What we need to do

Whilst wherever possible we work jointly to ensure young people transition into
settled accommodation in a controlled way there are occasions where this does not
happen. Also a number of people leaving care will not settle effectively in their
accommodation and require further assistance after moving into independence.
Anecdotally people who have been in the care system are particularly prone to
repeat instances of homelessness within a relatively short period of time.

One particular challenge which we have seen is an appropriate offer of support for
those within the care system who form relationships with much provision geared up
for single people only.

The consultation identified the need for appropriate move on accommodation for
young people when they are leaving care but also the need to ensure staff are
appropriately trained to understand the needs of care leavers. We also need to
ensure that support can meet the range of needs that care leavers present with.

Former members of the regular armed forces

Available Evidence
North West Leicestershire does not have any MoD estate within the district however
we do have a strong tradition of support veterans who approach us for support.

185



On average though only 2 cases a year have been identified where an applicant has
support needs as a result of having been in the armed forces and the numbers
presenting as homeless as a result of leaving the forces are even lower.

What we are currently doing

As a council we have signed up to the armed forces covenant. We have also framed
our allocations policy to offer additional preference to former members of the armed
forces

What we need to do

The support available to veterans and agencies working in the district has changed
in recent years and we need to ensure all frontline staff are aware of the current
offer. We will therefore begin an engagement exercise with relevant stakeholders to
ensure that former members of the armed forces are assisted to access all the
support that is available.

Victims of domestic abuse

Available Evidence

Around 8.5% of homelessness applicants have an identified support need as a result
of domestic abuse. This is slightly lower than the 10% of cases where domestic
abuse is the cause of homelessness.

What we are currently doing
We have identified the advantages of taking a pro-active multi-agency approach to
supporting victims of domestic abuse.

As a result we have funded a domestic abuse link worker to work within the housing
choices team for a number of years.

Recent changes to legislation in particular the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 have
widened the responsibilities toward victims of domestic abuse. It is a particular
challenge then to ensure we are working effectively with other statutory partners as
well as the voluntary sector to ensure that our response is suitable, sustainable and
sensitive.

Work is underway to develop a multi-agency pathway for victims of domestic abuse
to ensure a clear and consistent offer to those seeking support. Because a number
of key partners work across the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) area
and because on occasions those fleeing domestic abuse will want to move away
from their existing localities for safety reasons this work is being carried out at a sub-
regional level. A scoping workshop with all key agencies is already scheduled.

What we need to do

Consultation identified the need to increase the availability of dispersed
accommodation for people fleeing domestic abuse. The County Council are currently
in the process of commissioning additional accommodation services and we will
work with them to support the delivery of these units.

186



People leaving hospital

Available Evidence

Whilst the majority of people leaving hospital will have safe and secure
accommodation to return to a small number will have lost accommodation as a result
of their medical situation or no longer have a home to return to suitable to their
needs.

A lack of suitable accommodation to discharge into to continue recovery is a
significant drain on health resources and so effective joint working is key to making
the best use of scarce resources across the public sector.

That said over the last five years only 4 cases have been recorded as homeless as a
result of leaving hospital.

At the same time around 9% of homeless applications are identified as having a
support need as a result of physical health (alongside over 15% as a result of mental
health issues.) Whilst there is no reason to assume these are approaching us from a
hospital setting it may suggest that we need to review our data to ensure we are
capturing peoples circumstances correctly particularly in this area.

What we are currently doing

We are part of a sub-regional partnership with our local authority peers and the local
NHS services to provide pro-active support to patients who face barriers to discharge
from hospital.

The service provides both practical support to allow those with accommodation to
return home as well as assistance with accessing alternative housing options where
this is not an option.

What we need to do

Consultation has identified the advantages that having appropriate step down
accommodation for people leaving hospital would make. It also identified the
importance of having appropriately trained staff within housing teams.

People suffering from a mental iliness or impairment

Available Evidence
Approximately 15.5% of applicants are identified as having support needs in relation
to their mental health

Anecdotally this group is the one that have the greatest difficulty securing, and
maintaining appropriate accommodation whether that be emergency placements,
short term supported accommodation or longer term housing options.

They are also disproportionately represented within the rough sleeping community a
group that are the most excluded from many services.

What we are currently doing

We have been working hard to integrate services to those struggling with their
mental health into the wider homelessness offer. Work has been ongoing for a
number of years to develop a specialist service for the homeless with mental health
issues and we continue to support and advocate on behalf of our colleagues in

187



health to move this work forward. We have also submitted and supported funding
bids for more resources in this area.

What we need to do

The overwhelming feedback from consultation was the need for more specialist
accommodation for this client group. This mirrors the conclusion of other work within
the County.

Other Groups

The Act encourages us to consider whether there are other groups within the locality
who would benefit from a focussed homelessness response. Whilst there have been
no other specific groups identified as part of this strategy development we have
identified that groups with multiple needs find it particularly difficult to secure
appropriate services to meet their complex needs.

Supporting those with complex needs
As part of the homeless assessment, officers have to identify both the
accommodation needs of the household but also any support needs.

Whilst around half of households to whom we owe a homeless duty have at least
one identified support need around 3.5% of applicants have three or more. Whilst
these figures are low overall such cases often require a disproportionate amount of
resource to secure positive outcomes and are most likely to become repeat cases
after being unable to maintain housing independently.

The Rough Sleeping Initiative has introduced the concept of the Target Priority
Group. This involves an assessment to identify those individuals at particular risk of
rough sleeping and with additional needs. We are then encouraged to monitor the
housing situation of these clients and identify when they are at risk of further
homelessness.

We hope to replicate this approach to those without a history of rough sleeping to
identify cases where additional resource or a different approach will be required.

The Council has also been part of a pilot programme with health and colleagues in
adult social care to develop a complex needs accommodation board where
individuals with complex needs whose accommodation needs are not being
effectively met can be escalated to a panel of senior staff to unblock barriers and
seek creative solutions. We will continue to support this programme and use the
learning to improve services more widely.

As a result of the particular challenges those with multiple needs face we have
included a priority in this strategy to better meet the needs of this group.

Rough Sleepers

The Homelessness Code of Guidance sets out that “in districts where there is
evidence that people are sleeping rough, the homelessness strategy should include
objectives to work toward eliminating rough sleeping.”

We are fortunate that in North West Leicestershire reports of rough sleeping are
relatively low. The table below shows the number of reports and number or uniquely

188



identified cases over the last two years. (Reports will often include people who are
not actually sleeping rough and multiple reports of a single individual may be
received.)

| 2021/22 2022/23 2023/23
Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter
Two Three Four One Two Three Four One
Reports 3 9 7 8 16 8 12 16
identified 0 4 1 3 6 0 2 8

As part of the rough sleeping initiative funding we are required to develop an annual
ending rough sleeping plan through co-production with our rough sleeping advisor
and we will continue to do this however there are a number of key actions that
interrelate with the wider objective of this strategy.

We have adopted a definition of ending rough sleeping in keeping with the DLUHC
publication “Ending Rough Sleeping For Good.” Our end goal is for rough sleeping to
be prevented wherever possible but when it does occur, it must be rare, brief and
non-recurring. Achieving this is the final priority of this strategy.

189



Our Priorities and Actions

This strategy sets out five priority areas that will drive the Council’s work over the
next 5 years and allow us to deliver our vision for preventing homelessness and
rough sleeping

We cannot deliver this work alone and we will therefore work closely with the
community and partner organisations to ensure these commitments are delivered..

Priority One: reduce demand for homelessness services through proactive support
WHY? We are seeing more people approaching us for help at the point that they are
homeless and in urgent need of housing. We are also finding more people,
particularly younger people, returning into homeless services after finding it difficult
to maintain a home. We need to focus on prevention and support to reach people at
a stage where we can enable a planned move into the best possible home to meet
their needs. By the end of this Strategy Period, we are seeking to:

o Work collaboratively with key partners to improve advice and support

¢ Develop a communications programme to promote the housing choices
service and other support available to residents

e Review case work processes to ensure customers are provided regular and
appropriate updates

e Develop a training programme for housing choices staff which includes
trauma informed approaches

e Carry out a mapping exercise of available support and services to former
members of the armed forces within NWL

Priority Two: increase the number of positive outcomes for homeless households
WHY? We are seeing too many households that are unable to resolve their housing
situation before becoming homeless and too many cases where households lose
contact with services. We need to have the tools available to resolve homelessness
rapidly and effectively and the processes in place to monitor and support people
during a time of insecurity.

By the end of this strategy period we are seeking to:

e Explore opportunities to introduce mediation services for those asked to leave
by family/friends

e Review private rented sector support offer for tenants

e Re-establish landlord engagement projects to promote joint working and take
up of local accreditation scheme(s)

e Explore options for step down/move on accommodation for care leavers,
those released from hospital, ex-offenders

e Identify opportunities for network of safe disbursed accommodation for those
at risk of domestic abuse

¢ Identify a nominated Single Point Of Contact (SPOC) within the housing
department to work with key referral partners

e Explore a regional approach to prison release protocols and pre-release
assessments

190



e Develop multi-agency sub-regional approach to domestic abuse
¢ |dentify pathways into appropriate support for veterans in relation to issues
such as PTSD

Priority Three: reduce demand and improve the quality of emergency accommodation
WHY? Staying in temporary accommodation is stressful and takes people away from
employment, schools and support networks at an already difficult time. The cost of
providing temporary accommodation is increasing and takes valuable funding away
from the delivery of other homeless services. We need to ensure that when we
provide emergency accommodation it is for as short a time as possible and provides
a stable and supportive base that allows people to move forward with their lives.

By the end of this strategy period we are seeking to:

e Undertake a modelling exercise identify our emergency accommodation
needs

e Develop alternative provision to bed and breakfast accommodation

e Evaluate and re-commission the floating support service for those in
emergency accommodation

e Introduce a charging policy for emergency accommodation

Priority Four: better meeting the needs of people with complex needs

WHY? Households with complex needs face some of the greatest challenges and
resolving their housing often requires a sharing understanding and collaborative
approach across several agencies. These households are also those most likely to
return into homeless services due to difficulties in sustaining accommodation. We
need to develop a more innovative approach to resolving homelessness for these
households that will improve outcomes and free up resources.

By the end of this strategy period we are seeking to:

e Work with Leicestershire County Council to help roll out a homeless mental
health service in the District

e Develop more specialist accommodation for people with mental health issues

e Agreeing a definition of “complex” cases and ensuring cases and individuals
are identified and outcomes monitored.

¢ Developing a multi-agency approach to housing complex cases where
housing options are limited due to support needs or past behaviour

Priority Five: End Rough Sleeping

WHY? No one should have to suffer living a life deprived of shelter, warmth and
basic necessities. Although rough sleeping numbers in the District are low the impact
on the individuals is high. Tackling rough sleeping requires a dedicated and
thoughtful response in order to engage and support people with often complex
reasons for ending up sleeping rough.

By the end of this strategy period, we are seeking to:

191



Explore opportunities for closer working between City and County

Increase off the street accommodation options for rough sleepers

Promote the streetlink service so that the public are able to effectively report
potential rough sleepers

192



How we will Measure Success

Our strategy covers a period of five years. It is hard to fully predict the changes that
will occur over this time period so we will need to be flexible in our approach to the
delivery of the Strategy and be able to adapt and change depending on the
circumstances. We will continue to be open to new opportunities wherever they help
us to meet the priorities of the Strategy which we believe provide the correct long-
term direction for tackling homelessness.

Partnership working is key and the sub-regional homelessness delivery group as
well as our local Homeless Prevention Partnership (HPP) will be key to ensuring the
right agencies are involved in moving services forward.

To make sure that the delivery of our strategy is monitored and scrutinised, and that
work is progressing as it should a regular update will be provided to the HPP
alongside an update on the key homeless data to demonstrate the impact of our
activity. The Strategy actions will also be reviewed annually to ensure they are still
relevant and appropriate with input from the HPP.

193



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8.

0’@‘0
)
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL ,.o ®
North We hst
COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE — THURSDAY, 28 1 |
SEPTEMBER 2023 L@|C€5ter5 ;Ire
Title of Report REVIEW OF HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY TO

ACCEPT ANY PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE HOUSING
ALLOCATIONS POLICY AS A RESULT OF A REVIEW

AND CONSULTATION
Presented by Andy Barton

Strategic Director of Communities
Background Papers none Public Report: Yes
Financial Implications There are no direct financial implications arising from the

review of the Policy. However, the financial implications will
need to be assessed on a regular basis and will need to be
considered as part of the Budget and Medium Term Financial
Plan each year.

Signed off by the Section 151 Officer: Yes

Legal Implications —The Council’s Legal Team have reviewed the report and
the policy

Signed off by the Monitoring Officer: Yes

Staffing and Corporate None directly
Implications

Signed off by the Head of Paid Service: Yes

Purpose of Report To introduce the proposed revised housing allocations policy
to the Scrutiny Committee and seek its comments

Recommendations THAT COMMUNITY SCRUTINY PROVIDE COMMENTS ON
THE DRAFT HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY AHEAD
OF ITS CONSIDERATION BY CABINET ON 12™
DECEMBER 2023.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1  Alllocal housing authorities are required to set up and maintain an allocations scheme
under Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996

1.2  The Council’s allocations policy sets out amongst other things who is allowed to join

the housing register as well the relative priority, applicants will receive for housing and
how allocations will be made.

195



13

14

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

The policy applies to lettings made to Council Housing as well as Registered Provider
properties over which the Council has nomination rights.

Currently there are around 900 households on the housing register and around 350
homes are let each year.

CONSULTATION

The revised policy has been developed in consultation with a range of key partners
and stakeholders. Consultation and engagement has included:
e An online public survey promoted to current and recent service users of the
housing choices service
e A presentation to the Tenants and Leaseholders Consultation Forum
e A member workshop held on 29" August 2023
e A workshop with allocations staff of partner registered providers held on 4™
September 2023

Feedback across all of these activities has fed into the revised policy.

Following on from consideration by Scrutiny Committee and subject to the feedback
received, the policy will be shared with key stakeholders and delivery partners prior to
consideration by Cabinet at its meeting on 12" December.

KEY CHANGES

The revised policy is broadly similar to the current policy that is currently in place. The
most significant change that impacts on the banding of applications is in relation to
how it is proposed homeless households are treated who will be afforded a higher
priority at an earlier stage in their homelessness application. It is expected this will
reduce the number of homeless households needing to access emergency
accommodation and increase the number of cases where homelessness is prevented
(see section 7.26 onwards.) This change supports the emerging priorities of the
updated homelessness strategy. The policy also introduces a formal procedure for
making direct matches to certain homeless households who do not secure alternative
accommodation through the bidding process. This approach reflects current advice
from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) advisors
and supports the policy objective of reducing the number of households in temporary
accommodation.

The revised policy also renames the housing needs bands replacing priority and high
with critical and urgent. It is felt these better reflect the importance of resolving a
housing situation in as short a period of time as possible and so reinforces the
expectation that applicants in these bands bid on all properties suitable for them.

Quialification for the register has also been reviewed and this has led to updated
income and savings thresholds and extended the qualifying period for a local
connection as a result of residence in the district from six months to twelve. This
reflects the feedback from the consultation and aligns the Council more closely with
near neighbours. Income levels have reduced for single people and couples and
increased slightly for families. The savings threshold for all groups has reduced.

196



4.0

4.1

POST IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW

It is acknowledged that the changes in relation to homeless applicants are a significant
change to the current approach. There will be ongoing monitoring of the implications of
the changes once they have been adopted to ensure that all implications of the change

are understood.

Policies and other considerations, as appropriate

Council Priorities:

Local people live in high quality, affordable homes

Policy Considerations:

none

Safeguarding:

The policy does not directly impact on safeguarding
but does allow for preference to be given to those
who need to move for safeguarding reasons

Equalities/Diversity:

An Equality Impact Assessment has been
undertaken and no adverse impacts on protected
groups have been identified

Customer Impact:

This policy has a direct impact on service users as
it identifies how social housing will be allocated in
the district. It has been framed to ensure those in
greatest need are best placed to access social
housing

Economic and Social Impact:

The policy is framed to assist people who need to
move for economic reasons. Local connection
considers those who work in the district

Environment, Climate Change and
zero carbon:

None directly although the policy can be used to
transfer existing social tenants to allow upgrade
work to take place more cost effectively on their
current home.

Consultation/Community

The revised policy has been developed in

Engagement: consultation with a range of key partners and
stakeholders. Consultation and engagement has
included

e An online public survey promoted to current
and recent service users of the housing
choices service

e A presentation to the Tenants and
Leasholders Consultation Forum

¢ A member workshop

e A workshop with allocations staff of partner
registered providers

Risks: no direct risks identified

Officer Contact

David Scruton
Housing Strategy and Systems Team Manager
david.scruton@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

197



mailto:elizabeth.warhurst@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



oo
o’
I\Iortiﬁ West

Leicestershire
District 'Coilin l

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

ALLOCATIONS & LETTINGS

POLICY

Autumn 2023

North West Leicestershire District Council
PO Box 11051

Coalville

LE67 OFW

Tel: 01530 454545

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

199



Contents

oo 18 o 1o o PR 4
Objectives of North West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme............. 4
T RS Fo LAY O 0] 1 (= SRR 5
Reas0NabIe PreferenCe...... oo 5
Additional PreferenCe .......ooovviiiiiiii e 6
EQUAl OPPOITUNITIES ....ciiiiiiiiiieeiiiieeeee ettt 6
D= 1= W o (0] (=T 1 o TR 6

1. The HOUSING REQISIEN ... ..ci i e e e e e e e e e eaaees 7
Joining the NhoUSING rEQISTET ......cooeeeeeeee e 7
Applicants ResSpoNSIDIlItIES ...........oooviiiiiiiiieee 8
Review of the hOUSING FEQISTEN .........cviiiiiii e e 9

2. Eligibility and qualifiCation..................uuuuiiiiiiiiiiii s 9
o 1 o1 Y2 9
(@ U E=1 [1[oF=1 110 o I PSSP 10

3. Home Seekers underthe age of 18............ouviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 14

4. RIGNT T0 REVIEBW ... 15

5. Home Seekers with Mobility Needs.........ccccooeeiiiiiiiiiiii e, 17

6. Household ENGIDIItY .........coooriri e 18
Household Definitions - GUIdANCE .........oiiiiiiiiieeeiiee e 18
Supported, Sheltered Housing and EXtra Care ..............ceeeeieeeeeiieviiiiiie e, 20
Defining Bedroom ReqUIFEMENLS .........oiiiiiiiiiiiiiice e 20
Medical need for an extra bedroOm ...........coovviiiiiiiiii e 21

7. AsSesSINg HOUSING NEE .........uuuiiiiieiieeeee e e e 22
Band 1 — Critical HOUSING NEEA ..........uuiiiiiiiieeeee e 23
Band 2 — Urgent HOUSING NEEM .........coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 24
Band 3 — Medium HouSINg NEEd..........cooiiiiiiiiiicee e e 26
Band 4 - Low HOUSING NEEA ........oooiiiiiiiie e 29
Band 5 - Potential HOuSING NEEd ..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 30
HOmMeEleSS HOUSENOIAS ........oiiiieee e 30
Moving between housing need bandsS..........c.oouiiiiiiiiiii i 31
Additional Preference for Armed Forces and former service personnel ................ 32

8. AAVErtiSING PrOPEITIES ...t 33

9 Local Lettings POIICIES ......cccuuiiiiiiiie e 33

10. Bidding for Vacant Properti€S..........cuuuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 35

12.  DIfficult tO 16t Properties......ccouuiiiiiiii e 37

RS T Y o o] o o I 1S 1 Vo O 41 (= = PPt 37



i @ 11 (=T o To = W o (o] 0 1= o Y 38

LS TN o7 | B (] =T o1 3PS 40
16.  Feedback iNfOrmMation ..........ooouuiiiiiiiiie e 40
17. Agricultural workers and the Rent (Agriculture) Act 1976..........ccccevvveeeeeeennn. 41
18. Definition of Local CONNECHION .......oiiiiiiiiiieiiee e e 42
19.  Complaints ProCeAUIe ...........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 44
Appendix One: Eligibility for properties. ..o e 45
Appendix Two - Affordability Calculations ... 46
(O] o] = Tod D= = 1| LSRR 47

3
201



Introduction

There is a limited supply of affordable housing in North West Leicestershire and an
increasing number of people seeking social housing.

North West Leicestershire District Council aims to allocate the available housing
fairly and objectively following the approach described in this Allocation Policy.

The Allocation Policy works within the legal and regulatory framework governing the
allocation of social housing. This scheme also takes into account local need and
demand as well as local housing conditions.

North West Leicestershire operates a Choice Based Lettings Scheme. This allows
applicants to have as much choice as possible in relation to the options they have to
meet their housing needs. The Choice Based Lettings approach aims to provide
home seekers with information about lettings so they are able to make informed and
realistic choices when seeking housing. There are some circumstances where we
may have to limit choice to meet our statutory obligations, for example in the case of
some homeless households. In these cases the home seeker will, wherever
possible, have first been given an opportunity to resolved their situation through their
own housing choices.

North West Leicestershire District Council has in place agreements with private
registered providers of social housing in the District which allows a wider range of
social housing to be made available via the Council’s Choice Based Lettings
Scheme.

The Allocations and Lettings Policy ensures that those home seekers who are in
urgent housing need are given reasonable preference within the Choice Based
Lettings scheme.

This Allocation Scheme is subject to periodic review to ensure that the allocation of

properties continues to be fair and objective whilst meeting local need and statutory
obligations.

Objectives of North West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme

e To meet the legal requirements for the allocation of affordable housing

e To ensure appropriate levels of priority are afforded to home seekers

e To ensure priority status on the scheme for home seekers with an urgent
housing need

e To offer as much choice to home seekers as is reasonably possible

e To let properties in a fair and transparent way

e To support and assist vulnerable home seekers so that they are able to
actively participate in North West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings
scheme

e To provide feedback to home seekers about homes let through North West
Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme

e To encourage and support sustainable communities and social inclusion

4
202



To ensure home seekers are treated fairly, individually and in accordance with
the commitment to Equality and Diversity.

To make best use of affordable housing, to meet the needs of the local
community.

To ensure that properties are let as quickly as possible

Legislative Context

This Allocation Scheme is governed by the following legislation and guidance,
subject to the issue of any further guidance by the Secretary of State:

Housing Act 1996 (as amended)

Housing Act 2004, s223 Allocation of housing accommodation by local
authorities

Localism Act 2011 (Parts 6 and 7)

The Allocation of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (England)
Regulations 2006

The Allocation of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2012

Homelessness Code of Guidance for Councils (July 2006)

Draft Homelessness Code of Guidance for Local Authorities (October 2017)
The Homelessness (Suitability of Accommodation) (England) Order 2012
Allocation of accommodation: guidance for local housing authorities in
England, 2012

The Allocation of Housing (Qualification Criteria for Armed Forces Personnel)
(England) Regulations 2012

The Housing Act 1996 (Additional Preference for Armed Forces) (England)
Regulations 2012

Allocation of accommodation: guidance for local housing authorities in
England (Oct 2013)

The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017

Reasonable Preference

Under section 166A of the Housing Act 1996 the Council is required to give
reasonable preference to the following categories of person:

Homeless people as defined by Part VII of the 1996 Housing Act, including
people who are intentionally homeless and those who are not in priority need
People who are owed a duty under section 190(2), 193(2) or 195(2) of the
1996 Act (or under section 65(2) or 68(2) of the Housing Act 1985) or who are
occupying accommodation secured by any housing authority under s192(3)
People occupying insanitary or overcrowded housing or otherwise living in
unsatisfactory housing conditions

People who need to move on medical or welfare grounds, including grounds
relating to disability

People who need to move to a particular locality in the housing authority area,
where failure to meet that need would cause hardship (to themselves or
others)

5
203



Additional Preference

Under Section 166A (3) of the Housing Act 1996, the Council can give additional
preference to applicants that fall within the reasonable preference categories and
have urgent housing needs. This means the Council can decide which applicants
within a particular category should be given the greatest priority for housing, and
which groups should be prioritised over others.

Additionally the Council must give additional preference for members of the Armed
and Reserve Forces who fall into a reasonable reference category and have urgent
housing needs. The preference rule applied can be found in section 7.43.

Urgent housing needs are considered to include: those who need to move urgently
because of a life threatening iliness or sudden disability; families in severe
overcrowding which poses a serious health hazard ; those who are homeless and
require urgent re-housing as a result of violence or threats of violence, including
intimidated witnesses, and those escaping serious anti-social behaviour or domestic
violence

Equal Opportunities

North West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme promotes equal
opportunities in the services it provides. Our aim is to implement and maintain services
which ensure that no potential, or current home seeker is treated less favourably on
the grounds of gender, marital status, race, nationality, ethnic or national origin, colour,
disability, age or sexual orientation nor is disadvantaged by the application of a rule,
condition, or requirement, which has a discriminatory effect which cannot be justified
by law.

Help and assistance is available to ensure that all households are able to access North
West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme. Information can be translated
or made available in large print, or other formats. North West Leicestershire’s Choice
Based Lettings scheme seeks to ensure that it is accessible to all home seekers by
ensuring that individuals who may have difficulty in participating in the scheme receive
the help and assistance they require. The Housing Choices Team will assist those
who do not have a family member, friend, or advocate who can do this on their behalf.

North West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme operates in accordance
with the Council’s Equality and Diversity Policy.

Data Protection

Home seekers have the right to information on all decisions made about the facts of
their application. Applicants have the right to see the information held about them, and
receive a copy of information held on computer, or on paper file. This is a “subject
access request” for which the Council charges a reasonable administration fee.

Information held by North West Leicestershire’s Housing Advice Team about home
seekers will only be used in connection with their application for housing. Information

6
204



will be held and used in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 and any
subsequent legislation. In normal circumstances, this information is only to be
disclosed to partner Registered Providers or other landlords who may be able to offer
accommodation. This means that the information and the fact that a home seeker has
applied for housing, will not normally be passed onto any third parties without the home
seeker’s prior consent, or in exceptional circumstances where disclosure without
consent is warranted. These circumstances are defined below:

e Where there are over-riding legal, social, or public interest considerations,
e.g. there is a risk of serious harm to the person themselves or others if the
information is not disclosed.

e Where information is required by the police as part of a criminal
investigation.

e Where information is required by an authority for the assessment or
collection of any tax or duty of a similar nature

e Where, because the Council is under a duty to protect the public funds it
handles, it may need to use the information provided by home seekers, to
prevent and detect fraud. (The information may also be shared for the same
purposes with other organisations that handle public funds).

¢ The information may also be used for statistical purposes, which means we
may pass anonymised information, in confidence, to the relevant
government department.

There may be circumstances that require a third party to be contacted for information
in order to verify the circumstances of an applicant for registration or banding
purposes. Home Seekers will be asked for permission for this contact to be made
however they should be aware that not granting permission may mean the Council is
unable to complete assessment of their housing application. In these circumstances
the relevant third party will by default be aware that a housing application has been
submitted.

1. The Housing Register

1.1  North West Leicestershire District Council maintains a register of home seekers
who wish to be accommodated by the Council and/or Registered Providers
operating in the North West Leicestershire District. This register is not “open,”
and this policy sets out the criteria for admission onto the register as well as
how priority will be granted between applicants.

1.2  Properties that become available to let will normally only be allocated to home
seekers on the housing register.

Joining the housing reqgister

1.3  Subject to the eligibility and qualification rules set in Section 2, any person over
the age of 16 can apply to join the housing register. There are special provisions
for 16 and 17 year olds which are detailed in Section 3 of this policy.

1.4  Every home seeker must complete an on-line registration form. The information
given on the form must be correct. North West Leicestershire District Council

7
205



15

1.6

1.7

reserve the right to disqualify any home seeker from joining the register,
withdraw any offer of a tenancy or assist the landlord to recover possession of
an existing tenancy if they have knowingly given false information.

Home seekers must provide proof to support their application; for example, they
will be asked to provide proof of identity, income, benefits, access rights to
children and levels of capital. The application form will clearly set out what
proofs are required

North West Leicestershire’s Housing Choices Team will make any other
enquiries as they deem necessary in order to assess the application. This may
involve contacting previous landlords, health or medical advisors, police, or
other relevant agencies.

Home seekers must provide a mailing address to which correspondence can
be sent. The address can be the home seeker’s home address or an alternative
such as that of a family member or friend.

Applicants Responsibilities

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

Supplying Information

e Applicants are responsible for giving full and accurate details on all forms
and correspondence and in all other communications about their application
for housing.

e Applicants must inform the Council of any change in circumstances straight
away, especially those which may affect their needs for re-housing

e Applicants should reply to any correspondence/requests from the Council or
Registered Provider which needs a reply, within the specified timescales

e Applicants who are made an offer should let the Council or Registered
Provider know their decision about whether to accept it within the timescale
specified

e Ifinformation is not supplied, the Council or Registered Provider may cancel
an application, defer it until the information is provided, or withdraw an offer
of housing

Deliberately Worsening Circumstances

Home seekers have a responsibility not to deliberately worsen their
circumstances in order to progress to a higher band by an action or inaction.
They have the responsibility to make best use of the accommodation they
have available to them and will be assessed as if this is the case.

Home seekers should not deliberately deprive themselves of capital or assets
in order to gain access to the housing register. This will be treated as a
deliberate worsening of circumstances.

Should the home seeker be found to have deliberately worsened their

circumstances then they will be placed in the low band for a period of 12 months
as per the criteria set out in section 7.23

8
206



Review of the housing register

1.12

1.13

1.14

2.1

2.2

2.3

North West Leicestershire District Council will aim to undertake a 12 month
rolling review of the housing register. Home seekers will be contacted and
asked to confirm whether they wish to remain on the register and whether their
circumstances have changed.

Home seekers who do not respond to the review as requested will have their
application cancelled. Under normal circumstances an application can be
reinstated if the applicant makes contact within three months of the cancellation
date.

The decision to reinstate an application more than three months after it is
cancelled will be at the Council’s discretion. Where an application is not
reinstated the applicant may submit a fresh application and this will generate a
new application date.

Eligibility and qualification

In considering housing register applications, North West Leicestershire District
Council will assess:

Eligibility - whether a home seeker is eligible for an allocation of
accommodation because they meet national, legal eligibility criteria, and
Quialification — whether a home seeker meets the local criteria for accessing
social housing, as described in this policy in sections 2.4 -2.14

Only applicants who are eligible for housing and who qualify for an allocation
of housing will be included on the Council’s housing register and considered
for offers of accommodation. Applicants who are not eligible or do not qualify
for housing will not be included on the housing register.

If an applicant has already been included on the housing register and is found
to no longer be eligible for housing, or to no longer qualify for housing, they will
be removed from the housing register and notified.. Home seekers will have the
opportunity to use the review procedure if they feel this decision is incorrect
(see section 4).

Eligibility

2.4

Eligibility will be assessed in accordance with the regulations. Namely, whether
a home seeker is eligible to join the housing register or, may not be allocated
accommodation under Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996 S.160ZA because they
are persons from abroad who are subject to immigration control or they are a
person from abroad, who although not subject to immigration control, are to be
treated as ineligible for an allocation of accommodation. Reference will be made
to the regulations setting out which classes of persons from abroad are eligible

9
207



2.5

or ineligible for an allocation of accommodation which are currently contained
in the Allocation of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (England)
Regulations 2006 (SI2006 No. 1294) and amendment regulations in respect of
regulations 4 and 6. However if these regulations are subsequently superseded
this policy will by default apply those currently in force.

North West Leicestershire District Council reserves the right to seek
independent advice and assistance to resolve the issue of eligibility.

Qualification

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

The following circumstances will exclude an applicant from the housing
register.

Home seekers with no local connection to North West Leicestershire as
set out in section 18— other than in exceptional circumstances, home seekers
from outside the district who have no local connection to the district, will not
qualify for social housing. The Council may from time to time allow access to
the housing register to applicants without a local connection on the basis that
they are only entitled to receive offers on hard to let properties. This is entirely
at the Council’s discretion.

Home seekers with the financial means to meet their own housing need —
these home seekers will not qualify for social housing unless they can
demonstrate that they have a need for specialist supported, sheltered or extra
care housing which they cannot purchase or rent on the open market, or, where
the home seeker has a need for wheelchair adapted or other specialist
accommodation and they do not have the financial means available (through
savings, grants or Equity Loan) to adapt their existing property or the property
is not suitable for adaptation and they do not have sufficient resources to secure
alternative accommodation that meets their needs (in these circumstances the
applicant will usually be restricted to bidding on properties that meet these
identified needs.).

Exemptions may be applied where the home seeker only wishes to be
considered for hard to let properties.

The tests applied to assess financial means can be found in Appendix Two.
These will be reviewed annually and amendments if required applied on the 15
January each year

Being a Home Owner is not a barrier to joining the housing register, however.
any offers of accommodation made to a homeowner would be subject to the
applicant demonstrating that the property is affordable and that they would
satisfy the requirement of occupying the home they were allocated as their
main/principal home.

Home seekers who lack the capacity to enter into and sustain a tenancy
agreement — home seekers will not qualify for social housing if it is considered

10
208



2.11

that they lack the mental capacity to enter into a tenancy agreement and the
obligations and conditions attached to that tenancy. Before making a decision
on capacity we will seek representations from professional and other
appropriate agencies. Where a home seeker is considered not to have the
capacity to hold a tenancy we will work with the appropriate agencies to identify
alternative approaches to securing accommodation.

Home seekers considered to be guilty of unacceptable behaviour serious
enough to make them unsuitable as a tenant - Home seekers will not qualify
for social housing if they are considered to be unsuitable to be a tenant. This
must be evidenced and proportionate and take account of the seriousness of
the behaviour, the length of time since occurrence, the situation of the home
seeker at the time of the event(s) and what steps have been taken to prevent
future incidents. Where a home seeker has been found to be intentionally
homeless and they are the perpetrator of unacceptable behaviour they will not
be eligible to join the housing register.

The following are examples but not an exhaustive list of reasons as to why a
home seeker would not qualify for social housing, either at the point of
application or at any time during their time on the housing register.

Behaviour that would give grounds for mandatory possession. For example
anti-social behaviour such as causing nuisance and annoyance to neighbours

Behaviour of the home seeker or a member of the home seeker’s household
which would entitle the landlord to gain an outright possession order

Owing a housing related debt greater than £500 to a Council, registered
provider or private landlord and there is no evidence of willingness to
reduce/repay the debt. Housing debts could include rent arrears, court costs,
temporary accommodation charges, sundry debts such as clearance, damage,
council tax or repayment of rent deposit (this is not an exhaustive list).

i. A willingness to pay will usually be considered as regular
payments made over a 12 week period to reduce the debt as part
of an agreement with the organisation the debt is owed to. Except
in exceptional circumstances all agreed payments over this time
period should be made without fail. To remain on the register the
home seeker will be expected to maintain these payments until
the debt is clear.

ii. In cases of overriding housing need home seekers may be
accepted on to the housing register but placed in low band until
such time as they are able to demonstrate willingness to pay.

In some circumstances where repayment could lead to further
financial hardship a repayment period may be waived. Each case
will be considered on its merits and the Council may take into
account what other measures a homeseeker is taking to address
their financial situation.

11
209



d)

e)

f)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Committing certain criminal offences in or near the home and posing a threat
to neighbours, the community, staff from the Council, the Council’s contractors
or Registered Provider or their contractors

Having been convicted of violence towards a partner or members of the family
Obtaining a tenancy by deception, for example giving false information

When making this decision North West Leicestershire District Council will
consider:-

a) What action a landlord would have taken against the perpetrator of the
unacceptable behaviour.

The behaviour must be serious enough that a Landlord would have been
entitled to an outright possession order under schedule 2 of the Housing
Act 1985 or Schedule 2 of the Housing Act 1988. As an example, cases
relating to noise problems, domestic violence, racial harassment,
intimidation and drug dealing would probably lead to a possession order.
(This is not an exhaustive list)

b) Whether the behaviour is serious enough to make the home seeker
unsuitable as a tenant.

As an example, accrual of rent arrears that have resulted from factors
outside of the home seeker’s control, e.g. delays in housing benefit
payments or liability for a partner’'s debts may not be serious enough to
make the home seeker unsuitable as a tenant.

c) When the unacceptable behaviour took place.

Consideration will be given to the length of time that has elapsed, whether
there has been any change in circumstances and behaviour, and whether
there are any mitigating circumstances to consider. Evidence of the home
seeker working with agencies to mitigate the likelihood of the behaviour
occurring in the future will be taken into consideration.

All three elements of 2.12 above shall be taken into consideration. When
making this decision the Council will consider whether the decision is
reasonable taking into account all relevant factors impacting on the home
seeker and their household.

If a home seeker has previously been disqualified for social housing because
of unacceptable behaviour but now considers that their circumstances have
changed sufficiently they should complete a new housing application. The
home seeker will need to demonstrate that their circumstances have changed
sufficiently that the above no longer applies, for example, that there has been
a sufficient lapse of time since the previous application was submitted and there
is evidence of sustained behavioural change.

12
210



2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

The decision to exclude anyone from the register on the basis that they do not
qualify for social housing rests with the Housing choices Team Leader , and
home seekers will be informed in writing of the reason why their application has
been rejected. They will have the opportunity to appeal against this decision if
they feel it is incorrect (see Section 4).

Home seekers who reapply within a year of securing new social housing- Home
seekers will not normally be allowed onto the housing register if they are an
introductory or starter tenant within the first year of a social tenancy unless this
has been agreed when granting the tenancy or where there has been a
significant change in circumstances that was not foreseeable at the time the
tenancy was granted.

Where an applicant has demonstrated behaviours that make them unsuitable
to be a tenant but would qualify for specialist accommodation or
accommodation with specialist support an applicant may be accepted onto the
register subject to restrictions as to the accommodation they can be offered. In
such circumstances an applicant will be subject to limitations on their availability
to bid through choice based lettings and limited to nominations/allocations
through alternative arrangements. The applicant will be clearly informed of this
at the time of their acceptance onto the register.

All cases will be considered on their merits.

13
211



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Home Seekers under the age of 18

Home seekers must be aged 16 years or over to apply to join the housing
register but those home seekers under the age of 18 may be subject to locally
agreed protocols which will determine the type of property and support services
required for them to be considered for accommodation.

Home seekers aged 16 and 17 looking for social housing in North West
Leicestershire must provide details of a guarantor and/or a person to hold the
tenancy in trust to be allowed onto and remain on the register. The
guarantor/trustee must be a responsible person such as a parent or other close
family member, or a representative from a support agency, such as Social
Services.

Subject to 3.4 home seekers aged 16 and 17 will be assessed in the same way
as all other home seekers joining the housing register.

When an application is received from a homeless home seeker aged 16 or 17,
North West Leicestershire District Council will in the first instance, seek to
establish if accommodation should be provided under Section 20 of the
Children Act 1989 and will request that Children and Young People’s Services
undertake a “child in need” assessment. If it is established that the child is not
a “child in need” and other suitable accommodation cannot be secured through
the Council’'s Homelessness Duties, the application will be assessed in the
same way as all other home seekers joining the housing register

When an application is received from a lone parent under the age of 18, North
West Leicestershire District Council will seek to carry out a joint assessment of
needs and support with Social Services. The assessment will only be
undertaken after the home seeker has given their consent.

Although under 18s are allowed on the housing register it is at each landlord’s
discretion if, and under which circumstances, they will rehouse home seekers
under 18.

Six months before an young persons 18" birthday the Council will consider an
application for accommodation from someone without a guarantor/trustee as
per 3.2 but they may be overlooked for accommodation until their 18" birthday.
All other qualification criteria will still apply.

14
212



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Right to Review

Section 166A(9) of the 1996 Act includes a requirement for an allocation
scheme to give home seekers a right to review a decision on qualification in
s.160AZ(9), and to be informed of the decision on the review and the grounds
for it. This is in addition to the existing right to review a decision on eligibility.

By virtue of s.160ZA (9) and (10) the Council must notify a home seeker in
writing of any decision that he or she:

e is ineligible for an allocation of accommodation under s.160ZA (2) or
(4), or

e is not a qualifying person under s.160ZA (7)

The notification will give clear grounds for the decision based on the relevant
facts of the case. Section 160ZA(10) provides that, where a notification is not
received by the home seeker, it can be treated as having been given to him or
her, if it is made available at the Council’s office for a reasonable period.

If the Council considers that a home seeker may have difficulty in understanding
the implications of a decision on ineligibility or disqualification, the Housing
Choices Team will arrange for the information to be explained verbally in
addition to providing a written notice.

Home seekers also have the right, on request, to be informed of any decision
about the facts of their case which has been, or is likely to be, taken into account
in considering whether to make an allocation to them (s.166A(9)(b)).

If a home seeker is successfully matched for a property but is refused the offer
of accommodation by the Council or one of the Registered Provider partners,
they should ask for a review of the decision. The Council and each partner
Registered Provider operate their own appeals process. A member of the North
West Leicestershire Housing Choices Team will be able to provide the home
seeker with a copy of the relevant review procedure.

Under s.166A(9)(c) home seekers have the right to request a review of any of
the decisions mentioned in paragraphs 4.2, 4.5 and 4.6 above and to be
informed of the decision of the review and the grounds for it. Home seekers
wanting to exercise a right to review, or someone appointed by them to act on
their behalf, should submit a request, preferably in writing within 21 days of the
original decision letter to:

Housing Choices Team Leader

North West Leicestershire District Council
PO Box 11051

Coalville

LE67 OFW

15
213



4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

Requests should indicate the reasons why a request for a review is being
submitted and any points that the authority is requested to take into account,
and the details of any representative they have appointed. Where a home
seeker is unable to provide a written submission, verbal representations will
also be accepted.

The officer considering the review will not have been involved in the original
decision. The review will take account of the allocation scheme, the relevant
legislation and guidance, any information provided by the home seeker or
his/her representative and any other relevant circumstances.

Reviews will be completed within 15 working days of the application being
received.

If the home seeker is not satisfied with the outcome of the review they can ask
for their case to be considered by a more senior officer.. A request for a second
tier review should be made within 15 working days of the date on the review
decision letter.

Any reviewing officer will not have been involved previously in the case and will
normally carry out the further review within 40 working days of the request. A
written notification of the decision, including grounds for the decision, will be
sent to the home seeker.

If the home seeker is not satisfied with the outcome of the second tier review,
he/she may challenge the decision in the High Court on a point of law. The
home seeker has 3 months from the date of the decision letter to apply.

All correspondence will be sent to the mailing or email address on the home
seeker’s application as per their correspondence preference.

16
214



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Home Seekers with Mobility Needs

If a home seeker indicates on their registration form that they have a mobility
need, then they will be asked to complete a set of questions to determine the,
the type of property that would be suitable and any adaptation that would be
required to the property.

The mobility needs assessment will be used to assess what the home seekers
housing needs are and what property types they will have access to and
preference for. Where necessary professional help will be sought in order to
accurately assess how the individual’s mobility issue affects their housing need.

North West Leicestershire District Council will advertise vacancies as they
become available. This includes those properties that are suitable for the needs
of home seekers with mobility problems, or those that have been specially
adapted in some way. North West Leicestershire District Council will include
information on the level of adaptations and/or accessibility features within the
property advertisement.

Properties that are suitable for home seekers with mobility problems will be
clearly advertised with details of any adaptations or special facilities to allow
home seekers to bid for properties that will meet their needs.

The Council will aim to make best use of the available housing by matching
property characteristics to a household’s needs and circumstances.

Where preference is to given to home seekers with a mobility need such as in
the case of level access properties then this will be clearly stated on the advert.

Where a property is particularly suitable to meet a specific mobility need or
could be easily adapted to do so, the decision may be taken to allocate the
property through a management allocation (according to the process described
in section 11). Home seekers will be selected on the basis of their mobility
needs assessment. Management allocations will be restricted to situations
where a home seeker has very specific needs which are unlikely to be met
through the choice based system.

Where a home seeker is unsure as to whether a property would meet their
housing need or whether it might be suitable for adaptations they should contact
the landlord of the property to inform their decision to bid before the bidding
cycle ends.

17
215



6.1

Household Eligibility

Individual landlords have some discretion to set their own eligibility criteria.
These will be set out clearly within the advert. By logging in to the Choice Based
Lettings system applicants will see the current adverts they are eligible for. If a
home seeker thinks that they are unable to bid for properties they believe they
should be eligible for, they should contact the Housing Choice Team within the
relevant bidding cycle. Where an applicant is bidding for a property that would
result in under occupying in terms of benefit regulations they may be overlooked
on affordability criteria.

Household Definitions - Guidance

6.2

6.3

A household is the group of people that would normally be expected to live
together. It will often comprise people with caring responsibilities such as a
parent, or someone with parental responsibility and children or adults who
have demonstrated a long term commitment to living together whether as a
couple or other family unit. The purpose of the allocations policy is to house
households into suitable accommodation that meets their needs. Moving
another person into an existing home will not automatically make them a
household member and in some circumstances to address housing need they
may be expected to apply for accommodation in their own right. Equally
where an applicant expresses a wish to be rehoused with someone they are
not currently residing with they will be expected to demonstrate the nature of
their long term commitment to living together.

Where a parent has overnight access to their children, an additional bedroom
need may be awarded to allow the children to sleep over. Households falling
into this category must provide evidence that they have access to the children
and provide at least 2 nights of secondary care on a regular basis.

The following conditions apply:

a. This will normally entitle a household to a single additional bedroom
regardless of the number of children to whom the home seeker has
access.

b. A household will not normally be afforded a priority for being a
bedroom short except where the current accommodation is a
bedsit/studio.

c. For the purposes of this section a child is considered to be any young
person under the age of 18.

d. An additional bedroom will only be allowed for a household which
would be overcrowded when additional children are staying following
the rules on bedroom requirements set out in Section 6.14 and 6.15.
Those that could be accommodated within the existing household will
not generate an entitlement to an additional bedroom.

18
216



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

e. In cases of a shared residency agreement including a joint residence
order, the Council reserves the right to determine a primary carer for
housing purposes. Only the primary carer would be entitled to the full
bedroom eligibility for the household. When making this decision the
Council will follow the same decision process as that used for
determining the main responsibility for benefits purposes.

f. Single person households or couples with access to children cannot
normally be considered for properties larger than a 2 bedroom property
irrespective of the number of children they have access to.

g. Individual landlords are able to apply their own policies with regard to
the size or type of properties that will be available to home seekers
awarded an additional bedroom need due to overnight access. The
relevant eligibility criteria will be listed on the property advert.

Accommodation designated for older home seekers will be advertised with a
minimum age criteria dependent upon the landlord’s policy, and properties will
be advertised accordingly, indicating any additional services that are available
(if any). Where joint home seekers are bidding for this type of property, only
one home seeker normally needs to meet the minimum age criteria stated on
the advert.

A single parent household is entitled to the same size accommodation as a two
parent household with the same number of children.

A child must spend a minimum 4 nights per week with the home seeker in order
for them to be classed a permanent resident. Exceptions will be considered, for
example in circumstances where the child resides away from the home seeker
on a temporary basis but their permanent home is with the home seeker.

A home seeker may add a joint applicant to their housing application. Checks
will be made to ensure that joint home seekers added are eligible to join and
become a tenant. The home seeker’s application will be re-assessed based on
the combined circumstances of all household members and they will be notified
of any changes, for example a change in their housing need band.

A home seeker may add additional household members to their application.
Checks will be made to verify their identity, circumstances and confirm their
housing history. Where an adult is added to an application the Council will carry
out checks to confirm that there are no impacts on qualification..

A joint home seeker may wish to be removed from the existing application and
apply separately in their own name. In such circumstances, the home seeker’s
new application will be backdated to the date they joined the original joint
application.

In exceptional circumstances home seekers may be allowed to bid on
properties they would not normally be eligible for. In making this decision North

19
217



West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme will consider the needs
of each household and the needs of each landlord to make best use of their
housing stock.

Supported, Sheltered Housing and Extra Care

6.11

6.12

6.13

Home seekers will need to satisfy the advertised age rules for the scheme
and/or be assessed as having a support need that can be met within
supported or sheltered housing.

Home seekers with assessed support needs will be eligible to bid for
properties where support is provided or in some cases in general needs
accommodation where alternative support arrangements can be put in place.
Where a home seeker has bid for supported accommodation it is expected
that they will engage with this support to ensure they are able to maintain their
tenancy. Home seekers who are allowed onto the housing register because of
a need for sheltered or supported housing who would otherwise not be eligible
for the register will only be allowed to bid for suitable supported
accommodation. The offer of supported accommodation may be subject to a
Social Care Assessment.

In applying this policy it is recognised that there will be circumstances where a
household’s accommodation needs and support needs will need to be met
separately. The priority of this policy is to meet a home seeker’s
accommodation needs. The Housing Choices Team will, where appropriate,
work with relevant agencies to help a home seeker meet their support needs.

Defining Bedroom Reguirements

6.14

6.15

The Council’s policy on bedroom need is based on the Housing Benefit rules
on bedroom eligibility. This is to ensure that issues of affordability are avoided.

The following rules are used to determine the minimum size of accommodation
needed by a household:-

A separate bedroom is normally needed for each of the following:

Every adult couple or single parent

Any other person aged 16 years or over

Any two children aged under 16 years of the same sex
Any two children aged under 10 years regardless of sex
Any other child

Normally to be included in the household a person needs to be living with you
all the time. If someone is away from home, they still count as living with you if:

e they intend to return to live with you

e you haven't sublet their room

e if they're in the UK, they aren't likely to be away for more than 13
weeks

20
218



e if they're outside the UK, they aren't likely to be away for more than
4 weeks

If they're away for up to a year, they can still count as living with you if they
both:

e intend to come home
e are in hospital, or away studying or training are an adult child who is
serving away from home in the Armed Forces

Medical need for an extra bedroom

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

A additional bedroom may be awarded in the following circumstances:

A member of the household has a disability or medical reason that means they
are unable to share a bedroom. Behavioral issues can be included as long as
they can be evidenced.

A home seeker has a non-resident carer (or group of carers) providing regular
overnight care to themselves or a disabled household member

When considering whether an extra bedroom is needed the Council will take
into consideration:

e Whether the household receives or would be likely to receive an additional
bedroom entitlement for housing costs purposes as part of a benefit claim

e Proof of need and receipt of overnight care

e Any assessment made by a medical or care professional that supports the
fact the person can’t share a bedroom

In assessing any bedroom shortage in a household’s existing accommodation,
the best fit according to these rules will be taken, even if that is different to the
pattern of occupation of the existing accommodation.

Rooms that would normally be expected to be used as a bedroom but are in
use for other purposes will also be included in the calculation. An exception will
be where a home seeker does not have sole occupancy of the property and
does not have control over the use of the rooms.

Home seekers awarded preference based on having a bedroom shortage or
surplus may be restricted from bidding for a property of the same bedroom size
as currently occupied. Where a household in these circumstances wishes to
bid for a property of the same size they will have their banding amended as
though they were adequately housed.

Large families (i.e. those with five or more children) may be given additional
priority over smaller households for larger properties such as those with four or
more bedrooms.

21
219



6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Foster carers are entitled to an additional bedroom as long as they have
fostered a child or become an approved carer in the last 12 months. Prospective
foster carers will be considered, on evidence that Children’s Services will
approve the home seeker as a foster carer subject to availability of suitable size
accommodation

For the purposes of defining bedroom requirements, an unborn child will count
as a child from within 6 months of the expected date of delivery. This will be
calculated by taking the estimated due date provided by the health service
rolled back by 6 calendar months. Home seekers are required to provide proof
of birth within 6 months to retain their bedroom entitlement. Landlords retain
the right to withdrawn an offer should the property be unaffordable to the home
seeker at the time of letting.

The same approach as detailed in section 6.22 above will be taken 6 months
before each household member’s birthday with regard to calculating bedroom
eligibility.

A bedsit/studio flat will be deemed as having one bedroom suitable for single
occupancy for eligibility and overcrowding purposes and so a single person
living in a bedsit with no other issues will be placed in the low or potential band
whereas a couple in the same circumstances will be deemed one bedroom
short.

Assessing Housing Need

Whilst offering choice, North West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings
scheme must take into consideration the housing needs of each home seeker
and their household to allow those home seekers in greatest need to be given
greatest preference.

We will consider and assess the housing needs of each household. All home
seekers who are eligible to join the housing register will be allocated one of
five housing need bands by the Housing Choices Team, determined in
accordance with their verified housing need. The five bands are as follows

Critical Housing Need (highest)
Urgent Housing Need

Medium Housing Need

Low Housing Need

Potential Housing Need (lowest)

Home seekers must notify North West Leicestershire District Council
immediately of any change in their housing circumstances. The Council may
need to undertake further enquiries before reassessing the application. A home
seeker’'s application may move from one housing need band to another
following the reassessment.

If a home seeker feels that their application has been assessed incorrectly, they
have a right to request a review of the decision (see section 4).

22
220



7.5

Home seekers will normally be placed in the highest housing need category
they qualify for except in the case of Home seekers who fall into the categories
outlined in 9.7 or who have been allowed onto the register without a local
connection under 9.6. Home seekers to whom the Council has accepted a duty
under the homelessness legislation will be dealt with as set out in section 7.26.
This approach compliments the band categories as set out below.

Band 1 — Critical Housing Need

7.6

7.7

7.8

Home seekers who have been assessed as having an emergency need to
move (see 9.27 onwards) will be placed in the critical housing need band.
Home seekers can remain in the critical housing need band for a period of up
to 8 weeks. If no suitable properties have become available during the 8 week
period, or the home seeker has not been successful in their search for
accommodation their application will be reviewed. In exceptional circumstances
home seekers may be granted an extension, the length of which will be
determined by the Housing Choices Team Leader.

Home seekers in the critical housing need band retain the right to bid for
properties of their choice. However, if they fail to use all of their opportunities to
bid in any cycle within the critical period the Housing Choices Team reserves
the right to place bids for the home seeker on suitable properties that meet their
housing need. The time by which the Home Seeker is expected to have used
their bids will be agreed in advance with the Home Seeker. Home seekers will
be expected to place bids on all suitable properties and consider all offers of
suitable accommodation. Failure to bid for suitable properties or refusal of an
offer of suitable accommodation may result in the priority not being renewed at
the end of the 8 week period. Furthermore at the end of the 8 week period they
may be considered to have deliberately worsened their own circumstances and
placed in a lower band.

Critical need to move will be recognised in the case of:-

a) Emergency Welfare need — circumstances could include (this is not an
exhaustive list)

¢ Home seekers who are subject to severe harassment, threats of
violence or actual violence, or threats of physical, emotional, or sexual
abuse.

e Home seekers living in a property where the conditions are classed as
unsafe or risk of imminent harm that cannot be remedied within a
reasonable time (not resulting from damage caused by the home
seeker).

23
221



Home seekers living in a property that is statutorily overcrowded

Young people leaving Care. The home seeker will have been through
their housing options with the Council and all other options will have
been exhausted.

b) Emergency Medical need — circumstances could include a home seeker
with a progressive or chronic medical condition combined with other
difficulties such as the need for adapted accommodation or the inability to
be discharged from hospital to their current accommodation.

c) Complex Housing Needs- Would include a number of high need factors
which taken together create an urgent need to move. This could be, for
example, a combination of severe physical and learning disabilities
combined with stress caused by harassment.

d) Management need — circumstances could include (this is not an exhaustive

list)

Tenants needing an emergency transfer because their current property
is in need of urgent repair (includes demolition)

Those succeeding to a tenancy that is not suitable to their needs and
who have lived in the property for at least the last 12 months

Home seekers who have no right in law to remain in their current Council
or Registered Provider accommodation, i.e. they have no right of
succession but the home seeker has lived in the property for at least the
last 12 months.

Tenants occupying a wheelchair adapted property they no longer need
which is required for another home seeker

Other urgent need to move

e) Displaced agricultural workers - who qualify for assistance under the Rent
(Ag) Act 1976

Band 2 — Urgent Housing Need

7.9

Two or more needs from the following Medium housing need band
sections - A home seeker will be assessed as Urgent need if the home
seeker has been assessed as having two or more needs from the following
sections of the Medium housing need band AND these needs do not have the
same underlying cause, for example where damp could be considered poor
housing conditions but also is likely to lead to medical issues. No more than
one factor to be taken from each of the following sections:

24
222



7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

Poor housing conditions
Medical need to move
Welfare need to move
Overcrowded Housing

Please note that insecure accommodation is not included in the list above.

Home seekers where there is overcrowding by two or more bedrooms
short of the assessed need - (the home seeker would not normally be
considered eligible to bid for the same size property as currently occupied
unless their banding is altered to reflect that fact).

A home seeker who is living in supported accommodation and the
Council has a move on agreement with the housing provider and their key
worker and the Council has agreed that independent accommodation would
now be appropriate. The Council may require the key worker to provide a “ready
to move assessment,” to support their recommendation.

A home seeker who is living in Residential Care type accommodation
where their current needs no longer require such accommodation and all
necessary agencies are in agreement that independent accommodation could
be suitable with necessary support and such support will be available.

Social Tenants within the Local Authority area who are under-occupying
a home which is in high demand from other home seekers and/or where
there is assistance available from a local Tenants’ Incentive Scheme - (the
home seeker would not be considered eligible to bid for the same size property
as currently occupied).

Home seekers who require adaptations that cannot be economically
and/or technically achieved in their existing accommodation. Home
seekers who require adaptations beyond level access accommodation where
this cannot be economically and/or technically achieved in their existing
accommodation, or that fall outside of the policy of their landlord and/or the DFG
criteria, will be placed in the Urgent Band. In some circumstances such home
seekers will be identified for a direct match to accommodation which is adapted
or particularly suitable for the appropriate adaptations.

Home seekers in the Urgent housing need band can remain in this band for up
to 26 weeks. If no suitable properties become available during the period, or
the home seeker has not been successful in their search for accommodation,
their application will be reviewed. In exceptional circumstances, home seekers
can be granted an extension up to a further 16 weeks to remain in the Urgent
band. The Housing Choices Team Leader will determine the length of any
extension, taking into account a range of factors such as the previous
availability of suitable properties and the home seeker’s bidding history.

25
223



7.16

7.17

Home seekers in the Urgent housing need band retain the right to respond to
properties of their choice. Home seekers will be expected to consider all
suitable properties. Failure to bid for suitable properties or refusal of an offer of
suitable accommodation will be taken into account if the application is reviewed
at the end of the 6 month period. If suitable accommodation had been available
within this period the applicant may be considered as having deliberately
worsened their own circumstances and placed in low band.

Any applicant that does not have their band extended will be provided with an
explanation of why the decision has been made including which properties they
would have been expected to bid for. They will be able to request a review of
the decision by writing to the Housing Choices Team Leader.

Home seekers who have been given preference due to need for a different
sized property may be restricted to bid on properties that meet their
needs. Preference will not be applied to home seekers who bid on
properties of the same size.

Band 3 — Medium Housing Need

7.18 Poor housing conditions — home seekers living in unsanitary, or

unsatisfactory housing conditions. This could include

a) Housing that is not in a reasonable state of repair - Housing failing on
this point will be those where one or more key building components are
old, in a poor condition and in need of major repair or replacement. This
means external walls, roof, external windows/doors, chimneys, central
heating boilers, gas fires, storage heaters, plumbing and electrics. Where
there is evidence that disrepair is a result of tenant damage, additional
preference will not be awarded. When making this assessment
consideration will be given to individual circumstances, such as whether the
damage was caused by an ex-partner or other former family member.

b) Housing that does not have reasonably modern facilities and services
Dwellings failing on this point are those that lack three or more of the
following:

- areasonably modern kitchen

- a kitchen with adequate space and layout

- areasonably modern bathroom

- an appropriately located bathroom and WC

- adequate noise insulation (where external noise/neighbourhood
noise is a problem)

- adequate size and layout of common areas for blocks of flats

26
224



7.19

7.20

c) Housing that does not provide a reasonable degree of warmth -
Housing that does not have a heating system or other means of heating the
property or the heating system at the property does not work or is in poor
condition will fail this point.

d) Other poor housing conditions - In exceptional circumstances, other poor
housing conditions will be considered where there is evidence that the
housing conditions are having a detrimental effect upon the welfare or
health of the household, an example could be mould and damp within the

property.

[These criteria will be assessed in partnership with Environmental Health
services. Where a home is found lacking in relation to these standards, the
Environmental Health Officer will consider using the powers available to
ensure that the property owner is made to meet acceptable standards. Where
it is expected that the disrepair can be remedied in a reasonable time period
priority may not be given unless there are unnecessary delays].

Medical need to move — home seekers with a medical, disability or mobility
problem. This could include

Verified high medical need where the home seeker’s condition is currently,
directly affected by their accommodation and a move to alternative
accommodation (which they are assessed as eligible to bid for) would resolve
or ease their medical condition. Medical need to move is unlikely to be granted
where the current property is deemed suitable for the home seekers medical
needs.

Level access accommodation is required and there is no prospect of
adaptations to the home seeker’s current property being made within 12
months. Suitable proof will be required i.e. confirmation from a local
Occupational Therapist or landlord. The home seeker may be referred to local
agencies for assistance with adaptations. The need for more complex
adaptations may result in an award of Urgent Banding

Welfare need to move — this could include

a) Home seekers suffering from harassment or neighbour nuisance such as
verbal abuse or damage to the property. The problems will have been
reported to the landlord and/or the Police for action but despite co-operation
and support from all parties a satisfactory conclusion not found. The
harassment is not at a level whereby the home seeker has an emergency
need to move.

27
225



7.21

7.22

b) Home seekers with a need to be near relatives to give or receive assessed
care/support. This would only apply where NOT moving would cause
physical, financial, or emotional hardship to either party.

c) Home seekers with an evidenced need to move closer to specialist
educational or similar organisation, agency, or institution. This would only
apply where NOT moving would cause physical, financial, or emotional
hardship to either party.

d) Home seekers who need to move to access work. They will either have
found permanent employment within the District and need to move closer
to work to prevent financial hardship or they are unable to take up an offer
of work because the workplace is not accessible from their current home.
An assessment will be undertaken; this may involve contacting the home
seeker’s employer or other agencies such as Job Centre staff.

e) Home seekers who are having difficulty in meeting their housing costs due
to financial hardship caused by reasons outside of their control. This could
include:

e Inability to meet housing costs in the private sector due to
restrictions in LHA rates where the home is a suitable size
e Being ineligible for housing benefits due to age

f) Home seekers who are required to share facilities with people who are not
part of their household. This will only apply to households with dependent
children or where the home seeker or a member of their household is
considered vulnerable for another reason

Home seekers who have been given preference because they have been
assessed as meeting the criteria in categories 9.20 (b), (c) or (d) above,
may be restricted to bidding for homes advertised in the areas they have
demonstrated a need to move to.]

Home seekers who have been given preference under 9.20 (e) will still
be required to demonstrate that any accommodation offered is
affordable.

Overcrowded housing - This means a household that is one bedroom short
of the assessed need for that household.

Home seekers who have been given preference due to need for a
different sized property may be restricted to bid on properties that meet
their needs. Preference will not be applied to home seekers who bid on
properties of the same size.

Insecure accommodation — this would include

28
226



a) Home seekers who currently rent accommodation privately on an assured
shorthold tenancy or a tied tenancy and have been served with a valid notice
to leave.

b) Home seekers accommodated as a licensee/lodger; or

c) Home seekers living with family, relatives or friends

d) Social tenants who have a fixed term tenancy and have been served notice that
this will not be renewed, providing they still qualify for the housing register.

Band 4 - Low Housing Need

7.23 Applications will be accepted onto the housing register and considered in low
housing need if:

e The home seeker has been guilty of behaviour within the last 12 months
that affects their suitability to be a tenant. The behaviour is not serious
enough that enforcement action would normally have been taken and
does not warrant exclusion from the housing register on the basis that they
do not qualify for social housing. This relates to not only the home seeker,
but also other members of their household. The home seeker will usually
remain in the Low Band for at least 12 months. If there is a relevant change
in the household’s circumstances during the 12 month period the home
seeker may contact the Housing Choices Team to request that their
priority is re-assessed. Otherwise the home seeker will remain in Low
Band for twelve months following which the home seeker will be able to
request a reassessment of their housing need band.

e The Home seeker would otherwise be excluded from the housing register
as a result of suitability to be a tenant but have been accepted onto the
housing register due to an overriding housing need.

e Home seekers who have deliberately worsened their circumstances to
gain an unfair advantage over other home seekers on the housing register
may be placed in the Low housing need band for a period of 12 months.
This will normally include households who have been found to be
intentionally homeless. The application will then be reassessed. If there is
a relevant change in the household’s circumstances during the 12 month
period the home seeker may contact the Housing Choices Team to
request that their banding is re-assessed. Home seekers may be
considered to have deliberately worsened their circumstances if they have
been placed in higher bands but not taken the opportunity to bid for more
suitable properties during the fixed period awarded.

29
227



e The home seeker is a social tenant who accepted a property knowing that
it did not fully meet their needs and whose circumstances have not
changed significantly.

7.24 Private Rented Sector Tenants who are adequately housed, who are not
subject to a notice and do not have a welfare, medical or other additional need
for alternative housing.

Band 5 - Potential Housing Need

7.25 Applications will be accepted but normally given no preference if:

e The applicant is in private rented accommodation and has full security of
tenure at least comparable to a full assured or secure tenancy and no
welfare or medical need to move.

e The home seeker is a social tenant whose current accommodation is the
correct size for them (as defined in section 6.14) and who does not have
a welfare, medical or other exceptional need to move.

e The home seeker is seeking to access affordable home ownership
schemes only.

e The home seeker has been allowed onto the housing register as they may
be suitable for older persons or hard to let accommodation but otherwise
would not meet the qualifying criteria. This includes homeowners who
have an existing property that is available, suitable and affordable or they
can meet their needs within the market

e The home seeker is not considered suitable for general needs
accommodation but may be suitable for specialist accommodation subject
to an allocation. (an applicants ability to bid through Choice Based Lettings
may be restricted whilst placed in this band.)

Homeless Households

7.26 The following section applies to homeless households where the Council has
accepted a duty under the homelessness legislation.

7.27 A homeless household will still need to meet the qualification criteria for the
housing register.

7.28 Where the Council has accepted a homeless duty and has decided or has
reason to believe the home seeker is in priority need and unintentionally
homeless and therefore would be owed a main homeless duty the home seeker
will be placed in Band 1 — Critical Housing Need for a period of up to 56 days.

30
228



7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

If a decision is made during the relief duty that the main homeless duty will not
be owed then the application will be reviewed and placed in the appropriate
band according to the criteria below.

Upon reaching 56 days in Band 1 — Critical Housing Need, the application will
be reviewed. If it is felt on review that the home seeker has:
(a) not bid on all properties that are suitable during this period, or
(b) has not made sufficient endeavours to secure an offer of
accommodation
Then the application will be moved into Band 2- Urgent Housing

The home seeker will continue in Band 2 — Urgent Housing until such time as:
(a) They accept an offer of accommodation
(b) The prevention duty is ended and no relief duty is owed
(b) The relief duty is ended
(c) 56 days have passed

If a home seeker is found to be owed a main homeless duty then the application
will be moved to Band 3 — Medium need and a direct qualifying homelessness
offer will be made.

Where the Council has accepted a homeless duty but the home seeker does
not qualify for Band 1 — Critical Housing need as per section 7.29 will be placed
in Band 2 — Urgent Housing Need for up to 56 days (subject to not falling under
the criteria in section 7.35 below).

The home seeker will continue in Band 2 — Urgent Housing until such time as:
(a) They accept an offer of accommodation
(b) The prevention duty is ended and no relief duty is owed
(b) The relief duty is ended
(c) 56 days have passed

Upon reaching 56 days in Band 2 — Urgent Housing Need the application will
be reviewed. If it is felt on review that the home seeker has:
(a) not bid on all properties that are suitable during this period, or
(b) has not made sufficient endeavours to secure an offer of
accommodation
Then the application will be moved into Band 3- Medium Housing Need

If a home seeker reaches the end of the relief duty and no main homeless duty
is owed then their application will be placed in Band 3 — Medium Housing Need
(subject to not falling under the criteria in 7.37 below).

A homeless home seeker will still be placed in the low band where their
behaviour including in relation to their bidding activity, meets the necessary
criteria

Moving between housing need bands

31
229



7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

A home seeker’s housing need band will change if their level of need changes
(see 9.4).

When a home seeker moves up to a higher housing need band their effective
date will change to the date they moved in to the higher band.

Home seekers who move to a lower housing need band will retain their current
effective date or the date they were previously in that housing need band.

Where it is determined on review that the home seeker should have been
placed in a higher housing need band, they will retain their existing effective
date rather than be awarded the higher priority from the review decision date.
Where a review introduced new information not available to the original
assessor, the reviewing officer will make a judgement as to the appropriate
effective date.

Where a home seeker has been placed in the low band due to deliberately
worsening their own circumstances this will normally be reviewed after a period
of 12 months, however if there has been a significant change of circumstances
then this review may take place earlier.

Additional Preference for Armed Forces and former service personnel

7.43 The following groups will be awarded additional preference within their

allocated banding by receiving an additional 3 months waiting time to their
band start date.

e those serving in the regular forces and suffering from a serious injury,
illness or disability which is attributable (wholly or partly) to the person’s
service,

e those who formerly served in the regular forces,

e those have recently ceased, or will cease to be entitled, to reside in
accommodation provided by the Ministry of Defence following the death
of that person’s spouse or civil partner who has served in the regular
forces and whose death was attributable (wholly or partly) to that
service,

e those serving, or who have served in the reserve forces and are suffering
from a serious injury, illness or disability which is attributable (wholly or
partly) to their service.

32
230



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.1

Advertising Properties

The Council will advertise between 90-100% of all empty Council properties
through North West Leicestershire’s Choice Based Lettings scheme and
through the operation of an agreed Service Level Agreement, will encourage
partner landlords to advertise the same percentage of their empty homes. The
advert will contain basic information about the property and the eligibility criteria
that home seekers must meet.

Property adverts may be restricted to receiving bids from or giving preference
to certain types of home seeker, for instance, where a local lettings policy has
been agreed, or the homes advertised form part of a new development that is
subject to letting criteria set out in a section 106 agreement. For example,
property adverts may be restricted to home seekers by:

= Support needs (i.e. Sheltered, Extra Care and Supported)
= Banding

* Home Seeker Age

=  Mobility

= Household type and size

= Local Connection

= Economic Status

(this list is not exhaustive and policies will be adapted to meet the
circumstances of the estate/development)

Partner landlords may introduce their own additional criteria for properties.
Where this is the case these will be clearly shown on the advert.

Home seekers will be able to view the weekly property adverts online will be
able to request support from the Housing Choices Team in order to review and
bid on properties.

The property listings may include details of other affordable housing options in
the District. This may include private rented properties, low cost home
ownership and Homebuy options.

Local Lettings Policies

From time to time the Council or its partners may introduce a local lettings policy
for a specific area or development in order to address local issues or ensure a
balanced community. For example a local lettings plan may have regard to the
following considerations:

o Providing a mix of household sizes and types in order to provide
community stability

o Reducing the likelihood of anti-social-behaviour in areas that have existing
high levels of anti-social behaviour.

o Strong local demand

33
231



9.2

9.3

9.4

o The protection of vulnerable communities

Local Lettings Policies should have consideration for the objectives within the
introduction to the Allocations and Lettings Policy and the guidelines set out in
Appendix One. They should:

o Be developed with a clear objective in mind
o Cover the smallest geography required to meet the objective.
o Be time limited or subject to review.

Where a local lettings policy applies this will be clearly marked on the advert
and a copy of the policy or link to the policy will be made available on the Choice
Based Lettings website. As far as possible the shortlisting criteria will reflect the
conditions of the local lettings policy allowing a home seeker to make informed
choices.

For some specialist schemes the local lettings policy may allow for
allocations/nominations outside of the Choice Based Lettings scheme. This
will be clearly marked within the Local Lettings Policy.

34
232



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Bidding for Vacant Properties

Home seekers are responsible for bidding for properties that are advertised.
Bidding does not involve pledging any money, it is simply the term used for
expressing an interest in a property. If a home seeker is unable to search and
bid for properties they will be assisted by a member of the North West
Leicestershire Housing Choices team (see 10.5).

Home seekers are responsible for ensuring that they place bids in response to
property adverts before the stated closing date. Requests for bids to be made
after the closing date will not be considered.

Home seekers can currently place up to 2 bids per advertising cycle. Home
seekers can cancel bids and place them on other advertised properties at any
time during the bidding period. Home seekers will be informed of their position
in the short-list at the time of bidding. If a property that a homeseeker has placed
a bid on is withdrawn the applicant will be notified as soon as possible and they
will have the chance to place the cancelled bid on an alternative property
subject to eligibility.

Whilst home seekers are not normally penalised if they fail to respond to
properties advertised, home seekers in Ctitical and Urgent housing bands will
be expected to consider all suitable properties.

North West Leicestershire District Council retains the right to discharge the
authority’s statutory main homeless duty by making one suitable offer of
accommodation to the homeless home seeker as described in sections 7.27 to
7.35.

North West Leicestershire District Council reserves the right to change the
frequency of advertisements, for example due to the Christmas holiday period.

Once an applicant has provisionally accepted an offer of accommodation their
application will be suspended and they will not be able to bid on further
properties as they are advertised. Once a provisional offer of accommodation
has been accepted applicants will normally be overlooked for other properties
they have already bid on, however if a landlord becomes aware that the
expected availability of the property will be significantly delayed landlords
should try to contact the applicant to ask if they would like to continue to bid.

In the case of homeless households any proposals to amend offers due to
property availability will be discussed with the Case Officer who may then
discuss the implications of not agreeing to an earlier property with the
applicant

The Council may make a direct offer or place bids on behalf of homeless
households where this could prevent or relieve homelessness or meet the
Council’s main homeless duty to secure accommodation. In this situation the
Council will still have regard to the accepted criteria on suitability of

35
233



11.

111

11.2

11.3

accommodation. Where the Housing Choices Team intends to make a bid on
behalf of a homeless household reasonable attempts will be made to inform the
home seeker in advance. Wherever possible the home seeker will be given the
opportunity to bid for properties themselves, however an inability to contact the
home seeker will not restrict the ability of the Housing Choices Team to place
bids on their behalf. The home seeker will not be able to withdraw any bids
made on their behalf.

Direct offers and Management Allocations

North West Leicestershire Choice Based Lettings scheme aims to give all home
seekers choice in where they live. In exceptional circumstances, it may not be
possible to offer the home seeker choice and a direct offer of accommodation,
or a Management Allocation, may have to be made.

A Direct Match or Management Allocation may be made in one of the following
circumstances (this list is not exhaustive)

= When a Council tenant or tenant of a Registered Provider partner needs to
be decanted from their property because it requires major refurbishment or
repair or is identified for demolition

= Where a property has been compulsorily purchased and there is a legal
requirement to offer the household a specific property

=  Where the home seeker could pose a risk to individuals or other members
of the community

e Where the Council or Registered Provider partner has decided that this is
the best use of stock.

e Where a home seeker has particular accommodation needs such as
mobility requirements that are not likely to be met through the Choice Based
Lettings process

e Where a homeless household is occupying a property as temporary
accommodation that would be suitable to meet their long term
accommodation needs

e Where a homeless household is owed the full housing duty

Properties to be allocated on a Management Allocation basis will not be
advertised through the scheme but information on management allocations will
be available to home seekers on the housing register via the Choice Based
Lettings website.

36
234



12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

Difficult to let Properties

The term ‘difficult to let’ usually refers to properties that have been advertised
twice but have not attracted any eligible bids

If a particular property type has a history of falling within the difficult to let
definition, the Council or Registered Provider may alter the eligibility criteria on
the next advert to encourage home seekers of a different age or household type
to bid. The Council will work with all social housing providers to identify and
encourage home seekers who would meet the revised criteria to bid. Alternative
advertising methods may then be considered and a management allocation
made to someone who expresses an interest in and is eligible for the property.

If the property still remains vacant, then following consultation, consideration
should be given to other changes in the eligibility criteria and incentives to
attract prospective tenants.

Short Listing Criteria

For all properties advertised, unless they are advertised on a “best fit basis”
home seekers who have placed bids and meet the criteria for that property will
be short listed in the following order:

i) By housing need band (Critical to Potential)
i) By effective date (=date of registration or more recent date of change of

priority)

If two or more home seekers from the same housing need band respond to a
property advert, the home seeker who has been in the housing need band for
the longest period will be matched first. If both joined the housing need band
on the same date the home seeker who has been on the housing register the
longest will be matched first.

In the event of two home seekers with the same registration date applying for
the same property, North West Leicestershire housing allocations staff will
make a decision between both cases taking into consideration the housing
circumstances of each case.

This will generally mean home seekers who receive no preference (potential
housing need band) are less likely to receive an offer of accommodation.

Non standard properties, including those that are suitable for those with mobility
needs including wheelchair users may be advertised on a ‘best fit' basis and
preference given to home seekers who have been identified as requiring
accessible accommodation. Home seekers will be selected based on the level
of adaptation they require and the suitability, if available, of accommodation to
meet their needs. These properties may be exempt from the short listing
process outlined in 15.1. In some circumstances these properties will be directly
matched to an applicant.

37
235



13.5

Shortlisting will be carried out in accordance with the policies and criteria of the
Council’'s Housing Management Team or the relevant Registered Provider a
copy of which will be available on the Choice Based Lettings Website or by
request to the relevant organisation.

13.6 Where there is a shortage of accessible properties, and a failure to adapt a

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

property would lead to unreasonable delays in housing for a disabled person
then North West Leicestershire Housing staff will take steps to identify
properties which are suitable to be adapted, and consider a management
allocation.

Offering a property

The short listing results for each property will be sent to or accessed directly by
the relevant social landlord. They will be responsible for contacting home
seekers who have matched for the property and for allocating the property in
accordance with their individual Allocations Policy. The Council and
participating Registered Providers will work from the short list results provided
by North West Leicestershire Housing Choices scheme.

Home seekers who are contacted regarding a property may be asked to provide
proof to confirm the circumstances detailed on their North West Leicestershire
Choice Based Lettings housing application form are correct.

Home seekers who owe a housing related debt to the Council or a Registered
Provider will be advised that any offer of accommodation is subject to the
remainder of the debt being paid in full. Home seekers may be asked to
provide evidence to prove the debt has been paid.

In exceptional circumstances the requirement to repay the debt in full may be
deferred. Circumstances where this discretion may be applied include where:

o A move to alternative accommodation is necessary to avoid
significant/exceptional financial hardship

o The home seekers housing circumstances are such that not offering
alternative accommodation would result in an excessive burden to
either the home seeker or other household members

This will be at the discretion of the relevant Landlord.

If the home seeker is unable to provide proof of their circumstances or if their
circumstances have changed to an extent that they are no longer eligible for
the property or their banding no longer reflects their circumstances then an offer
of a tenancy will not be made.

NB. In instances where the home seeker who has matched first for a property
is not offered the property, the prospective landlord is required to provide a valid
reason for not offering the property and this information should be available to
the home seeker either through the choice based lettings website or on request.

38
236



145

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

14.10

14.11

The home seeker will have a right to review against the decision (see Section
4).

If the home seeker is able to provide the housing provider with the proof
requested then the home seeker should be offered the tenancy of the property.

Where a home seeker is being considered for a property that is deemed larger
than their needs for benefits purposes the home seeker may be asked to
demonstrate how they will make up the shortfall. If a home seeker cannot
provide sufficient assurances that a property will be affordable then an offer will
not be made. It is not expected that Discretionary Housing Payments will be
considered a suitable justification that a property is affordable. If a home seeker
is successful in these circumstances and is rehoused into the property they will
not normally be allowed to register for a move in the future based on affordability
unless they can demonstrate a change of circumstances.

The housing provider will complete the tenancy agreement with the home
seeker. This agreement is the formal contract between the landlord and home
seeker, and sets out the details of the property, rental charged, the full names,
and the start date of the tenancy.

Landlords will attempt to make contact with the Home Seeker through all means
available however if a home seeker is not contactable or does not respond to
messages within 48 hours then they may be overlooked for an offer of
accommodation. Home Seekers are responsible for updating their contact
details to assist with this process. Home Seekers should be given sufficient time
to consider an offer of a tenancy. The home seeker will normally have up to 24
hours following a viewing to make a decision.

Home seekers who are identified as vulnerable maybe given longer to consider
the offer of a tenancy. Examples of this will include home seekers who are
currently in hospital or in some form of temporary accommodation, such as a
hostel or refuge or shortly due for release from prison. A decision will be made
by the individual landlord according to the circumstances of the home seeker.

Home seekers will not normally be penalised if they refuse the offer of a tenancy
but home seekers who refuse, or fail to respond to three suitable offers of
accommodation or fail to attend three arranged viewings will have their
application suspended for up to six months. They will then be asked to attend
an interview with a member of North West Leicestershire’s Housing Choices
Team. The interview will be used to discuss their housing needs and to offer
advice about the type of properties available. Home seekers will be ineligible to
make further bids until they have attended the interview.

Home seekers in the Critical need housing need band may jeopardise their
status if they refuse a reasonable offer of a tenancy and their critical need status
may not be renewed at the end of the initial 8 week period. In the case of
‘homeless” home seekers in critical or urgent housing need the refusal of an
offer of accommodation may result in the Council ending its homeless duty.
Homeless Home have a right of review of a decision of suitability of

39
237



14.12

14.13

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

154

15.5

15.6

16.

16.1

accommodation through the legislation where a refusal may result in the
Council discharging its duty. This will be set out in a formal offer the home
seeker will have received.

Home seekers who are owed Prevention or Relief duties under the
Homelessness Reduction Act may find those duties coming to an end if they
refuse a reasonable offer of accommodation.

The Council and Registered Provider partners to the scheme reserve the right
to withdraw any offer of accommodation. Offers will only be withdrawn when
there is just cause. The Council or Registered Provider will explain why the offer
has been withdrawn. The home seeker will have a right to review against the
decision (see Section 4). Reasons to withdraw an offer can include
circumstances where the home seekers existing property is in a poor state of
repair due to their own actions or failure to rectify or report issues.

Joint tenants

Home seekers seeking a joint tenancy should have a joint North West
Leicestershire Choice Based Lettings scheme application.

The partner landlords within North West Leicestershire Choice Based Lettings
scheme encourage joint tenancies.

If one home seeker of a household is unable to join the register (because they
are ineligible or non-qualifying), then a joint tenancy cannot be granted.

The partner landlords will consider offering a joint tenancy to household
members who have long term commitments to the home, for example, when
adults share accommodation as partners (including same sex partners),
friends, or unpaid live-in carers.

When a joint tenant serves notice to quit, the partner landlords can, at their
discretion, grant the remaining joint tenant a tenancy in their sole name. In
exercising their discretion, the landlords will consider whether this is making
best use of their stock. The former tenant may join the housing register as a
new home seeker.

Where a household member is already a social housing tenant it is presumed
that they will be a joint applicant.

Feedback information

North West Leicestershire Choice Based Lettings scheme seeks to provide
every home seeker with feedback information on previous allocations. This
helps home seekers to make informed choices when bidding for future
properties based on past trends.

40
238



16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

Information on previous allocations through the scheme and an individual home
seekers bidding history will be available to view via the Choice Based Lettings
website.

The feedback information will include details of the number of home seekers
who placed bids for the property and the date of registration and banding of the
successful home seeker.

Home seekers will also be able to see their position on the short list by using
the website. Although the Council will seek to make the queue position as
accurate as possible, there may be circumstances where queue positions will
not fully reflect the actual shortlist. Wherever possible this will be highlighted in
the advert.

North West Leicestershire Housing Choices Team will provide advice to all
home seekers to help inform their bidding choices. The Housing Choices Team
will seek to contact home seekers who have not bid for a property in the Ciritical,
Urgent and Medium Need bands before their band or annual review date to
ensure they understand how the scheme works and discuss their housing
needs.

Agricultural workers and the Rent (Agriculture) Act 1976

Under the Rent (Agriculture) Act 1976 North West Leicestershire Choice Based
Lettings scheme has a duty towards agricultural workers who are required to
leave their tied accommodation.

When considering an application from a displaced agricultural worker North
West Leicestershire Housing Choices Team will need to be satisfied that :-

e The property from which the worker is displaced is needed to
accommodate another agricultural worker.

e the farmer cannot provide suitable alternative accommodation for the
displaced worker

e To re-house the vacating worker would be in the interests of efficient
agriculture.

All 3 conditions need to be satisfied.

If North West Leicestershire Housing Choices Team is satisfied that the case is
substantiated the home seeker's application will be placed in the Critical
housing need band

If the case has not been substantiated then North West Leicestershire Housing
Choices Team will assess the application based on the home seekers other
housing circumstances.

41
239



18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

Definition of Local Connection

Home Seekers will normally only be accepted onto the housing register where
they can demonstrate one or more connections to the District as defined below.
Property adverts will identify any further local connection criteria that must also
be met such as to a village or parish.

A local connection is established by a home seeker demonstrating one or more
of the following:

(&) They have normally resided in settled accommodation in the District for at
least twelve months at the time of application

(b) they have lived in the District for three out of the last five years

(c) they, or a member of their household is employed on a permanent basis or
a temporary contract running for a minimum of twelve months, within the
District (confirmation will be required from the employer)

(d) They have parents (including Guardians), brothers, sisters, or adult children
who have been living within the District for at least 5 years with whom they
have an ongoing close relationship. The applicant will need to provide
evidence to support this connection. Step equivalents will be allowed.

(e) They have children under 18 years of age for whom they are not the primary
carer but where there are formal access arrangements in place and living
closer to the child(ren) would be in the child(ren)'s best interest. The
applicant will need to provide evidence to support this connection.

The following groups of people are exempt from the rules on local (District)

connection, people with:

(&) No local connection but are owed a relief duty under the homelessness
legislation and the Council is not intending to make a local connection
referral to another Local Authority.

(b) Armed Forces and former service personnel where the application is made
within five years of discharge.

(c) Bereaved spouse/civil partners of members of the Armed Forces leaving
services accommodation following the death of their spouse partner; or

(d) Serving or former members of the Reserve Forces suffering from a serious
injury, medical condition or disability sustained (wholly or partly) as a result
of their service

(e) divorced or separated spouses or civil partners of Service personnel who
need to move out of accommodation provided by the Ministry of Defence
where a move into the district enables them re-engage with family and
support networks.

(f) Care Leavers who were accommodated by Leicestershire County Council
where LCC owes them duties as a former relevant child regardless of the
locality in which they were placed will be deemed to have a local connection
to NWLDC. This local connection category will apply until the care leaver's
21st birthday or they are pursuing a course of education set out in their
pathway plan, until that course of education is finished

The following is not accepted as evidence of a local connection:
e Time spent in any prison or secure unit in the district

42
240


https://england.shelter.org.uk/legal/housing_options/young_people_and_care_leavers/leaving_care_provisions

18.5

18.6

18.7

18.8

18.7

18.8

e Time spent in hospital in the district

e Time spent in any institution such as a refuge or rehabilitation centre in
the district

e Time spent in any other accommodation that is not at the choice of the
Home Seekers

Other special circumstances may exist, and all applications will be considered
on their individual circumstances.

Where a home seeker has left the District to access specialist short-term
accommodation they will normally be considered as maintaining a connection
to the District. Where a home seeker has accessed specialist accommodation
within the District they will normally be considered as having maintained their
connection in their originating authority.

Settled accommodation is usually meant to mean accommodation where the
home seeker has a security of tenure or residence in the medium to long term
such as through a tenancy agreement or licence or through a connection to the
person(s) providing the accommodation and their intentions when providing the
accommodation, such as in the case of those living in a family home.

A connection made through employment in the District is dependent on the
employment requiring the home seeker to spend time regularly at a place or
places of work within the District.

Town, Village or Parish Connection - For some housing schemes there are
planning restrictions requiring that vacancies should go in the first instance to
people who have a connection with the town, village or parish. The detail of the
planning restrictions may vary from District to District and local lettings policies

may apply.

The factors used to determine a village or town connection in North West
Leicestershire will normally be as follows, where the main home seeker or joint
home seeker can answer ‘yes’ to any one of the following:-

¢ | have lived in the village for the last 12 months

e | work permanently in the village (at least 15 hours a week)

e | was born in the village or previously lived in the village for 3 years or
more

¢ | have close relatives who have lived in the village for at least 3 years (close
relatives are defined as parents, children, siblings, grandparents, or
grandchildren). Step equivalents will be allowed.

e | need to move to the Parish to be close to a relative or other person in
order to provide or receive significant amounts of care and support

Home seekers should refer to the criteria set out in the property advert

43
241



19. Complaints Procedure

19.1 Requests for service and the reporting of issues should first be made to the
Housing Choices Team using the contact details provided.

19.2 In cases where you believe we have not taken the appropriate action or done
something wrong then a formal complaint can be made using the Council’s complaints
procedure.

193 Information about the Council’s complaints procedure and complaints policy can
be found on the Council’s website:

https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/complaints _comments_and _compliments

or by calling the customer services team on 01530 454545.

44
242


https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/complaints_comments_and_compliments

Appendix One: Eligibility for properties

Each landlord participating in the choice based lettings scheme may set their own
eligibility criteria for individual properties taking account of a range of factors
including:

e supply and demand of different property types and locations.

e Practical factors relating to the design and build of specific units
e Wider neighbourhood considerations

e Other facilities and services associated with the property

However the broad principles the council will expect to be adhered to include:

e To ensure best use of stock in normal circumstances the Council would not
expect an allocation that left a household under-occupying by more than
one bedroom

e Furthermore we would not expect an allocation to lead to a household
being overcrowded except in the case of particularly large households for
whom there is not sufficient large accommodation within the district or in
other exceptional circumstances where a household has very specific
needs for which there is not adequate sized accommodation.

¢ We would normally expect bungalows and other level access
accommodation to be made available to and preference given to people
with a mobility need or older people regardless of other support needs
unless they form part of specialist provision such as a grouped sheltered
scheme.

e Properties that are designed for people with support needs may be
advertised specifically to people who have a requirement for support.

e Properties may be advertised with age criteria where there are
management grounds to do so.

When using fixed term tenancies North West Leicestershire District Council expect

partner landlords to have adopted a clear published tenancy policy. This policy
should have regard to the North West Leicestershire Tenancy Strategy 2012.

243



Appendix Two - Affordability Calculations

A household exceeding either the income or the equity/savings thresholds in the
following table will be considered as having the means to meet their own housing
needs within the private sectort. This figure will be reviewed annually.

Home seekers over the age of 60 who are applying only for sheltered or specialist
supported accommodation are exempt from the affordability limits.

Household Type? Gross Income Savings and
equity
Single £37,000 £20,000
Couple £40,000 £20,000
Family with children £58,000 £30,000

Equity and savings can include but are not limited to: shares; bonds; commercial
property; residential property; property abroad and money apportioned through the
proceeds of a divorce settlement, inheritance or any form of cash windfall.

The calculation of affordability will take into account:

e The availability of any equity

e Whether the home seeker would be eligible for a mortgage

e The supply and affordability of accommodation suitable for the home
seekers specific needs on the private market for either sale or rent (for
example where the home seeker requires specially adapted
accommodation or supported housing)

e Whether adaptation of the existing property is a viable option

e The capital gained from the sale of any property within the last 5 years and
how this was disposed of

e We will disregard any lump sum received by a member of the armed forces
as compensation for an injury or disability sustained on active service for
the benefit of the calculation

These criteria may be reviewed should application of the policy be seen to be
unfairly disadvantaging a home seeker or their household where other factors
indicate that they will be unable to meet their needs in the private sector. This will
be considered on a case by case basis.

1 Assessment of income and equity levels is based on housing market and affordability data from
Hometrack Housing Intelligence (August 2023).
2 The household definitions within section 6 will apply

46
244



Contact Details

For more information contact the Housing Choices Team at North West
Leicestershire District Council

Visit us at our customer centre on Belvoir Road in Coalville (opposite Insomnia
Coffee). Please note that application specific enquiries and support require an
appointment.

Write to us at:

Housing Choices

North West Leicestershire District Council
PO Box 11051

Coalville

LEG7 OFW

Telephone:

0800 183 0357 (9am to 1pm Monday, Wednesday, Thursday Friday and 9am -
5pm on Tuesdays)

E- mail: MyHome@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Website: www.nwleics.gov.uk/find a home

47
245


mailto:MyHome@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
https://www.nwleics.gov.uk/pages/find_a_home

This page is intentionally left blank



Lve

Community Scrutiny Committee — WORK PROGRAMMIE (as at 20/09/23)

Date of Meeting Item Lead Officer Witnesses Agenda Item Duration
December 2023
7 December 2023 The Effectiveness of Planning Enforcement - Chris Elston, Head of - 30 minutes
Update Planning and
Infrastructure
7 December 2023 NWLDC Corporate Sponsorship and Advertising | Paul Wheatley, Head of - 30 minutes
Policy Economic Regeneration
7 December 2023 NWL Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Paul Sanders, Head of - 30 minutes
Plan and Strategy Community Services,
7 December 2023 Future of Waste Services Paul Sanders, Head of - 30 minutes
Community Services,
February 2024
April 2024
June 2024
17 June 2024 Marlborough Square Project Review Paul Wheatley, Head of - 30 minutes

Economic Regeneration

‘6 Wo1| epuaby



8¢

Work requests considered by the Scrutiny Work Programming Group

Work Request

Status/Progress

Committee date to be considered
(provisional)

National Forest Line

Decision taken by the Group: a factual update from officers to be
attached to the committee agenda as a ‘Pink Paper’ for information to
Members. Following this a decision can be taken by the committee if
further information/report is required.

7 December 2023

A review of the mismatch between housing Further scoping required between officers/scrutiny members and to clarify | TBC

provision and employment work request in relation to work of local plan committee. Scrutiny
concerned in relation of effectiveness of current/previous local plan and
any recommendations for the emerging plan.

Highways, potholes and footpaths Officers attempted to make contact with Leicestershire County Council but | -
yet to receive a response. Officers will continue to chase.

Air Quality A report to be considered next year, currently being scoped with the 4 April 2023
information provided by Councillor Eynon in the scoping form.

Litter, fly tipping and dog-fouling A scoping form has been submitted by Councillor Eynon. Decision taken TBC
by Group: Once project complete, a report to be taken to committee.

Tourism Decision by Group: due to the links with the Council Delivery Plan, a report | TBC
to be scoped once plan adopted and then prioritised by the Group.

Community Safety including drug houses, A scoping form has been received by Councillor Eynon. Officers currently TBC

parking and moving traffic offences scoping out report and will the be prioritised by the Group.

Section 106 for Health A scoping form has been received by Councillor Eynon. Decision taken by | TBC

the Group: a factual update from officers to be attached to the committee
agenda as a ‘Pink Paper’ for information to Members. Following this a
decision can be taken by the committee if further information/report is
required.




6v7¢

Principles and Criteria used for Assessing Items Put Forward

Identify Issues for consideration by Scrutiny

e Consulting with members of Scrutiny Committees, senior officers, Cabinet members — horizon scanning on policy development

e Looking at the corporate priorities, Council Delivery Plan and Cabinet Forward plan —identify key issues/topics for investigation/inquiry

* Considering events and decisions in the Council's calendar which could require an input/consultation via scrutiny — eg budget setting, CDP
development

e Considering requests from members — eg via another forum or scoping report submitted

* Evaluating the Council’s performance — eg quarterly reports, end of year reports, reviewing success of a particular scheme or initiative

* Reviewing any follow up work required after previous scrutiny work

Prioritise the potential list of scrutiny topics based on factors including

. the resources required to deliver it (from members, offices and financially)

. the value and level of impact which could be achieved
. link to the council’s priorities
. whether it is a regular recurring item which requires consideration before Cabinet/Council approval

. consideration of the guidance for selecting scrutiny topics



0S¢

Topics are suitable for Scrutiny when

Topics are not suitable for Scrutiny when

Scrutiny could have an impact and add value

The issue is already being addressed elsewhere and change is
imminent

The topic is of high local importance and reflects the concerns of
local people

The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and will be referred
there)

The resources are available that would be required to conduct the
review — staff and budget

Scrutiny involvement would have limited or no impact on outcomes

It avoids duplication of work elsewhere

The topic would be sub-judice or prejudicial to the councils interests

The issues is one that the committee can realistically influence

The topic is too broad to make a review realistic

The issue is related to an area where the council or one of its
partners is not performing well

New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected in the next
year




DRAFT Notice of Executive Key Decisions
The attached notice lists the matters which are likely to be the subject of a key decision by the Council's executive and executive decision making bodies. This notice is

produced in accordance with the Constitution adopted by North West Leicestershire District Council and will be published a minimum of 28 days before the date on which a
key decision is to be made on behalf of the Council.

Key Decisions

A key decision means a decision taken by the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, an area or joint committee or an individual in connection with the discharge of a
function which is the responsibility of the executive and which is likely:

@ to result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council's budget for the service or
function to which the decision relates; or

(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the area of the Council;

(c) for the purposes of (a) and (b) above £100,000 shall be regarded as significant in terms of expenditure or savings, and any issue which, in the opinion of the
Leader is likely to have an impact on people, shall be regarded as significant in terms of impact on communities.

The Council’s Executive

The Council’s executive committee is the Cabinet. The Cabinet comprises:

Councillor R Blunt - Leader Councillor A Woodman - Housing, Property & Customer Services
n&ouncillor M Wyatt - Deputy Leader and Community Services Councillor N J Rushton - Corporate
Zouncillor T Gillard - Business and Regeneration Councillor A SAffell - Planning

Councillor K Merrie MBE Infrastructure

Confidential ltems and Private Meetings of the Executive

Whilst the majority of the Cabinet's business at the meetings listed in this notice will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will inevitably be some
business to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information. This is a formal notice under the Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 that part of the Cabinet meetings listed in this Forward Plan may be held in
private because the agenda and reports for the meeting contain exempt information under Part 1 Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act (Access to Information) Act
1985 (as amended) and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it. Those Items where it is considered that they
should be considered in private are identified on the Notice.

Access to Agenda and Related Documents

Documents relating to the matters listed in this notice are available at least 5 clear working days prior to the date of decision as indicated below. Other documents relevant
to the matters listed in this notice may be submitted to the decision maker.

If you wish to request or submit a document, or make representation in relation to any issue contained within this notice, please contact Democratic Services on telephone
number 01530 454512 or by emailing memberservices@nwleicestershire.gov.uk



mailto:memberservices@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Executive Decisions

Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private
October 2023
Council Delivery Plan Cabinet Key Public 24 October 2023 Councillor Richard Blunt Report Corporate Scrutiny -

¢se

Tel: 01530 454510
richard.blunt@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

Head of Human
Resources and
Organisational
Development

Tel: 01530 454518
mike.murphy@nwleiceste
rshire.gov.uk

Council Delivery
Plan

31st August 2023




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private
East Midlands Cabinet Key Private 24 October 2023 Councillor Keith Merrie East Midlands No additional funding
Development Company Information MBE Development is being allocated, a
limited :ﬁ('j?\tl'lrc‘j%;? any Company limited decision needs to be

€a¢

Information which
is likely to reveal
the identity of an
individual.
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs of
any particular
person (including
the authority
holding that
information)
Information
relating to any
consultations or
negotiations, or
contemplated
consultations or
negotiations, in
connection with
any labour
relations matter
arising between
the authority or a
Minister of the
Crown and
employees of, or
office holders
under the
authority.
Information in
respect of which a
claim to legal
professional
privilege could be
maintained in
legal proceedings.
Information which
reveals that the
authority proposes
to give under any
enactment a
notice under or by
virtue of which
requirements are
imposed on a
person
Information which

N PR Y

keith.merrie@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

Strategic Director of
Place

Tel: 01530 454555
james.arnold@nwleiceste
rshire.gov.uk

made as to whether
something that has
been previously
decided will still go
ahead.




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private
Exemption from the Cabinet Key Private 24 October 2023 Councillor Nicholas Contract and Not required to be
Council's Contract Information Rushton Financial Procedure considered by a
Procedure Rules - ;.e'a“”.g o the Tel: 01530 412059 Rules - Exemption Scrutiny Committee.
. inancial or . . S
Procurement Service business affairs of nicholas.rushton@nwleic | Request - Under the constitution
any particular estershire.gov.uk Procurement Service | Officers are required
person (including Exemption from the to report an exemption
Lhoel d"’i‘:;ht‘;’]r;? Head of Finance Council's Contract from any of the
information) Tel: 01530 454492 Procedure Rules - provisions of the
anna.crouch@nwleicester | Procurement Service | Contract Procedure
shire.gov.uk Rules granted to
Cabinet.
November 2023
2023/24 Quarter 2 General | Cabinet Key Public 21 November 2023 Corporate Portfolio 2023/24 Quarter 2 23/11/23
Fynd and Housing Holder General Fund and
venue Account (HRA) Housing Revenue
Finance Update Account (HRA)
Finance Update
Head of Finance
Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk
Minutes of the Coalville Cabinet Key Public 21 November 2023 Councillor Tony Gillard Minutes of the The group is a sub

Special Expenses Working
Party

Tel: 01530 452930
tony.gillard@nwleicesters
hire.gov.uk

Head of Property and
Regeneration

Tel: 01530 454 354
paul.wheatley@nwleicest
ershire.gov.uk

Coalville Special
Expenses Working
Party

Minutes of the
Coalville Special
Expenses Working
Party

group of Cabinet and
therefore does not
require scrutiny

December 2023




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private

Former Tenant Rent Cabinet Non-Key | Public 12 December 2023 Corporate Portfolio Former Tenant Rent | Function delegated to

Arrears, Current Tenant Holder Arrears, Current Cabinet

Rent Arrears, Council Tax, Tenant Rent Arrears,

Non-Domestic Rates and Council Tax, Non-

Sundry Debts Domestic Rates and
Exchequer Services Sundry Debts
Team Leader
andy.gould@nwleicesters
hire.gov.uk

Homelessness Strategy Cabinet Key Public 12 December 2023 Councillor Andrew Draft Homelessness | Community Scrutiny
Woodman Strategy document on 28 September
Tel: 07970 520357 Homelessness 2023.
andrew.woodman@nwlei | Strategy
cestershire.gov.uk

N

o Housing Strategy and
Systems Team Manager
david.scruton@nwleicest
ershire.gov.uk

Review of Housing Cabinet Key Public 12 December 2023 Councillor Andrew Draft Allocations Community Scrutiny

Allocations Policy

Woodman

Tel: 07970 520357
andrew.woodman@nwlei
cestershire.gov.uk

Housing Strategy and
Systems Team Manager

david.scruton@nwleicest
ershire.gov.uk

Policy
Review of Housing
Allocations Policy

on 28 September
2023.




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private

Kegworth Project Cabinet Key Public 12 December 2023 Councillor Tony Gillard Kegworth Project Corporate Scrutiny
Tel: 01530 452930 Committee - 23
tony.gillard@nwleicesters November 2023 or
hire.gov.uk Community Scrutiny

Committee - 7
Head of Property and December 2023
Regeneration, Senior
Economic Development
Officer
Tel: 01530 454 354, Tel:
01530 454678
paul.wheatley@nwleicest
ershire.gov.uk,
emily.marquez@nwleices
tershire.gov.uk
!(\J"I}

JZhuary 2024

Draft General Fund Budget | Cabinet Key Public 9 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Draft General Fund 04/01/24

2024/25 Holder Budget 2024/25
Head of Finance
Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

Draft Housing Revenue Cabinet Key Public 9 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Draft Housing 04/01/24

Account (HRA) Budget and
Rents 2024/25

Holder

Head of Finance

Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

Revenue Account
(HRA) Budget and
Rents 2024/25




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private
Draft Capital Strategy, Cabinet Key Public 9 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Draft Capital 04/01/24
Treasury Strategy and Holder Strategy, Treasury
Prudential Indicators Strategy and
Prudential Indicators
Head of Finance
Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk
Draft Robustness of Budget | Cabinet Non-Key | Public 9 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Draft Robustness of | 04.01.24
Estimates and Adequacy of Holder Budget Estimates
Reserves and Adequacy of
Reserves
Strategic Director of
N Resources (Section 151
~ Officer)
glenn.hammons@nwleice
stershire.gov.uk
Council Tax Base 2024/25 | Cabinet Key Public 9 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Council Tax Base Approving the Council

Holder

Head of Finance

Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

2024/25

Tax Base is the
responsibility of
Cabinet. The Council
Tax Base is calculated
in line with legislation.




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private

NWL Local Cycling and Cabinet Key Public 9 January 2024 Councillor Michael Wyatt | NWL Local Cycling Community Scrutiny -
Walking Infrastructure Plan Tel: 07773 341531 and Walking 5 April 2023
and Strategy michael.wyatt@nwleicest | Infrastructure Plan

ershire.gov.uk and Strategy

Head of Community

Services, Leisure

Services Team Manager

Tel: 01530 454832, Tel:

01530 454602

paul.sanders@nwleiceste

rshire.gov.uk,

jason.knight@nwleicester

shire.gov.uk
NWLDC Corporate Cabinet Non-Key | Public 9 January 2024 Councillor Tony Gillard NWLDC Corporate Community Scrutiny
Sponsorship and Tel: 01530 452930 Sponsorship and Committee - 07.12.23
Advertising Policy tony.gillard@nwleicesters | Advertising Policy

hire.gov.uk

Economic Regeneration

Team Manager

Tel: 01530 454822

Barrie.Walford@nwleicest

ershire.gov.uk
Housing Revenue Account | Cabinet Key Public 31 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Housing Revenue Considered as part of

(HRA) Budget and Rents
2024/25

Holder

Head of Finance

Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

Account (HRA)
Budget and Rents
2024/25

the draft budget at
Corporate Scrutiny on
the 04/01/24




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private
Genera Fund Budget and Cabinet Key Public 31 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Genera Fund Budget | Considered as part of
Council Tax 2024/25 Holder and Council Tax the draft budget at
2024/25 Corporate Scrutiny on
the 04/01/24
Head of Finance
Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk
Capital Strategy, Treasury Cabinet Key Public 31 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Capital Strategy, Considered as part of
Management Strategy and Holder Treasury the draft budget at
Prudential Indicators Management Corporate Scrutiny on
2024/25 Strategy and the 04/01/24
Prudential Indicators
Head of Finance 2024/25
) Tel: 01530 454492
(6] .
© anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk
Robustness of Budget Cabinet Non-Key | Public 31 January 2024 Corporate Portfolio Robustness of Considered as part of

Estimates and Adequacy of
Reserves

Holder

Strategic Director of
Resources (Section 151
Officer)

glenn.hammons@nwleice
stershire.gov.uk

Budget Estimates
and Adequacy of
Reserves

the draft budget at
Corporate Scrutiny on
the 04/01/24




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private

Future of Waste Services Cabinet Key Public 31 January 2024 Councillor Michael Wyatt | Future of Waste This item is being
Tel: 07773 341531 Services considered at
michael.wyatt@nwleicest Community Scrutiny 7
ershire.gov.uk December 2023.
Head of Community
Services
Tel: 01530 454832
paul.sanders@nwleiceste
rshire.gov.uk

February 2024

2023/24 Quarter 3 General | Cabinet Key Public 27 February 2024 Corporate Portfolio 2023/24 Quarter 3 20/02/24

Fynd and Housing Holder General Fund and

venue Account (HRA) Housing Revenue
Finance Update Account (HRA)
Finance Update

Head of Finance
Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

Minutes of the Coalville Cabinet Key Public 27 February 2024 Councillor Tony Gillard Minutes of the The group is a sub

Special Expenses Working
Party

Tel: 01530 452930
tony.gillard@nwleicesters
hire.gov.uk

Head of Property and
Regeneration

Tel: 01530 454 354
paul.wheatley@nwleicest
ershire.gov.uk

Coalville Special
Expenses Working
Party

Minutes of the
Coalville Special
Expenses Working
Party

group of Cabinet and
therefore does not
require scrutiny

March 2024




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private
Former Tenant Rent Cabinet Non-Key | Public 26 March 2024 Corporate Portfolio Former Tenant Rent | Function delegated to
Arrears, Current Tenant Holder Arrears, Current Cabinet
Rent Arrears, Council Tax, Tenant Rent Arrears,
Non-Domestic Rates and Council Tax, Non-
Sundry Debts Domestic Rates and
Exchequer Services Sundry Debts
Team Leader
andy.gould@nwleicesters
hire.gov.uk
Minutes of the Coalville Cabinet Key Public 26 March 2024 Councillor Tony Gillard Minutes of the The group is a sub
Special Expenses Working Tel: 01530 452930 Coalville Special group of Cabinet and
Party tony.gillard@nwleicesters | Expenses Working therefore does not
hire.gov.uk Party require scrutiny
Minutes of the
) Head of Property and Coalville Special
(o} . .
(= Regeneration Expenses Working
Tel: 01530 454 354 Party
paul.wheatley@nwleicest
ershire.gov.uk
April 2024
There are no items to be considered at the meeting.
May 2024
Treasury Management Cabinet Non-Key | Public 21 May 2024 Corporate Portfolio Treasury Audit and Governance
Stewardship Report Holder Management Committee - 24/04/24

2023/24

Head of Finance

Tel: 01530 454492
anna.crouch@nwleicester
shire.gov.uk

Stewardship Report
2023/24




Decision Decision Status of Public or Date of Decision Contacts Documents to be Considered by
Maker Decision Private submitted to the Scrutiny or other
Decision Maker Committee
(and reason —
where private
June 2024
Former Tenant Rent Cabinet Non-Key | Public 25 June 2024 Corporate Portfolio Former Tenant Rent | Function delegated to

Arrears, Current Tenant
Rent Arrears, Council Tax,
Non-Domestic Rates and
Sundry Debts

Holder

Exchequer Services
Team Leader

andy.gould@nwleicesters
hire.gov.uk

Arrears, Current
Tenant Rent Arrears,
Council Tax, Non-
Domestic Rates and
Sundry Debts

Cabinet

c9¢




	Agenda
	4. Minutes
	5. The Effectiveness of our Leisure Centres in Delivering Health and Wellbeing
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	6. An Update on the Council's Work on Enforcing Standards in the Private Rented Sector and an update on Tackling Fuel Poverty in the Private Rented Sector
	7. Homelessness Strategy to approve the Council's new five year homelessness strategy
	Draft Homelessness Strategy Enc. 1 for Homelessness Strategy to approve the Council's new five year homelessness strategy

	8. Review of Housing Allocations Policy to accept any proposed changes to the housing allocations policy as a result of a review and consultation
	Draft Allocations Policy Enc. 1 for Review of Housing Allocations Policy to accept any proposed changes to the housing allocations policy as a result of a review and consultation

	9. Items for Inclusion in the Future Work Programme
	Cabinet's Executive Decision Notice


